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LCI INDUSTRIES

LCI Industries supplies a
broad array of components
for the leading original
equipment manufacturers of
RVs and adjacent industries
and the related aftermarkets.

From 48 manufacturing and distribution facilities located
throughout the United States and in Canada and Italy, LClI
Industries (NYSE:LCII), through its wholly-owned subsidiary
Lippert Components, Inc., supplies, domestically and
internationally, a broad array of components for the leading
original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) of recreational
vehicles (RVs) and adjacent industries, including buses;
trailers used to haul boats, livestock, equipment and other
cargo; trucks; pontoon boats; trains; manufactured homes;
and modular housing. LCI also supplies components to the
related aftermarkets of these industries, primarily by selling
to retail dealers, wholesale distributors and service centers.
LCI's products include steel chassis and related
components; axles and suspension solutions; slide-out
mechanisms and solutions; thermoformed bath, kitchen
and other products; vinyl, aluminum and frameless
windows; manual, electric and hydraulic stabilizer and
leveling systems; furniture and mattresses; entry, luggage,
patio and ramp doors; electric and manual entry steps;
awnings and awning accessories; electronic components;
televisions and sound systems; navigation systems; backup
cameras; appliances; and other accessories.

In 2016, the OEM Segment accounted for 92 percent of
LCI Industries’ consolidated net sales, of which 71 percent
were of components sold to manufacturers of travel trailer
and fifth-wheel RVs. The Aftermarket Segment accounted
for eight percent of LCI Industries’ consolidated net sales.
Management of LCI Industries is committed to acting
ethically and responsibly, and to providing full and
accurate disclosure to its stockholders, employees and

other stakeholders.
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To Our Stockholders

As Lippert Components® enters its
61t year, we are truly grateful for
the success that our hard-working
teams have brought us. Five years
ago, our executive management
team sat down together and
created a long-term plan, and

five years later, it is exciting to see
these initiatives firmly embedded
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as the groundwork of what our
company is today. Reduced
attrition, lean manufacturing
implementation, product innovation
and strategic acquisitions led us
to a record $1.7 billion in sales,

an increase of 20 percent from
2015. We are especially proud of
our operating profit growth which
finished at a record $201 million,
up approximately $85 million from
2015, a 73 percent increase.

We believe one of our most
competitive advantages is our
senior leadership team. With an
average tenure of 15 years, these
leaders know what it will take to
continue this incredible journey of
growth and success. We started
2017 with our “Everyone Matters”
campaign, focusing on our people
through coaching and leadership
development like never before.
Every leadership team at LCl has
a talented team to lean on, and
we do not want our company

Icit.com

to simply be a place where our
team members come to work
every day, build product, receive
a paycheck and go home. We
want our company to be a place
where our team members feel like
they have an extended family; a
place where they have purpose.
For decades, companies have
asked their team members to add
value to the business and simply
receive a paycheck in return.

We believe it is time to change
the paradigm. The “return” of
someone’s value-add should not
only be the paycheck they receive.
The question becomes, “how can
the company add value to our
team members’ lives?” This is our
focus. Combining our “Everyone
Matters” campaign, our dedication
to community outreach, and our
focus on the enrichment of all

our team members’ lives, we fully
expect the positive trend in our
attrition rate to continue. In turn,
we believe these initiatives will



benefit everyone at LCI, positively
impacting the quality, safety and
efficiency of our operations.

It is noteworthy to recognize
that this is our first annual report
under our new corporate name
of LClI Industries. LCI and all

of its businesses have grown
considerably over the past
decade, and our new corporate
name was selected to better
align the investment community
and our customers with the
strength of the LCI brand and
the industries it serves. We thank
those who carried the torch for
Drew Industries Incorporated
and its predecessor Drew
National Corporation over the
past 50 years, especially Leigh
Abrams who is stepping down
from our board of directors this
year. Without their passionate
leadership, our company would
not be where it is today. LCI
Industries will always remember
their incredible achievements.

$1.7 bilion
N sales, an
ncrease of
20% from
2015

What'’s next for LCI Industries? We
will continue to make investments
in our people, our infrastructure,
and our manufacturing processes.
We invested approximately $45
million in capital expenditures
during 2016 and will add at least
two more facilities in 2017, totaling
more than 800,000 square feet

of manufacturing space. These
facilities will add much needed
capacity in our growing RV and
marine furniture divisions as well as
our Furrion® product lines. We will
also focus our capital expenditure
spending to include additional
automation projects. We feel
automation will not only improve
product quality, manufacturing
efficiency and employee safety, but
will also help us more efficiently
address the tightening labor market
we face in Elkhart County as
unemployment in the county dips
closer to three percent. Finally,

we will continue to invest in our
lean manufacturing initiatives.
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These initiatives have added

over 150,000 square feet of
manufacturing space over the last
two years and have contributed
to profit improvements each year.
We expect similar results in 2017
as we expand these initiatives.

Dedication, enthusiasm, and
passion; these qualities helped us
attain another record year. A very
big “Thank You” to all the team
leaders and team members who
helped make 2016 the best ever,
to our customers who believe in
us and trust us to be a leading
supplier in the industries we
serve, and to our stockholders for
your continued support. We look
forward to a successful 2017!

w~> //rv

JASON D. LIPPERT
Chief Executive Officer
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OEM RECREATIONAL VEHICLES

Recreational Vehicles (RVs)
continued a record-setting sixth
straight year of positive growth.
According to the Recreation Vehicle
Industry Association (RVIA), total RV
shipments in 2016 reached 430,000
units, up from 374,000 units in 2015.

Net sales to our RV OEMs comprised

72 percent of our 2016 consolidated
net sales. Our content per towable
RV increased to $3,022 in 2016 from
$2,987 in 2015, and content per
motorized RV increased to $2,011

in 2016 from $1,810 in 2015. Our

RV OEM partners continue to make
capital investments by adding several
new facilities. We believe these
investments alone could generate a
gain of approximately 30,000-40,000
additional units produced annually.

Marine
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Year In Review

OEM ADJACENT MARKETS

Many of our core product
categories are supplied to various
adjacent industries including
residential building products,
transit buses, school buses,
heavy trucks, and trailers used to
haul boats, equipment and other
cargo. We also supply trailers,
furniture and other components

to the marine industry. OEM sales
in these industries increased to
$332 million in 2016 from $275
million in 2015. We fully expect this
trend to continue as we further
expand the LCI brand into these
industries. Our dedicated adjacent
market sales teams will continue
to develop relationships and push
additional content to new and
existing customers.

ADJACENT MARKET SALES
(in millions)
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AFTERMARKET SEGMENT

In 2016, we changed the reportable
segments of LCI Industries to

OEM and Aftermarket, largely due
to the growth in the aftermarket
opportunity. Aftermarket Segment
sales increased to $131 million in
2016 from $103 million in 2015.

We have dedicated teams at

LCI whose sole responsibility is
servicing thousands of dealer
customers with aftermarket up-sells
and repair parts for RVs in service,
wholesale distributors, internet
retailers, outdoor retailers and all
the way to the individual consumer.
In 2016 we saw tremendous
growth with all of these customers.
In 2016, we also continued to
launch exciting new products to
our different aftermarket channels,

including replacement pontoon
and RV furniture, new leveling and
stabilization equipment, as well as a
complete Solera® awning program
geared towards universal replace,
repair and upgrade opportunities.
Axle sales to the RV and trailer
Aftermarket continue positive
growth trends as well. Each year,
we put over $1 billion (and growing)
worth of parts and accessories into
the OEM industries, and eventually,
many of these parts will need to

be replaced or upgraded. We
believe this creates strong growth
opportunities for our Aftermarket
Segment for the foreseeable future.

Aftermarket Retail Packaging

yRmATL



Marine
Furniture

RV Furniture

Seating Bases
and Frames

ACQUISITIONS

A significant portion of our
acquisitions over the last three
years have been outside the
North American RV industry, and
this pattern continued in 2016.
Components sold in these other
markets generally carry equal

or better margins, so we will
continue seeking opportunities
to acquire companies in

these adjacent industries that
manufacture similar products and
share our core manufacturing
competencies. The following
acquisitions were made in 2016:

Marine Furniture: We acquired
the pontoon furniture
manufacturing operation of
Highwater Marine based in
Elkhart, Indiana. This acquisition
complements the 2015 acquisition
of marine seating manufacturer
Signature Seating in Fort Wayne,
Indiana. The combined
businesses provide a solid
foundation for a growing division.

RV Furniture: We acquired the
business and certain assets of
Flair Interiors, a manufacturer of
RV seating and furniture based in
Goshen, Indiana. This acquisition
provided additional customers in
an already growing division.

Camping Connection
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Year In Review

Project 2000 SRL: Our first
European acquisition, Florence,
ltaly-based Project 2000 SRL has
manufactured innovative caravan
solutions for over 20 years. With
many existing European OEM
customers, Project 2000 provides
a great foundation for our growing
European sales as well as a base
for European operations.

Chassis & Seating Products: We
acquired the seating and chassis
components division of Atwood
Mobile Products based in Elkhart,
Indiana. This acquisition provides
us with additional sales in the
Aftermarket Segment, along with
the capabilities for manufacturing
seat bases and frames for RVs,
vans, boats, truck cabs and
specialty vehicles.

Camping Connection: With
service centers in Florida and
South Carolina, Camping
Connection has provided excellent
RV repair service, both on-site and
mobile, for over 20 years. Taking
care of the RV retail customer is
essential to the long-term health
of the RV industry. Under the
Camping Connection brand, we
plan on expanding our existing
service center model to other
geographic locations, with a goal
of providing the best customer
service the industry has to offer.



Our expansive research & product
development teams are a driving
force for the growth of our OEM

and Aftermarket Segments. We
have over 100 team members
dedicated to creating innovative
new solutions along with improving
existing products to offer more
selling features to our customers.
Perhaps the largest product launch
of the year was our Ground Control®
TT One-Touch Automatic Leveling
System for travel trailer RVs.
Received well at the 2015 National
RV Show, this product continued to
gain steam in 2016 and will continue
to become more commonplace

on travel trailers in 2017. Our
OneControl® digital application
continues to garner a lot of interest,
allowing RVers to monitor and
control many of the features on their
RV from their smartphone or tablet.
New entry steps, slide-outs, leveling
systems and towing products are all
slated for release in early 2017, so
the new product pipeline is alive and
well for the next 12 months.

-

-1 -
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Ground Control® TT One-Touch
Automatic Leveling System

SmartJack™

Jack-IT® Bike Carrier

OneControl®
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Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

OPERATING DATA:

Net sales $ 901,123 $1,015,576 $1,190,782 $1,403,066 $ 1,678,898
Severance and executive succession 1,456 1,876 — 3,716 —
Sale of extrusion assets — — 1,954 — —
Operating profit 58,132 78,298 95,487 116,254 200,850
Income before income taxes 57,802 77,947 95,057 114,369 199,172
Provision for income taxes 20,462 27,828 32,791 40,024 69,501
Net income $ 37,340 $ 50119 $ 62,266 $ 74345 $ 129,671
Net income per common share:
Basic $ 166 $ 215 $ 2.60 $ 306 $ 5.26
Diluted $§ 164 $ 2.11 $ 2.56 $ 302 $ 5.20
Cash dividends per common share $ 200 $ — $ 2.00 $ 200 $ 1.40
FINANCIAL DATA:
Working capital $ 84,243 $ 107,339 $ 100,451 $ 146964 $ 218,043
Total assets 373,868 453,184 543,841 622,856 786,904
Long-term obligations 19,843 21,380 41,758 85,419 87,284
Stockholders’ equity $ 284,245 $ 313,613 $ 394,898 $ 438575 $ 550,269
TOTAL SALES RETURN ON EQUITY NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE
(in millions) (percentage) (diluted)
2,000 30 6
$1,679 o8 26.0 . $5.20
1,500 $1,403
$1,191 20 g 175 184 !
1,000 $901 $1,016 15 — : 3 — $3.02
$2.11
10 2 $1.64
500
5 1
0 0 0
12 13 14 15 16 12 13 14 15 16 12 13 14 15 16
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The graph below matches the cumulative 5-year total return of holders of LCI Industries’ common stock with the cumulative total returns
of the Russell 2000 index and a customized peer group of eight companies that includes: Arctic Cat, Inc., Brunswick Corporation,
Cavco Industries, Inc., Patrick Industries, Inc., Spartan Motors, Inc., Thor Industries, Inc., Trimas Corporation and Winnebago Industries,
Inc. The following graph assumes the value of the investment in our common stock, in each index, and in the peer group (including
reinvestment of dividends), was $100 on December 31, 2011 and tracks its relative performance through December 31, 2016.

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among LCI Industries, the Russell 2000 Index, and a Peer Group

600

~ LCI Industries
500

mmm Russell 2000
400

mmm Peer Group
300

200

100
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*$100 invested on 12/31/11 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending December 31.
Copyright© 2017 Russell Investment Group. All rights reserved.

12/11 12/12 12/13 12/14 12/15 12/16
100.00 140.39 231.71 23113 284.60 511.95
100.00 116.35 161.52 169.43 161.95 196.45
100.00 155.61 240.67 240.45 232.06 324.18
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

James F. Gero"?®
Chairman of the Board of LCI Industries, and a Private Investor

Jason D. Lippert
Chief Executive Officer of LCI Industries

Leigh J. Abrams®
Chairman Emeritus of the Board of LCI Industries

Frank J. Crespo@®
Vice President and Chief Procurement Officer of Caterpillar, Inc.

Brendan J. Deely"®

Tracy Graham (¢
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Principal of Graham-
Allen Partners

Frederick B. Hegi, Jr.?®
Founding Partner, Wingate Partners

John B. Lowe, Jr."®
Chairman of TDIndustries, Inc.

Kieran M. O’Sullivan"@®
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
of CTS Corporation

David A. Reed®®
President of a privately-held family investment management
company

Members of the Committees of the Board of Directors, as follows:
(Compensation Committee

@Audit Committee

©®Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee

“Risk Committee

CORPORATE OFFICERS
Jason D. Lippert
Chief Executive Officer

Scott T. Mereness
President

Brian M. Hall
Chief Financial Officer

Robert A. Kuhns
Vice President, Chief Legal Officer and Secretary

Jamie M. Schnur
Chief Administrative Officer

Nick C. Fletcher
Chief Human Resources Officer



EXECUTIVE OFFICES

3501 County Road 6 East
Elkhart, IN 46514

(5674) 535-1125

website: www.lci1.com
E-mail: Icii@lci1.com

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
KPMG LLP

Aon Center

200 East Randolph

Chicago, IL 60601

TRANSFER AGENT AND
REGISTRAR

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

(212) 936-5100

(800) 937-5449

website: www.amstock.com

A CAREER FEW GET TO EXPERIENCE

It is with great admiration that we congratulate our Chairman
Emeritus, Leigh Abrams, on a well-deserved retirement from LCI

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Copies of the Company’s Governance
Principles, Guidelines for Business
Conduct, Code of Ethics for Senior Financial
Officers, Whistleblower Policy, and the
Charters and Key Practices of the Audit,
Compensation, Risk, and Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committees
are on the Company’s website at www.lci1.
com, and are available upon request,
without charge, by writing to:

Secretary

LCl Industries

3501 County Road 6 East

Elkhart, IN 46514

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATIONS

The most recent certifications by our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 are filed as exhibits to our
Form 10-K. We have also filed with the New
York Stock Exchange the most recent Annual
CEO Certification as required by Section
308A.12 (a) of the New York Stock Exchange
Listed Company Manual.

DIB'4GCR
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Industries. Leigh will step down from the Board on May 1, 2017 after
dedicating the last 47 years of his life to guiding the company through
some very good, and also challenging times.

In 1969, Leigh joined Drew Industries as an assistant controller. Leigh
guided Drew through some challenging times, including a bankruptcy
in 1975. When Drew emerged from bankruptcy in 1977, Leigh was
named Executive Vice President and was tasked with ensuring the
long-term survival of the company. Leigh had a game plan to make
Drew a world-class organization, and when he was appointed CEO of
Drew in 1979, that game plan started to take shape.

Leigh’s legacy will be cemented in two strategic acquisitions: Kinro
Manufacturing in 1980 and Lippert Components in 1997. These
acquisitions would not only change Drew, but would change the
industries it served. Leigh understood what it would take to grow
Drew into a world-class manufacturer. Crediting Kinro and LCl’'s
management, Leigh oversaw a period of growth that few have had
the opportunity to experience. Aimost two billion dollars in growth, 50
acquisitions and a stock price exceeding $100 per share, Leigh
reflects on an amazing career:

“When | was appointed President and CEO of Drew in 1979, | set
three goals for Drew to attain: to attain sales of at least $1 billion, to
become an extremely profitable company, and to be listed on the
NYSE. | can now retire with complete satisfaction at having seen
these goals accomplished.”

Leigh, from everyone at LCI Industries, we thank you for your 47
years of service, guidance and leadership.

LCI INDUSTRIES

PAY-FOR-PERFORMANCE

Through a combination of performance-
based incentives and stock-based awards,
LCI Industries strives to attract, motivate
and retain talented, entrepreneurial and
innovative management.

We have designed our pay-for-performance
incentive compensation program to be

the “workhorse” of our management
compensation. Performance-based incentive
compensation has historically represented
the major portion of the overall compensation
of our key managers. We believe that those
key employees who have the greatest ability
to influence the Company’s results should

be compensated primarily based on the
financial results of those operations for which
they are responsible.

Our stock-based awards ensure that our
managers have a continuing personal
interest in the long-term success of the
Company and create a culture of ownership
among management, while also rewarding
long-term return to stockholders.

xpcazkrnaluslncionluuse
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This photo taken at the NYSE, from left to right: David Webster,
Edward “Rusty” Rose (deceased) and Leigh Abrams
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

x ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGEACT OF
1934

For the fiscal year ended December (31, 2016

(] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the transition period from [Tto
Commission file number 001-13646

LCI INDUSTRIES

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 13-3250533
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

3501 County Road 6 East 46514
Elkhart, Indiana (Zip Code)
(Address of principal executive offices)

(574) 535-1125
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section12(b) of the Act:

Namelofiéacheéxchange
Title of each class (Ion which registered 17
Common(Stock,$.01 parvalue New[York[Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section12(g) of the Act:
None




Indicate[ by [ check [ mark [ifl thel registrant[is[ al well-known[ seasoned[ issuer, as[defined[in[ Rule[#05[ ofl thel Securities
Act. Yes 0 No X

Indicate[ by check [ mark[ifl the[registrant[is[ hotl[tequired(to[ file reports[ pursuant[to[ Section 13[or[ Section 15(d) ofl the
Act. Yes 1 No X

Indicate By [check thark (whetherthe registrant|(1) has(filed[all reports required toBe filed by(Section 13(or(15(d) ofltheSecurities
Exchange(Act[0f[1934[during(thepreceding (12 tonths[(or for(such shorter[period[thatthe [fegistrant[Was(tequired fo file [such
reports),[@and((2) hasBeen[subject/tosuchfiling requirements [for thepast(90(days. Yes ¥ No O

Indicate by [¢heck [mark [whether[the fegistranthas[Submitted (¢lectronically [and [posted[on[its [corporate Website, [if[any, [every
Interactive Data File requiredfo lbesubmitted land posted pursuantto Rule 405 ofRegulation S-T(§232-405 ofithis ichapter) [during
thelpreceding 12 months((orforisiichishorterperiod that the registrant Was required o submitland postisuchffiles.)  Yes No O

Indicate by [check hark if/disclosure [0fldelinquent filerspursuant/to Ttem 405 [dfRegulation[S-K(§229-405 loflthis [chapter) fisHot
contained (Herein, [and will ot becontained, [fothe Bestofregistrant’s knowledge, [in [definitive [proxy or information[statements
incorporated by referencelinPart Il [ofthis[Form 10-K [or(any @amendment/tolthis[Form 10-K. [

Indicate by(check mark whether theregistrantlislalargedccelerated filer, anlacceleratedfiler,lamon-accelerated filer, (0rl@/smaller

reporting(company. [Seelthe (definitions [0f ‘flargelaccelerated filer,” faccelerated (filer” [dnd ['smaller[reporting [dompany” [in Rule
12b-2[oflthe ExchangeAct.[]

Largelaccelerated!filer [¥] Accelerated (filer(d
Non-accelerated (filer [0 (Do hot/check [ifla/smallerreporting[company) Smaller(reporting/company (]

Indicate By check ark Wwhether[the Tegistrant(is[a/shell dompany [(as[defined in [Rule[12b-2 [oflthe [Exchange
Act). Yes 0 No X

Theldggregate tarketvalueof'the Voting [dommon [€quity held By Mon-affiliates [computed by [reference [to [the [price @t which [the
common [equity (Was(last[sold(as[of(the lastbusiness[day [of(the registrant’smost(tecently [completed[Ssecondfiscal (quarter [Wwas
$1,940,584,601.The registrant lias Mo Mon-voting [dommon [Equity.

Themumber(ofishares/outstanding ofthe(registrant’s[commonstock, as(ofthe latest[practicable date[(February 15,[2017)[was
24,756,229(shares.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Proxy Statement with respectto the2017Annual Meeting df'Stockholders to be Heldlon May 25,2017 islihcorporated by reference
into Ttems 10, 11,12, 13 [and 14 [ofPartII1.



SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual ReportlonForm(10-K [ontains/certain “*forward-looking statements” with respect to (our financiallcondition,
resultsofCbperations, 'business[ strategies, operating[efficiencies or[synergies, competitive position, growth opportunities,
acquisitions,[plans(and(objectivesdfhanagement, tharketsfor(the Company’s[(Common[Stockand [other (matters. [Statements [in
this[Form(10-K ithatare not historical facts lare forward-lookingstatements” for the purposeofithe safe harbor provided by Section
21E(ofltheSecurities [Exchange Actlof1934, [@s@amended,and Section 27Aloflthe Securities Actlof1933, @slamended, land involve
anumber(dflrisks(and incertainties.

Forward-looking [statements, [including, (Without (limitation, those telating to the[Company’s [(future (business [prospects,
netlsales, [éxpenses(andincomel(loss), dash flow, [and financial [dondition, whenever they [occurlinlthis [Form (10-K [are mecessarily
estimates|reflectingtheBest[judgment0fithe[Company’sSenior thanagement (dt[the [fime[such statements (were tade. There arela
number offactors, manylofwhich are beyond the Company’sicontrol, whichlcould cause actual resultsland events to differ materially
from [thoseldescribedlinthe forward-lookingstatements.These [factorslinclude, inladdition to[other hatters(described inthis[Horm
10-K, [pricing[pressures(due[to[domestic[and[foreign competition, (costs(and[availability lofraw [materials [(particularlysteel[dand
aluminum)/and(other[components, Seasonality land [Gyclicality [in the ihdustries fo Which welsell ‘dur [products, @vailability [of lcredit
for[financing/the retail land[Wwholesale [purchase oflproducts for[which[Wwe sell[our[Gomponents, inventory levels oflretail [dealers
and[manufacturers, dvailability [oftransportation (for (productsfor Wwhich wesell [dur[¢omponents, [the (financial [dondition[oflour
customers, the financialldondition[dfretail [dealers [0f[products for whichwesell (Gur[components, retention@nd [Concentration (0f
significant(customers, ‘thelcosts, paceoflandsuccessfullintegration(dflacquisitionsand (other [growth initiatives, [dvailability [and
costslofiproduction facilities and labor, eémployee benefits, employeeretention, realization and impact of expansion plans, efficiency
improvements(and[¢ostteductions, the[disruption[oflbusinesstesulting [fromnatural[disasters (or[other unforeseen évents,the
successfulléntrylinto mew tharkets, [the[costs[df[dompliancewith[énvironmental [laws, laws [6f[foreign jurisdictions in Wwhich we
operate,(dnd(increased [governmental [fegulation(and[oversight, information[technology [performanceland(security, the[ability [to
protectlintellectual [property, Warranty [and [product liability [claims[or [productfecalls, [interest[rates, [0il [dnd [gasoline [prices, [the
impact(oflinternational, (mationalland degional [économic(conditions/and [donsumer¢onfidenceon(the retail [Sale [of products(for
which weselllour[¢omponents,[and[other [fisks [and incertainties[discussed more fully under [the[caption [fRisk (Factors”[in[this
Annual Reportion Form [10-K, land in our subsequent filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company disclaims
any [obligation/orundertaking to ipdate forward-looking [statements [to reflect [dircumstances/orfevents that dccur @fter the [date the
forward-looking statements (dre thade, [dxcept ds(required By law.
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PART I
Item 1. BUSINESS.
Summary

LCIIndustries[(FLCII” ([@nd collectively with[its[subsidiaries, the “fCompany” [or [the [TRegistrant), through [its Wwholly-
owned[subsidiary,[ Lippert Components, Inc. and[its[subsidiaries[(collectively, ‘Lippertl Components” or[ ¥LCI”), [ supplies,
domestically [and[internationally, a[broad [drray [0flcomponents/for the(leading original (équipmentmanufacturers (“OEMs”) [of
recreational Wehicles(F'RVs”)@nd @djacentlindustries lincludingBuses; [trailers ised [fo iaul (boats, livestock, [dquipmentand [Other
cargo; [trucks; [pontoon(boats; [trains; hanufactured liomes;(and mhodular Housing. [The [Company (also [supplies . components|[to[the
related (dftermarkets (ofitheselindustries, [primarily By selling|[to [retail [dealers, wholesale distributorsand service centers. []

LCI’slproductslinclude steellchassisand related domponents; [axles land [suspension [solutions; slide-out hechanismsland
solutions; thermoformed bath, kitchen land ather products; Minyl, @luminum and frameless windows; manual, electric and hydraulic
stabilizer(and leveling[Systems; [furniture [and tattresses; [éntry, Tuggage, [patio [and [ramp [doors; €lectric[dnd hanual [entry [Steps;
awnings/andl@awninglaccessories; ¢lectronic[components; televisionsand[sound[systems; navigation [systems; (backup [¢ameras;
appliances; and(otherlaccessories.

ThelCompany has[two [reportable(segments: [the [Original €quipmentmanufacturers/segment((the “OEM [Segment”)(and
thelaftermarketisegment((the ‘A ftermarket'Segment”). The[(ODEM [Segment(accounted for(92 [percent(oficonsolidated net(sales for
2016, andtheAftermarketSegmentlaccounted [for 8 [percent6fidonsolidated Met(salesfor(2016./Approximately (71 [percent[0fithe
Company’s (OEM [Segment(net(salesin2016 weredfproducts(sold[to thanufacturersdftraveltrailer land fifth-wheel RVs.

The Companylis focused lon [profitablegrowth inlits ihdustries, both lorganicand throughdcquisitions. Ihlorder to lsupport
this[growth, ‘over[the[pastlseverallyears(the Companyhasleéxpandedlits[geographic market and productllines,[¢onsolidated
manufacturing[facilities, andlintegrated (manufacturing,[distributionand[administrative [functions.[At[December 31,[2016,the
Company [dperated 48 thanufacturingland (distribution(facilities located throughout/the Wnited [Stateslandin[Canadaland Italy, land
reported(consolidated met(sales 0f($1.7 billion for(the yearended Mecember 31,2016.

The(Company was(incorporated inder [the laws[ofDelaware (on March (20,1984, andlis[the [successor to Drew National
Corporation, whichwasihcorporated iinder the laws 6f[Delawarein 1962. The Company’s principal €xecutive land [ddministrative
officeslarelocatedlat 3501 County Road 6[East, Elkhart, Indianald6514; telephone number(574)[535-1125; Website www.Icil.com;
e-mail LCII@]cil.com. The Company [thakes dvailable [freelof(chargeonits Websitelits[Annual [Report(on (Form[10-K, Quarterly
Reportsion Form10-Q, CurrentReportsionBorm[8-K (and @amendments fo those reports) filed with the[SEC s [soon(as reasonably
practicablelaftersuchmaterials(are(electronically [filed.

Recent Developments
Sales and Profits

Consolidated netisales for(the yearlénded Mecember(31,12016 increased foldrecord[$1.7 billion, 20 percent Higher(than
theldonsolidated met(sales fortheyearlénded December31,20156f§ 1.4 Billion. Acquisitionscompleted By the Companyin2016
added$64 mhillion inmet(sales.[A5 [percentihcreasein industry-wide Wholesale shipments (6ffravel frailer@and [fifth-wheel RV,
the[Company’s(primary (OEM market, [as Wwell las ihcreased [content per RV init, (positively impacted et sales/growth. [Further, the
Company [0rganicallylincreased(salesto ddjacentlindustriesdnd [the [aftermarket. Wetlincome [for [the (full-year(2016increased(fo
$129.7 million, or($5.20 per(diluted(share, ip frommetincome0f1$74.3 thillion, [Gr($3.02 [perdiluted share, in2015.

Intem[7.*Management’s(Discussion/dndAnalysis[of Financial[Condition[and [Results[6fIOperations,” [the [Company
describeslin[detail [thelihcrease(in its [sales[and profits[during 2016.

Acquisitions
During2016(and(early 2017, the (Company [completed [six [acquisitions:
InJanuary 2016, the Company acquired the business land [certain assets 0fthe [pontoon furniture anufacturing loperation

of(Highwater(Marine, LLC[(“Highwater”),(a/leadingthanufacturerofpontoon and[other tecreational (boatslocated [in 'Elkhart,
Indiana. The[purchaseprice was[$10.0million paid aticlosing.



InBebruary 2016, the[Company ldcquired [the businessandcertainlassets (0fFlair Interiors, Tne. [(FFlair”), lalmhanufacturer
of RV furniture Tbcatedin[Goshen, Indiana. The [purchase [pricewas$8.1 millionpaid@tclosing.

In[May[ 2016, the[ Companyacquired[ 100 [percent ofl thelequity [interest of[Project[2000(S.r.1.[{(*Project[2000”),la
manufacturer0ffinnovative, space-saving bedlifts and retractable steps, Iocated mear Florence, Ttaly. The purchaselprice was$18.8
million[paiddticlosing, [plus/contingent(consideration based [on [future sales by [this [Operation.

InNovember(2016,the[Company [acquired[the business, manufacturingfacilityand[¢ertain assets[of[the[Seating[and
chassis/domponents business 0f[Atwood Mobile Products, ILLCI(*“Atwood”), d[subsidiary[of Dometic[Group, locatedin[Elkhart,
Indiana.The purchase pricewas$12.5 million paid @t/dlosing.

InNovember2016,the [Company dcquired the servicedentersandrelated (business [0f[Camping Connection, Inc.,[an RV
repairlandlservice providerlocatedin Myrtle Beach, SouthCarolinaland Kissimmee, Florida. Thepurchaseprice was($2.0 rhillion
paidat/closing.

InBebruary2017,the Company acquired (100 Percentofitheoutstanding [shares0fSessa Klein[S.p.A. [(“SessaKlein™),la
manufacturer 6fHighly [engineered side window [Systems for Both high [Speed [@and commuter [frains, located ear Varese, Ttaly. The
purchase priceWwas[$8.5 millionpaid(at(closing, [plus(dontingent/consideration based [on future [sales By [this [Operation.

Other Developments

InMarch2016, [the[Company[initiated [@regular[quarterly [dividend [6f[$0.30perishare, whichWasincreased laterin [the
year(fo[$0.50 [per(share. During[2016, [fotal [dividends[of[$1.40per share[oflcommon[Stock, Tepresenting[andggregate [0f($34.4
million, Werepaid to [stockholders.

InDecember(2016,the [Company [announced(d [changelofithe (Company’sdorporate name [fo ILCIIndustries[fromDrew
Industries Tncorporated. Lippert Components’ business[lias(grownconsiderably [overithe past/decade, land[the Hew [Corporate name
wasselected [to Better dlign [the [investment community With [the [strength (0fithe ILCI brandin[the industries it[serves.

OEM Segment

Through/its wholly-owned [subsidiaries, ‘the [Company manufactures [or [distributes @ [broad [array [0f[components [for [the
leading[OEMs[0fIRVs[andladjacentlindustries, including [Buses; [frailers ised [to haul boats, livestock, [equipmentand other dargo;
trucks; pontoon Boats; trains; manufactured liomes; [andhodular Housing.

In2016,the OEM Segment represented 92 percentiof the Company’siconsolidated netlsalesland 90 percentloficonsolidated
segment|operating [profit.[Approximately 71 [percent oflthe[Company’s[OEM [Segment net(saleslin[2016 [were [of[products/to
manufacturersdfitraveltrailer landfifth-wheel RVs. RVsImay [be motorized [((motorhomes) (or towable (travel trailers, fifth-wheel
travel [frailers, [folding [damping trailers(and fruck [campers).

Rawmaterialsiused by the[Company’sOEM Segment, lconsisting primarily of’steel(coil, sheet, tube and [}beam), extruded
aluminum,(glass, Wood, fabricland foam areavailable from(aumber oflsources, Both[domesticland foreign.

Operations 0flithe[Company’s(OEM [Segment consist [primarily (offabricating, welding, thermoforming, [fainting, sewing
andlassembling domponents(intofinished [products. The Company’s[DEM [Segment (dperationsare(donducted ati48 manufacturing
andwarehouse [facilities throughout the United[States,land[in[Canadaland Italy, strategically locatedin [groximity [to the [Customers
theyl(serve. Seeltem[2.Properties.”

The[Company’s[OEM [Segmentproducts[aresold[primarily [to[major manufacturers ¢f[RVs[such as[ThorIndustries
(symbol:[MHO), ForestRiver{(a Berkshire Hathaway company, symbol: BRKA), Winnebago (symbol: WGO) and other RVIOEMs,
and[to manufacturers(in[@djacent(industries.

TheRV lindustry s highly competitive, both @mong manufacturers0f RVs/and the suppliers of RVIcomponents, generally
with Tow [barriers [foeéntry [other thancompliance [with [industry [Standards, [dodes [and[safety [fequirements, [dand [the [initial [capital
investment/required|to dstablish manufacturing(operations. The Company [competes with several ([dther domponent(suppliersonla
regional [and[national (basis(with(tespect(tolabroad(array [oflcomponents[for (bothfowable[and hotorized [RVs. TheCompany’s
operations[¢ompetelon[thebasisof[product quality[and teliability, (productinnovation, [price, ¢ustomerService [and[¢ustomer
satisfaction. Although definitive ihformation is notreadily available, the Company believes with respect tolits principal RV products
(i) litis the leading supplier of windowsland doors for towable RVs; (ii) itis the leading supplier ofichassis and slide-out mechanisms
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for(fowable RVs;(iii) [the Teading suppliers (oflaxles [for[towable[RVslarethe [Company [and Dexter[Axle[Company; [(iv)it[is[the
leadingsupplier(dffurniture fortowable[RVs,and lthe Company ([competes with[several [dther thanufacturers; [(v) the (Company [i§
thelleading(supplierloflleveling[systems [fortowable [ RVs; and [(vi)[theleading[suppliers oflawnings for[towable RVslare[the
Company, [Carefree0fiColorado land Mometic[Corporation.

ThelCompany’sshare dflthe market [forlits [productsin[adjacentindustries[cannotBe readily [determined; liowever,(OEM
Segment et sales(foladjacentindustriesincreased from[$275million[in2015€o[$332 Thillion[in[2016,21 [Percent6ffotal (DEM
Segmentmet(sales.[The[Companyhas(thadelinvestmentsinpeople,technology [@andléquipmenttoincreaselits [share[0f the market
inladjacentlindustriesand(is[committed [tb [dontinue theseexpansion(efforts.

Detailed narrative ihformationlabouttheresults ofldperationslofithe OEM Segmentis included in Item 7. “Management’s
Discussion(and[Analysislof(Financial [Condition[and[Results[of{Operations.” [Financiallinformation[telating tothe[Company’s
businesssegments/islincludedlinWote 14 of the Notes [to[Consolidated (Financial [Statements(ih Ttem 8 [0f[this[Report.

Aftermarket Segment

Many lofthe Company’s OEM Segmentproducts are also sold through various aftermarket channels, including dealerships,
warehouse(distributors(and(servicecenters, [as[Wwelllas [direct(to tetail [dustomers. [The [Company [has[teams [dedicated [fo [product
training(and[marketing[Supportforlits Aftermarket/customers. The[Company[alsosupports[twol¢all [¢enters[fo [provide[quick
responses|[to (customers [for (both product(delivery[and [technical [support. This[supportlis[designed for(d[rapid response o Critical
repairs/solcustomer/downtime/(is thinimized. The A ftermarketSegment(alsolincludes the(saleof teplacement(glassand l@awnings
tolfulfill ihsurancelclaims. Many [ofthe [optional ipgrades land non-critical replacements are [purchasedoutside the mormal iproduct
selling[seasons, [thereby [Causing (A ftermarket(sales [to belcounter-seasonal.

According(totheRecreationVehicle Industry[Association(“RVIA”), current[éstimated RV [ownership (had [increased [fo
nearly dine tillion [units.[Additionally, asalresult(ofla Mibrant/[Secondary tharket, [one third (0f[current[Owners [purchased [their RV
new [while(the[temaining[two-thirds[purchased(apreviously[owned [RV.[This[vibrant/secondary [inarket(is(akey [driver(for the
aftermarket, (dsthe[Company [anticipatesowners (dflpreviously lowned [RVswillllikely ipgrade their inits as well [@s replace [parts
andldccessories WhichhaveBeen [subjectedtonormal Wearlandtear. ]

Aftermarketnet(saleslincreasedfrom($103 million[in[2015®o[$131 million[in2016. The[Company [Gontinues [fomake
investments ihpeoplelandtechnology [to[grow [the A ftermarket[Segment(and|is [dommitted [to [continue [theseéxpansion efforts.

Detailed [harrativel information[ about! the tesults[ofl operations ofl the[ Aftermarket/ Segmentlislincludedin[ITtem[7.
“Management’s [DiscussionandAnalysis of[Hinancial Conditionland Results 6f Operations.” Financial linformation relating to the
Company’s Business/segments|islincludedin Note 14 of'the Notes [fo [Consolidated Financial [Statements [in Ttem 8 [oflthis[Report.

Sales and Marketing

ThelCompany’s(salesactivities lare related [fo [developing Mew [customer relationships [and maintaininglexisting[customer
relationships, [primarilythrough (the[quality [and [reliability Loflits[products,innovation, (price, ¢customer[service[and [¢ustomer
satisfaction. Asaresult/ofthe[Company’sistrategic decisiontolincreaselitssales[to the @aftermarketiandladjacentlindustries, @swell
aslexpand fintoihternational tharkets, the Company (has increased/its @annual tharketinglandladvertising léxpendituresover [the [past
few [years, whichwere@pproximately($3 million[in2016.

TheCompany (has(several Supply [dgreements[or[other [arrangements [with (Gertain (ofTits [Customers/[that[provide for[prices
ofvarious/products (to [be fixed [for periodsigenerally motlinlexcess 0fleighteenmonths; however, [in[Certain (Cases the Company Has
the[right o [fenegotiate [the (prices[on(sixty-days’ (notice. [Boththe [OEM[Segment[and [the [Aftermarket[Segment(typicallyship
products(on(dverage (within[one[to [two [weeks [0freceiptiofiorders from [theirldustomersand, (as @ result, meither[segment Hasany
significantbacklog.

Capacity

In2016, the Company’s facilities Operated atlan average laflapproximately 55 percent af their practical capacity, ldssuming
atlleast([twolshifts[of production/atdll[facilities. [However, While(certain/facilities [could[ddd/alsecond [shift[of [production(in(the
short term, the Company has found this to be inefficientioverlthe long term. Capacity Varies significantly based on/seasonal demand,
as(well(as By facility, [product line and [geographic region, (with [dertain facilities at fimes [dperatingbelow 50 [percent[utilization,
and/other [facilities at[times dperating @bove 90 percentutilization.



AtDecember 31,2016, the[Company [0perated (48 manufacturing and(distribution (facilities, [dand (for most [products(has
thelability tofill[demand (inléxcess[oflcapacity [atlindividual facilities by [shifting [production [fo [0ther (facilities, But the (Company
wouldihcur@dditional freightcosts. [Capital [@xpendituresfor 2016 Were $45 million, [@nd included l@pproximately $25 million (6f
“replacement” Capital expenditures and @pproximately $20 million 6fFgrowth” Capital €xpenditures. The ability fo expand Capacity
inlcdertain product areas, ifnecessary, as welllas the potential to reallocate lexisting resources, i$ monitored regularly by thanagement
tohelplensurethe[Company [dan[thaintain a highlevel 0f[production éfficiencies/throughoutlits Gperations.

Seasonality

Mostlindustries wherethe[Company (sells[products [or[where its [products dre used, [historically have been [seasonal [and
generally (dt[the highest(levels when the Weather(is hoderate. [Accordingly, the [Company’s sales [and [profits have (generally (been
the highest/ih the second quarterand lowestin the fourth iquarter. However, because of fluctuationsfindealer inventories, the impact
oflinternational,national [and[regional [économic conditions [@nd [consumer [donfidence[on [retail [sales[0f[RVs[and [0ther[products
forwhich the[Company(sells[its[components, the fiming [0fldealer[drders, [d@sWwell [as [the impactofSevere Wweather conditions [on
theltiming dflihdustry-wideshipments fromtimetoltime, [currentland futureseasonal industry trendsmay be different than in [prior
years. Additionally, salesdf[domponents [fo the aftermarketichannels(dfitheseindustries tend to [be [dounter-seasonal.

International

Overthelpastseveralfyears, the Company has been gradually growing international sales, primarily in Europe and Australia,
and[exportisales(represented [@pproximately 2 [percent, 1 [percentland (1 [percent0ficonsolidated metsalesin2016,2015and2014,
respectively. [ The[Company|[¢ontinues/to[focuslon developingproducts(tailored(forlinternational [RV [markets. The[Company
participateslinlthe largest RV [showslin [Europe and lasbeen receiving [positive feedback on lits[products, [@specially lits [proprietary
slide-outproducts. The[Company (has[spent[more(than two years(developing three slide-out [Systemssuited [fo[theneeds [of[the
Europeanmarket, whichwere recently featuredon mew RV hodels. As @iresult, the Company believeslit will see @dditional orders
from European RV IOEMs. TheCompany’sDirectorof International Business Development spends time in/Australia, Europeland
otherlinternational arkets, [dssessing[the[dynamics[0flthe local marketplace, building relationships with [(OEMs(and helping the
Company lintroducelits[éxisting products/and(develop (new productsfor(thoselmarkets, Wwith[the[goal [oflidentifyinglong-term
growth pportunities. The Company estimates theladdressable market forlannual net salesoflits productsautside 0f North America
toBe$750 million.

In(May[2016,the[Company(acquired Project[2000[S.r.1.,[a[manufacturer [6f motorized entry [Steps, bed ifts[and [RV
accessories/located mear Florence, taly, @s/@foundation for(LCIin the European RV market. In February 2017, the[Company(also
acquired(SessaKlein(S.p.A., @manufacturer 0flhighly [engineeredside window [systems [for [both High [speedand [commuter trains
located[nearVarese, Italy. Thelacquisition[df[SessaKlein [introducesthe [Company[fod fiew [ddjacentindustry [for (the European
and[U.S. [frain[markets, and, [the[Company (Believes, Will [accelerate the[opportunities [fo [expand [LCI's[product (offerings [for [the
European RV market.

Intellectual Property

TheCompany holdslaver 200 Wnited [States land foreign [patents land has hearly (60 [patent @pplicationspending thatrelate
tovariousproductsisold by the Company. The Company Has/alsograntedcertain(licensesthat [permitithird [partiesto hanufacture
andlsellproductslin/donsideration for foyalty payments. ]

From fimel(to [time, the (Company (has(teceived Motices[or(claims it may [be [infringing [dertain[patent[or [6ther [intellectual
property [tights(oflothers, [and [the[Company [has(given notices(to, (dr(asserted [claims(against, [Others[that(they may [belinfringing
certain[patent(or(other (intellectual [property rights dfithe Company. The Company believes lits[patents [are Maluable @and Migorously
protects its patents Wwhen[appropriate.

Research and Development

TheCompany strives to belan industry leader ih[productinnovationlandis focused (on [developing new [products, as well
as[improving[ existing[products.[Researchlandl developmentexpenditureslarel expensed as[theylarelincurred.[Researchland
developmentléxpenses Were l[dpproximately [$9 illion,[$8 thillion and $5 millionih2016,2015@nd 2014, respectively.
Regulatory Matters

Welare subject/to mumerous federal, state and local iregulations [governing the manufacture land sale oflour products. [Sales
and[rhanufacturing(dperations|(ih [foreign countriesmay [be subjectto[Similar regulations.
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Rulespromulgated inder(the[Transportation[Recall [Enhancement, [Accountability [and IDocumentation(Act[(the 'Tread
Act”)require thanufacturers dfmotor vehiclesandcertainmotorvehicle related [equipment|(to regularly thake [reports [and [submit
documents(and(dertain historicalldatalto(the National Highway [Traffic[Safety[Administration (“NHTSA”)[of[the [United States
Department(of(Transportation[(“DOT”)[foénhance thotor [vehicle safety, [and[fo [lespond [fo [fequests [forinformation relating [to
specific/domplaints(or(incidents.

Trailers fproduced by the Company for hauling boats, personal Watercraft, snowmobiles and equipment mhustdomply With
Federal Motor Vehicle[SafetyStandards (F'FMVSS”) promulgated by NHTS Alrelating tolighting, braking, Wheels, [tires land [other
vehiclelsystems.

Windowsland doors produced by the Company for the RV ihdustry musticomply With regulations promulgated by NHTS A
governing safety(glass [performance, l@gress ability,[door Hinge land lock Systems, l[egress window [retention hardware, land baggage
door [ventilation. Windows[produced by the Company [for (buses [@lso husticomply with FEMVSS [promulgated by NHTSA.

Upholstered products and mattresses produced by the Company for RVsand buses must comply with EMVSS promulgated
by INHTS Aldegarding [flammability. Inladdition, ipholstered [productsdnd (mattresses [produced by [the[Company [for RV s must
complywith regulationspromulgated by ithe (Consumer BroductsSafety (Commission regarding [flammability, aswelllas [standards
for[toxic[¢chemical[levels[and(labeling[tequirements[promulgated by the California  Office[of[Environmental [(Health[Hazard
Assessment. Blywood, [particleboard and [fiberboard ised [in RV [products are required to domply with [standards [for formaldehyde
emission(levelspromulgated by [the CalifornialAir ResourcesBoard [and [adopted By [the RVIA.

Windowsland[éntry[doors [produced by[the Company[for(manufactured lhomes must¢comply [with[performanceland
constructionregulations promulgated by the(U.S. Departmentof Housing land Urban Development (F*HUD”’) @nd by the American
Architectural Manufacturers/Associationrelating o @irland Waterfinfiltration, structural fintegrity, thermal [performance, emergency
exitconformance, dnd (hurricane(desistance. Certain[0f(the [Company’s[products must(also[¢omply [with the International [Code
Councillstandards,[suchlas/the[TRC[(International[Residential[Code),[the[IBC[(International[Building[Code), and[the[TECC
(International Energy [Conservation(Code)ds(well s state and local building [dodes. Thermoformed bath products thanufactured
by [the Company [for thanufactured homes hust/comply withperformanceland ([construction regulations [promulgated by (HUD.

The/Company believes itis currently operating ih'compliance, inall material respects, with applicable laws and regulations
and(hasmadelreportsland submitted informationlas required. The Company [does not Believe ithe €xpense lafidompliance with these
lawsand(tegulations, as[currently [in[effect, [will Thavelamaterialleffect on[the[Company's operations, [financial [¢ondition or
competitive[position; however, (there(dan Be o [@ssurancethistrend (will [dontinue [as health(and [Safety laws, [regulations [or [Other
pertinent requirements/eévolve.

Environmental

ThelCompany’s[operations(arelsubject/to éertain federal, state[and local ‘degulatory [tequirements [telating[to [the use,
storage, discharge, transportandldisposal dflhazardous materials ised during the hanufacturingprocesses. Althoughthe Company
believeslits Operationshave been/consistentwith [prevailing lindustrystandards, landare [in substantial compliancewithlapplicable
environmental lawsland(regulations, (dneorhore(ofthe Company’s[durrent[dr former[Operating Sites, [Or(adjacent[sites[0Owned by
third-parties, lHave Been(affected by releases [0flHazardous materials. Asa[result, the (Company hay [incur [éxpenditures [for [future
investigation [and remediation (0flthese sites, ihcludinglin/donjunction withVoluntary iremediation [programs (dr third [party (claims.
In(thepast,[énvironmental (compliance[costs[have[not(had, @andldre not(expected [inthe [future fo have, d(material [effect(on(the
Company’s(operations (or financial [condition; lhowever, [there [can be ro assurance(thatthis [trend (will [Continue.

Employees
Thenumber(ofpersonsémployed(full-time by [the[Company (dtDecember 31,2016 was(7,654, compared(to(6,576(dnd
6,187 atDecember 31,12015[and(2014, Hespectively. [Thelfotal[at[December 31,20160included (6,295 lin[manufacturing, 337 [in

transportation, 103 [in[sales,[230lin[¢ustomer(supportland(servicing, dnd (689 [in[administration. INone of(the[émployees[of the
Company [arelsubject(tolcollectiveBargainingldgreements. The (Company believes(thatrelationswithfits [@mployees [dre [good.
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Executive Officers

Thelfollowing tablelsets(forthdur/executive officers @s(ofDecember 31,2016:

Name Position

Jason[D. LLippert ChiefExecutive OfficerlandDirector
ScottT.Mereness President

Brian M. Hall ChieflFinancial [Officer

Robert/A. Kuhns Vice President 4ChiefllLegal Officerland(Secretary
JamieM.[Schnur ChieflAdministrative Officer

Nick[C. [Fletcher Chief(Human Resources[Officer

Officerslarelélected [@nnually by [the Board[dfDirectors. Therelare no family relationships between [0r[among [any 0fthe
executive officers orDirectors(ofthe[Company.[Additional [information with[tespect(to [the[Company’s[Directorslislincludedlin
the[Company’s Proxy(Statement [for the[Annual Meeting[0f[Stockholders[to (be lield lon May 25,2017.

JASONID.LIPPERT(age[44) became[Chief[Executive Officer0fithe [Companyeéffective May[10,(2013,[dnd hasbeen
ChieflExecutive Officer of ILippertComponentssince February 2003. Mr. Lippert Hasdver 20years oflexperience with ILCII land
itsisubsidiaries, [and Has(served|[ih [@Wide rangedfleadership [positions.

SCOTTIT.MERENESSI(age(45) became [President(oflthe (Company [effective May (10,2013, [and lhas [beenPresidentof
LippertComponentssinceJuly 2010. Mr. Mereness hasaver20 years(dflexperience with [LCII[and its[subsidiaries, @and hasserved
inldlwiderangeloflleadership(positions.

BRIANM.HALLI((age42)joined the[Company ihMarch(2013,/and has(servedlasCorporate Controllersince June2013,
and[ChiefFinancial Officer(ofithe Company(since November2016. Prior fo joining the Company, (he [Spent more than (16 [years in
publiclaccounting.

ROBERTA.[KUHNS [(age(51)joined[the[Company[in[March (2013, [and has been [Vice President = ChieflLLegal [Officer
and[Secretary[since[July[2013. Prior(to[joining the[Company, he Wwas(d[partner(inthe Minneapolis [office[ofDorsey (& Whitney
LLP,[affull-servicelglobal law [firm.

JAMIEM.[SCHNUR [(age(45) became[Chief/Administrative[Officer(ofithe[Company [eéffective[May(2013. Mr. [Schnur
haslover 20 yiears df experience with the Company, and hasservedlin a@wide range oflleadership positions With Lippert Components.

NICKIC.[FLETCHER [(age[56)joined[the [Companyin February[2013asVice President of[(Human [Resources. [Since
January 2015, hehas been ChiefHuman Resources Officer. Priorto joining the Company, Mr. Fletcher providediconsultinglservices
and(Heldroles(in(senior level positions @t American(Commercial (Lines,(Continental Tire, WabashNational,[Siemens [and TRW.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The following risk factors should be considered carefully in addition to the other information contained in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face, but represent the most significant
risk factors that we believe may adversely affect the RV and other industries we supply our products to, as well as our business,
operations or financial position. The risks and uncertainties discussed in this report are not exclusive and other risk factors that
we may consider immaterial or do not anticipate may emerge as significant risks and uncertainties.

Industry Risk Factors

Economicland(business [factors Beyonddurcontrol, lincluding [dyclicality [and [Seasonality [in the lindustries Where Wwe sell
ourlproducts, douldlead[to[fluctuations|ih[duroperating results.

The[RV,[recreational Hoat/and [0ther harkets Where Wwesell many [0flour[products [or[where [Our [products [dre ised, have
beenlcharacterized (by[cyclesoflgrowthland[dontractionlin[consumer(demand, [often (because (the [purchaseof such [products(dre
viewed|asddonsumer(discretionary(purchase. [Periods ofidconomic(recession haveladversely affected, and douldagainadversely
affect,[ourloperating(tesults.[Companies(in[theselindustries[aresubject fo[Volatility [in[productionlevels, [shipments,[sales[and
operating [resultsdue(tolchanges (in [éxternal [factorssuchasgeneral[dconomic conditions, including[credit(availability,[donsumer
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confidence, [@mployment|(rates, (prevailinginterest(rates, [inflation, (fuel [prices [and[other économic(conditions [affecting[Gonsumer
demand/and(discretionary [Consumer[spending, [as Well [@s [demographicland political changes, all (6fiwhich [are beyond [Gur(control.
Consequently, ourloperating(results(forlany [prior [period may ot be ihdicative (0fresults forlany futureperiod.

Additionally, thanufacturingoperations [in[thost[0f(the ihdustries Where we [Sell [our [products[or Where [our [products are
used, historically have beenseasonal. However, Becauselof fluctuationsindealerinventories, the impactloflinternational, national
and[regional [dconomic (conditions(and [consumeridonfidence on retail sales(ofiproducts whichlinclude ldurlcomponents, land [dther
factors, [currentand[future seasonal ihdustry [trends hay [Be [different than(in [prior [years. Wnusually [Severe Wweather [conditions[in
somegeographiclareas thay!(also, fromtime fo[fime, impactthe timing 0flindustry-wideshipments from one [period [fo [another.

Reductionslin[the[dvailability [offwholesale[financing [limits [the [inventories [¢arried (by [retail [dealers [0f[RVs[and [other
productswhich uselour/components, which would cause reduced [production by [dur [customers, [and therefore reduced [demand [for

our/products.

Retail dealers[0f[RVslandlother[productswhich tiseouricomponentsgenerally [financel(their [purchases dflinventory with
financing (known [as floor-plan financing [provided by lending institutions. [Aldealer’s[dbility [fo [obtain financing[is [Significantly
affected by the iumber [oflending institutions(offering floor planning, land by [an ihstitution’s lending limits, Which are Beyond Gur
control.[Reduction inlthe availabilitylof floor-plan financing haslin the pasticaused, and would likely [cause, hany [dealers to reduce
inventories, Which Wouldresultlih reduced [production by OEMs, landIconsequently resulting ih feduced [demand [for ur [products.
Moreover, dealers which are tinable to lobtain @dequate financing could cease l0perations. Their remaining inventories would likely
belsbldlatidiscounts, disrupting themarket.[Suchsales Have historically Caused @ldecline in orders for new inventory, which reduced
demand forlourproducts.

Conditions|inlthe creditmarket dould limitthe @bility (0fidonsumers [fo [6btain [retail financing[for RVs(and [dther [products
which [uselour components, [resulting in reduced [demand [for [our [products.

Retailldonsumers who purchase RVs/and other products Which uselouricomponentsgenerally [obtain retail financing from
third [party (Ienders.[The [@vailability, terms (and[cost[of Tetail [financing [depend on(the lending[practices of(financial [institutions,
governmental [policies andl€conomic andlother(conditions, alllofwhichare Beyond(dur control. Restrictions(on the availability [0f
consumer [financingand[increases(inthecosts (0f[such financinghavelin[the pastlimited,[and[could/again[limit, [the[ability [of
consumers to [purchaselsuch (discretionary [products, whichwouldresult/ih reduced [productioncfisuchproducts by [ourlcustomers,
and(therefore(reduceldemand for(dur(products.

Excesslinventoriesatldealersand hanufacturers/can(causedldeclinelin [the demand [for[dur [products.

Dealers/andthanufacturers/dould accumulate iinsold inventory. (Highlevels6funsoldlinventory havefin [the [pastidaused,
andiwould[cause, @lreductionlinldrders, which Wwould likely[dausea/declinelin [demand for[our products.

Gasoline shortages, [0r High prices [for/gasoline, [could lead [to reduced [demand [for[our(products.

Fuellshortages, [and substantial lincreases[in(the price[0f fuel, have had [an [adverseéffect(on(the RV [industry [@s[d@whole
inlthe past,and(douldlagainlinthe future. Traveltrailer@nd fifth-wheel RVs, [components for Whichrepresented lapproximately 71
percent[oflour[OEM [Segment(net(sales(in[2016, dreuisually fowed by light(trucks[0r[SUVs.[Generally, these vehicles isethore
fuelthan dutomobiles, [particularly (while towing[RVs(or [Other(trailers. High[prices for(gasoline, [Or[anticipation oflpotential (fuel
shortages, [can @ffecticonsumerfise land [purchase 0f light frucks @nd SUVs, which [ould result ih reduced [demand for fravel frailer
and/fifth-wheel[RVs, land [therefore [reduced [demand [for[Qur[products.

Company-Specific Risk Factors
Alsignificant[percentage[oflourlsales[arel¢oncentrated [in[the RV [industry, [and[declines/inindustry-wide[wholesale

shipments of(travel frailer(and [fifth-wheel RVsIcould reduce ldemand for (Gur products [and [adversely limpact(our Operating [results
and[financial [dondition.

In2016, the OEM [Segment represented 92 [percent Gfldur(consolidated Met sales, and 90 percent(dficonsolidated [segment
operating[profit.[Approximately(71 [percentloflour [ OEM[Segmentmetisales(in(2016 wereof products(totanufacturers/oftravel
trailer(and(fifth-wheel RVs. WhileWwe theasuredur[OEM [Segment sales(against/industry-wide [wholesale[shipment statistics, the
underlying health(of(the RV [industry is[determined by [etail . demand. [Retail Sales[0f RV s [historically (have (been[closely [fied [fo
general l€conomic(conditions, as Well @s/consumer confidence whichwaslabove Historical @verages ih[2016. Declines/ih ihdustry-
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wideWwholesaleshipments 0f(travel trailer(and[fifth-wheel (RVs[could feduce ([demand(for[our [products (dand (adversely [affect[dur
operating results(and financial [condition.

Althoughlwehave[alarge number(oficustomers, [the (loss[dflany [¢ustomer[dccounting [for more[than[10[percent ofour
consolidatednet(sales(could lave[amaterial @dverselimpacton[durOperating results.

Twoldustomers(ofboth the[OEM [Segment(and the A ftermarket/Segment(dccounted (for 63 [percentoflour(consolidated
netlsalesin2016.Thelossldfleitherof thesecustomers Would have @material @dverse impaction iour dperating results @nd financial
condition. Thladdition, We generally domot have long-term lagreements With dur[customers/and icannot predictlthat We will haintain
our[current/relationships with these [customers [or[thatwewill[continue to [supply them [at[current levels.

Volatile raw material [costs[could [ddversely limpactour(financial [dondition [and [Operating[riesults.

Thelprices Wwelpay [forlsteel and aluminum represented [@pproximately 45 percentland 15 [percent, respectively, ofiour raw
material ¢osts[in[2016.[These,[and[other key [faw (materials, have historically [been volatile[and[¢an fluctuate[dramatically [(With
changes/ih [the[global [demand [and[supply [for[such products.

Becausecompetition and business/conditions thay limitthelamountlortimingloflincreaseslinraw materialdosts [that(can
belpassed through [tolour(dustomers(in/theform(ofisales pricelincreases, futurelincreases in [daw[material[costs[could [adversely
impact(our(financial (conditionand [Operating [results. [Conversely, [as(raw [material [Costs [decline, e lmay mot[belable(tb (maintain
selling [prices[consistentwithHigher [Costraw haterials [in [Gur linventory, which (ould[adversely [@ffect lour [Operating [results.

Inadequate [Supply[ofitaw [materials[or[¢omponentsuised [fo make[dur (products(¢ouldadversely limpact our[financial
condition [and [Operating [results.

Ourbusiness dependsonlour @bility [to [Source raw materials, [such (@s steel, Aluminum, (glass, fabricland foam, landcertain
components, [suchlas[electric[motors,[televisions and[appliances,[in(altimely[and[¢cost[efficientlmanner. Most[materials[and
components|(are(readily [available from [d [Variety [of[Sources. [However, [d[few [key [components [dre (currently [produced by [only[a
smalllgrouplofiqualitysuppliers/that lave the [capacity tb [supply large quantities. Iflraw [materials [dr [domponents [that [are ised[in
manufacturing ourfproducts(orfor Which We dct @s @ldistributor, [particularly those which Weimport, Becomeinavailable, (or if the
supply [oflthese[raw haterials and [domponentsis [interrupted(dr[delayed, (Ourimanufacturing [@nd[distribution Operationscouldbe
adversely/(affected. We durrently limport, (dr [purchase [from[suppliers Who [import, [@pproximately 25 [percent[0f [our raw [thaterials
and[c¢omponents. [Additionally, (wehave[thelexclusive tight[fo distribute[Furrion’s[¢ompleteline[of ¢lectronics[and appliance
productsito OEMs and aftermarketicustomers in the RV, specialty vehicle, wtility trailer, horse trailer, marine, transit bus @ndschool
buslindustries throughout the United(Statesand [(Canada, Wwhich [products(areimported [from [China. (Consequently, Werely lon[the
free flow 0figoods(throughopenland operational [ports ‘and dnlalconsistent basis for(asignificant [Portion (0fidur raw [materialsland
components. Adverse political conditions, tradeembargoes, increased tariffs or importduties, inclement Weather, natural disasters,
war, [terrorism [Or[labor [disputes [dt[Various [ports [dr [Otherwise[ddversely [impacting [our [suppliers create [significant tisks [for [our
business, [particularly lif these [donditions[0r[disputes [resultlin work [Slowdowns, lockouts, [strikes[dr(dther[disruptions, [@and could
havelanlddverseimpactlon ouroperating[tesultsif[welareunable to [ fulfill [customerldrdersortequired [fo[accumulate[éxcess
inventory[or [find[alternate sources [0f(supply, liflavailable, at highercosts.

Welimportla[portion[oflour [taw [thaterials [@and[the[¢components[we[sell [and [the[eéffect[of[foreign [éxchange[tates [Could
adversely [affect(our operating[results.

Weniegotiate(forthe [purchase df'alsignificant [portion (af raw [mhaterials land [Semi-finished [componentswithsuppliers that
are(not(located(in(theWnited[States. As[such, [the [prices Wwelpay [in[part(are[dependent ipon [the [fate [0f éxchange [for (US (Dollars
versus(the currency [0flthe Tocal[supplier. [Adramatic weakeningofithe [US (Dollar(couldlincrease (dur(cost0f[goods [sold [@nd [such
costlincreases [thay Mot beloffset through [price increases/forldur [products, [ddversely limpacting[our thargins.

Changeslin[donsumer[preferences telating [to[dur [products, [or [the[inability [fo [develop innovative new [products, [could
causereduced|sales.

Changeslin[consumer preferencesfor RV, manufactured housingand recreational boattodels, [and for the [components
we makel(for[such(products, loccurlover time. [Qurlinability [folanticipate[changes(in[consumer [preferences for [such[products, (or
delayslin(responding(tolsuchlchanges,[¢ould/teduce demand(for ouriproductsandddversely(affect/ourinet/sales/and[operating
results.[Similarly, We believe dur @bility to femaincompetitive @lsoldependson [our @bility [fodevelop ihnovative lew [products(or
enhanced [features (oflexisting products. Delays inlthe introduction lor marketlacceptance 6fiew products lar product featurescould
havelanlddverseleffectlon/durlnet(salesland Operating[results.
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Competitive [pressuresdould reduce [demand [forour products [Or liimpact [Qur[sales [prices.

Thelindustries/inwhich Welarelengaged [arehighly [competitiveland [generally (characterized by low (barriers|[to entry, and
wehave numerouslexisting andpotential competitors. Competition i$ based ipon productquality and reliability, product ihnovation,
price, [customer [serviceand/customer (satisfaction. (Competitive [pressures have, [from[timeto[time, [resulted[in dreduction oflour
profitimargins(and/or[teductionlin[ourlmarket[share. [Domestic andforeign¢ompetitors may [lower [prices on[products [(which
currently [dompete With [Gur[products, orl[develop [productimprovements, which/could reduce [demand for [Gur [products(or(cause ltis
tolreducelprices/for(ourproducts. Sustained [increases/in/thesecompetitive pressures/dould Have(a thaterialladverseleéffect onlour
resultslofloperations. Inladdition, [the hanufacture By [ourcustomersthemselves ofproducts supplied By hislcould reduce demand
forlourproducts(andladverselyaffectidurloperating [resultsland financial idondition.

Increaseslin[demand douldresultlin(difficulty [0btaining [additional skilled labor, [and [@vailablecapacity may [initially mot
behitilized efficiently.

Inlcertain[geographicregions/in Wwhichwehavelalarger(doncentrationof hanufacturing [facilities Wwe have leéxperienced,
and[¢ouldlagainlexperience, shortages[ofqualified [émployees. [Competition[for[skilled workers, (éspecially[during [improving
economic fimes, may lincrease the dostoflour labor(and [create @mployee retention and [fecruitment challenges, [as [@mployees with
knowledgeand lexperience Have thelability to [change @mployersrelatively [€asily. Iflsuchdonditions becomeleéxtreme, We may Mot
beldbleltolincrease production fo [timely [satisfy [demand, [and (may (initially [incur higherlabor(and [production costs, which could
adverselyimpact(our(dperating [results [and financial [Condition.

Welthay lincur inexpected [€xpenses, [or [face inanticipated delays, lin [donnection with [éxpansion [plans or investments [we
makeih[Qur business, which[dould [adversely [impact(our [Operating [results.

Itimay takellonger than initially anticipated for us to realize expected results from finvestmentsin research land development
orlacquired (businesses,[asWwell as[initiatives (welhave [implemented tolincrease¢apacity [and[improve [production efficiencies,
automation,[customer(serviceland(other(aspectsofiour(business, Or We may lincurinexpected€xpenses lin[connection [(with [these
matters. Expansion [plansmay involvethe acquisition oflexisting thanufacturing (facilities that require ipgradesand improvements
orlthemeed(to Build mew manufacturing facilities. [Suchactivities may [be delayed orincur inanticipated (dosts[which could have
anladverseleffectlonouroperating esults. [Similarly, [Gompetition for(desirable[production facilities, [éspecially [during [times[of
increasing[production, may lincrease the (Costdflacquiring [productionfacilities lor[limitthe @vailability loflobtaining such facilities.
Inladdition, thestart-up ofloperations/ih mew [facilities may fihcur inanticipated icosts @ndfinefficiencies which tay adversely affect
ourprofitability [during the [ramp [p 0flproductioninthose facilities. Delays lin [the [donstruction, [re-configuration (or [relocation [of
facilitiesldould [resultlin lan@dverselimpact to [our(operating results(dralloss ofimarket share.

Natural [disasters, Whether [or [not[caused by [climate[change, inusual (weather[conditions, (épidemic outbreaks, [terrorist
actsland [political @ventscould disrupt business land resultin lower sales land [otherwise l[ddversely [affectlour financial [performance.

Ourfacilities may belaffected By matural [disasters, [suchas tornadoes, Hurricanes, [fires, floods, [darthquakes, [and kinusual
weather conditions, @s Well @slother external €vents such @slepidemicloutbreaks, terrorist attacks lor disruptive ipolitical ievents, any
onelofwhichcould adversely affect/dur businessland resultinlowersales. In the levent thatlone lof our manufacturinglordistribution
facilities Was [affected by(d(disaster(dr(other(event, wecouldbe forced [fo [shift production(toone (0flour(dther facilities[dr [tb [Gease
operations. Although (Wwe aintain[insurancefor[damage toour[property[and[disruptionoflour business/from/¢asualties, such
insurance may motbe [Sufficientto [cover[all loflour[potential Tosses. [Any [disruption [in [ourthanufacturing [Capacity [could havedn
adverse impact(on[ourl(ability fo [produce sufficient/inventory [0fldour [products (ormay [require [us[to [incur(additional [éxpenses [in
order(to[producel(sufficient/inventory, [@nd[therefore, maylddversely [affectlour(riet(sales [@nd [Operating [results. [Any [disruption[or
delay [atlour thanufacturing(or [distribution [facilities[0r [customer [Service [denters could impair our ability [to heetthe [demands [0f
ourlcustomers, landlourdustomers may(cancelldrders [or[purchase [products fromour[dompetitors, whichcould @dversely [affect our
businessland(operating results.

Wehavelrecently [entered ew [markets in [order [fo [@nhance lour [growth [potential. Wncertainties with [respect [fo these mew
markets(douldlimpact(dur(operating(results.

Weldrelaleading [supplierlofidomponents(for[RVslandcurrently havelalsignificantshare 0fthe market [for [certain(oflour
products, which [limits [our [@bility [to [éxpand our(tharket [share forthose [products. [Wehavehadeinvestments[in[order[to [expand
thelsalelofldurproductslihl@djacentindustries, such as buses, frucks, pontoon boats and trains, where we thay have less familiarity
with[OEM or [donsumer [preferences [and (could [encounter difficulties/in/attracting [dustomers(dueltolareduced level (0f familiarity
with [our brands. We havelalsomadeinvestments/tb [expand [the[sale [oflour[products(in [the [aftermarket0flourlindustries,and are
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exploringopportunities(tolincreaselexportisales(ofiourproductsto linternational harkets. (ILimited [0Operating [@xperience(dr limited
brand [rfecognition(inmew markets tay limit(our business/éxpansion(strategy. ILack[ofldemand [for[our productsin(these arkets
orlcompetitive[pressures frequiring islto lower iprices [for lour products idould @dversely impactlour business igrowth linlthese markets
and(our results(ofioperations.

Aslwelgrow,[wewilllface the risk [that(our [existing rfesources [and [systems, ihcluding hanagementresources, @ccounting
and [finance personnel land (operating systems, mhay be ihadequate to supportldurigrowth. Wecannotlassure you ithat wewill beable
tolretain(the[personnel [or(make the [changesin[our(systems [that[thay [Be required [fo [Support[our [growth. Failure [fosecure these
resourcesand(implement(theselsystems(on (a[timely[basis/could lavean/ddverseleffect/ondur(results dfloperations. Inladdition,
hiring(additional (personnel dnd implementing[¢hangesand [énhancements [fo our(systems [will [fequire dapital (éxpendituresdand
otherlincreased [dosts[that[could alsohavelan/adverselimpacton dur(results(ofldperations.

Iflacquired businesses [dre(niot[successfully lintegratedinto [our[Operations, [our [financial (condition [and [Operating [results
couldbeladverselylimpacted.

Welhave completed [several [Business [dcquisitions [and thay [continue [to [éngage [in[acquisitions [Or[similar(activities, such
asfjointventuresand(dther business fransactions. [Qur @bility foigrow [through dcquisitions Will depend, ih [part, [on the @vailability
oflsuitablelcandidates [atlacceptable prices, terms, landconditions, lour ability to dompete leffectively for @cquisition candidates, and
thelavailability afidapital land personnel to .complete suchlacquisitionsand run thelacquired business effectively. [Such @cquisitions,
joint¥entures and(dther Business[transactions linvolve [potential risks, including:

+ thelfailureltolsuccessfullyintegrate departments(and(systems, [including 1T [@anddccounting[systems, [technologies,
booksland recordsland [procedures,

» theneedforladditional investments post-acquisition [that/could be(greaterthan @nticipated,

» thelassumption/(ofiliabilities [0flthe(acquired Businesses [thatcould e [greater than anticipated,

* incorrectlestimates madelin(the dccounting forldcquisitions,incurrence(ofnon-recurring (¢harges,dnd (write-offlof
significantlamounts(6figoodwill [or(other a@ssets [thaticould @dversely [affectlour Operating results, land

» thelpotentialloss oflkey lemployees(or existing [dustomers(dr(ddverse @ffectsonlexisting business relationshipswith
suppliersand[customers.

Integrating(acquired(dperations/is(a(significant(challenge and [there ismo dssurance [that(weWwill [be [@ble[to (manage the
integrations(successfully. If[Welare[unable[to efficiently [integrate these[businesses, the [attention (dflour[management(¢ould (be
diverted(from[our[existing[operations [dnd[the dbility [0f the anagement teams [at[these Business units[fo (meetOperational (and
financial [expectations(could[beladverselyimpacted, Wwhich[¢ould [impair[our[ability [tolexecute[our businessplans. Failure[to
successfullylintegratelacquiredloperations(ortbrealizelthe lexpected (benefitsoflsuchlacquisitions may Havelan ddverse impacton
ourresults(ofloperationsland financial [dondition.

Aslweldxpand[ourbusinesslinternationally, wewill[besubject [to[new [Operational land [financial [risks.

Welhavelbeen[gradually[ growing[salesloverseas, primarily[in[Europeland[Australia,[and[export[sales tepresented
approximately2ipercent, Ipercentand lipercentloficonsolidated netsalesin2016,2015and 2014, respectively. We plan to dontinue
pursuinglinternational lopportunities. InMay 2016, 5ve dcquired (Project2000(8S.r.1.,[@hanufacturer dfimotorized entry [steps, bed
lifts[and RV laccessories, located mear (Florence, Italy, as(d[foundation for ILCIin [the [European RV market. In February 2017, e
alsoldcquired(SessaKlein[S.p.A.,@manufactureroflhighly(éngineered [Side window systems [for both high [Speed [and [commuter
trains, located (near [Varese, Italy. [Theacquisition 0f[Sessa Klein introducesus to [aiew [ddjacent industry [for the European [@nd
U.S. [train markets, @nd, webelieve, will @ccelerate the [dpportunities o léxpand our productofferings [for the Buropean RV market.

Business loutside ofthe United [States is subject to Marious risks, many lof which lare beyond duricontrol, including: [ddverse
politicalland économic(conditions; [changes [in[tariffs, [frade [Testrictions, frade[dgreements, [and [taxation; [difficulties [in [hanaging
orloverseeing [foreign loperations land l@gents; [differencesinregulatory lenvironments, labor [practices @nd market [gractices; [cultural
and(linguistic(differences; foreign(currency [fluctuationsland limitations [on(the [repatriation [0ffunds becauseof foreign [éxchange
controls; [different liability standards; and intellectual fproperty laws [dficountries Which(do mot [protect(our rights in[durintellectual
property [tb [the [samelextentas the laws [0flthe [United [States. (The0ccurrencelor [donsequences [dflany of these [factors thay havelan
adverseimpact(onour operating [results(and financial [dondition, as well @s[impact(our [@bility [fo Operate in[international tharkets.

Thelloss[ofkey management(could feduceour [dbility [fo [éxecute[our[business strategy [and [could [ddversely [affect (our
businessland(resultsofloperations.
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Welareldependent(onthe knowledge, [eéxperience land skill loflour(leadership team. (Thelossofthe Services (afloneor more
keymanagers orlthe failure to attractor retain iqualified thanagerial, technical, sales land marketing, Operations and lcustomer service
staffidould impairlour ability tolconductl@and manage ([dur business [and léxecute [dur business strategy, which would havean @dverse
effectlondur Business, financial [condition @nd [results (0fidperations.

Ourbusiness li§ subject/to iumerous|international, federal, [stateland local regulations, and increased costs dficompliance,
failure linlour Compliance [éfforts [orleventsbeyondourcontrol (dould result in [damages, [€xpenses [or liabilities ithat could [ddversely
impact[ur(financial [dondition and[dperating [results.

Welare[subject[to mumerous/federal,[state/and(localltegulations/governingthe[manufacture(and(sale[ofldur[products,
includingregulations and standards promulgated by fthe National Highway Mraffic Safety Administration (I‘'NHTSA”)lof the United
States[Department(ofl Transportation[(“DOT”), the [Consumer[Products[Safety [Commission, the United [States Department[of
Housingland Urban Development (*HUD”), land[donsumer safety lstandards promulgated by state regulatory lagenciesland industry
associations. [The [failure to[domply With[present(or futureregulations [@nd [standards(could [Subjectiis[fo lawsuits, [ddministrative
penalties, and[civil [Hemedies, including[fines, [injunctions, and [tecalls [oflour [products. [Salesdnd manufacturingloperations [in
foreigndountries may besubjectito similarregulations. Any majorirecalls oflour products, voluntary lor ihvoluntary, dould adversely
impact[our reputation, het(sales, financial dondition(and Operating [results. [Changes [inlaws [or [regulations [thatlimpose@dditional
regulatory [requirements(on s dould lincrease [our(dostiofidoingBusiness [0r festrictOurldctions, [Gausing [Our [fesults[df[dperations
tolbelddverselylaffected. Inladdition, lour failureto[domply [with present [or future regulations(could [resultlin finesbeinglimposed
on(us, [potential(civilland(criminal diability, [Suspension dflsales or production (or(cessation (0f[Operations.

Further, [¢ertainU.S. [and [foreign laws dnd [regulations(affect(our [activities. [Areas (df durbusiness [@ffected By [Such laws
and[degulationslinclude, (butldre[not limited to, labor, (advertising, ¢onsumer protection, [quality lof[services, [Warranty, product
liability, real [estate, lintellectual [property, tax, limportland @xport duties, tariffs, Competition, [environmental, [and health [@nd safety.
Welarelalsolsubject(tol¢ompliance [Wwith[theU.S. Foreign Corrupt[Practices[Act[(“FCPA”), and[other anti-corruptionand(anti-
bribery [laws(applicable [to[our(operations. [Compliance (withtheselaws(and [0thers(thay (be[dnerous(dnd [Costly, [attimes, [and (thay
belinconsistent[from [jurisdiction to[jurisdiction, ' which[further[¢omplicates ¢ompliance efforts. Violations[ofltheselaws and
regulations/dould lead [to[significant[penalties, including[testraints(onour eéxport[or import privileges, thonetary fines, [criminal
proceedings and regulatorylor other actionsithaticould @dversely affect ouriresultsldfloperations. We have linstituted various policies
and[procedures [fo eénsure/dompliance. However, We [dannot [@ssure [you that @mployees, [Contractors, Vendors/or(our @gents Will Mot
violate such(laws(andregulations(orour(policies and [procedures.

Inladdition, [potentially [significant/expenditures/could[be fequired in[order to[comply [With[évolving healthcare, health
and[safety(laws, [tegulations orother[pertinent[tequirementsthat[may[beladopted orlimposedlin[the future by governmental
authorities. Qurdperatingprofitmargin/in 2016 was impacted by Higher health insurance [dosts, largely [due [to increased employee
participation, which e believelis largely [due to[the iew [healthcare fequirements, [and [dperating[profitWwill likely [dontinue [fo (be
impactedin[future(periods.

Ourlrisk hanagement[policies[and[procedures thay mot be fully[éffectivelinlachievingtheir[purposes.

Ourlpolicies, [procedures, [controlsand(dversighttothonitor(and thanageour [énterprise [risks thay Mot [be fully (éffective
inldchievingtheir purposeand may leavelexposure o identified [or inidentified risks. [Pastlor future misconduct by [ourlémployees
orlvendors(douldresultlin violations [of law by [us, [fegulatory [sanctions dnd/or [Serious teputational harm[or (financial (harm. (We
monitor(durlpolicies, [procedures(and(controls; however, welcannot(assureyou thatlour(policies, [procedures(and controls [will be
sufficient/to [preventall forms @fimisconduct. We review [ur[dompensationpolicies [@nd [practices(as[part(dfiour(overall @nterprise
risk[ management/ program, [butlit[is[ possible[that dbur[ compensation[policies[ couldlincentivize[inappropriate[tisk[taking[or
misconduct. [If[such inappropriate [risks[0r thisconduct[dccurs, lit[is [possible thatlit(could have dnddversedffect(on [Our results (0f
operationsand/or[dur [financial [condition.

Ourloperations|are[subjecttold¢ertain [énvironmental [laws [and [tegulations,[and[¢osts [of[compliance, [investigation [ or
remediation 0fleénvironmental (Gonditionscould haveanddverse éffecton (dur (Business [@nd results (0fldperations.

Ourloperations areldlsosubject/tocertain complex [federal, state land local €nvironmental lawsland regulations relating [to
air,[(water, [noise[pollution[andtheuse, [storage, discharge [and [disposal[ofhazardous materials[used [during[the (manufacturing
processes. [Under(certain(ofltheselaws, namelythe [Comprehensive Environmental [Response, Compensation, [and(LLiability [Act
and litsstate counterparts, liability for ihvestigation and remediation afhazardous substancecontamination (at currently lor formerly
owned orldperated facilitiesdr(atithird-party Wastedisposal sites(is joint[@nd [several. Qur(failure to [domply With these regulations
couldlcause ustobecomesubject tolfinesland penalties (or [dtherwise Havelan @dverse impactdn our business. Although we believe
thatlouroperations(and (facilities have beenland(are beingoperatedlindompliance, [in(all(material [tfespects, [with [such[laws and
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regulations, lone(drmore dflour(current(Or former(Operating|sites, (Orlddjacent(sites owned by [third-parties, have Been(dffected by
releasesofhazardous(materials.[As(a[tesult, Wemay [incur [expenditures [for future[investigation [and[temediation, [including [in
conjunction withvoluntary remediation programs lor third party claims. If other potentially responsiblepersons/(*'PRPs”) arefunable
or(otherwise notlobligated(tocontribute [totemediation(costs, welcouldbe lield [fesponsible for their [portion [ofthefemediation
costs, @nd[those(costscould be taterial. Theloperation ofldur hanufacturing facilities [éntails [risks, @nd We [dannot assure [thatour
costsih[relation to[these [@nvironmental matters orlcompliance with €nvironmental laws [in[general (will ot Have [anladverse leffect
onlourbusiness/and results/ofioperations.

Wethay ot (Beable [to [protect lour lintellectual [property [and may (be[subject [to linfringement [Claims.

Welrely lon[certain frademarks [and [patents, including[dontractual [rights Wwith [third [parties. [Qur(successdepends, [in[part,
onlourlability[to [protectlourlintellectual ‘property againstldilution,[infringement, and[¢ompetitive [pressure by defending [our
intellectual [property [tights.[To [protect durproperty [tights, [(we [tely [onintellectual [property [(laws [0fthe [U.S., [European Union,
Canada, land athercountries, as Well [@s[contractual land [dther(legal rights. However, we cannotlassure youthat thesemeasures Will
belsuccessfullinlany(given(instance, [particularlyin dountriesdutsidethe U.S. We endeavor fo [protect[dur [rights; however, third
partiesimay(ihfringetipon(cur intellectual property rights. We [may be forced [tb [take steps [to [protect ur rights, ihcluding [through
litigation. [This[¢ould [Hesultlin(aldiversion[oftesources. The inability [to[protect ourlintellectual [(property [tights ([could [fesult[in
competitors manufacturingland marketing/similar products Which ldould adversely [affect our marketishare and results of operations.
CompetitorsmayIchallenge, ihvalidatelor@voidthe @pplicationlofiouréxisting [or future intellectual property rights(that wereceive
orllicense. Wemay [also belsubjecttolclaims(by [third [parties, seeking tolenforce theirlclaimed intellectual property rights. Theloss
oflprotection for Gur intellectual property [Could feduce the arket Malueafldur products and services, Tower [our [profits, land [could
otherwise havelan(adverse @ffect/on(ourBusiness, financiallcondition(dr(results(ofldperation.

Compliance[Svith [ tonflict (mineral [disclosure[tequirements will[create[additional (compliance[cost[and[imayl[ treate
reputational challenges.

The[SECIadoptedrules[pursuant(toSection 1502 [0flthe Dodd-Frank Wall [Street Reform(and [Consumer Protection(Act
setting[forthnew[disclosure[tequirements/¢oncerning (the[uise Lor[potential iselofl certain[minerals, deemed[¢onflict(minerals
(tantalum, tin,[ gold and[tungsten), that[are imined from the Democratic[Republic[of[Congoandladjoining[¢ountries. These
requirementsmecessitate[due(diligencelefforts[on our part(folassess Whethersuch(minerals/areuised(in ‘ourproducts[in[order fo
makethe relevant(requiredlannualdisclosuresthat began(inMay[2014. WeHave lincurred [Costs [and [diverted [internal resources [fo
comply (with[these(disclosurerequirements, including for(diligence[to[determinethe [Sources [0fthose (thinerals [thatmay (be ised
ormnecessary to the production oflour products. Compliance costs are expected to continue in future periods, siibject to any regulatory
changesimplemented by the mew [administration in[Washington, D.C.[Further[action(or[¢larification[from the [SEC[or[d[court
regarding required(disclosurescouldfesultlin reputational (challenges(thatcould limpact future[sales/iflwe determine [that[dertain
oflour[products(containmineralsmot/determined [fo (be[donflict[free [Or[if(weldre inable[fo [sufficiently [verify [the [origins [for[all
conflictmineralsiised finldurproductsland are required ‘to make suchdisclosures.

Iflourinformation fechnology [systems[fail t0 [ferform adequately(orare breached, ldur(operations(dould be [disrupted land
couldlddversely(affect(durbusiness, reputationand results [0floperation.

Thelefficientoperation[oflour (business/dependsonlourlinformation technology(systems.[Welrely (on[ourlinformation
technology [Systems|to effectively hanagelour business data, inhventory, [supply (chain, [Order [entry and [fulfillment, hanufacturing,
distribution, Warranty l@dministration, ihvoicing, collection of payments, land otherbusiness [processes. We use information systems
toreportland supportthe audit/dfldurloperational @nd financial results. [Additionally, we rely upon information systems fin our sales,
marketing, (human [tesources dand[¢ommunication [éfforts. [ The [failure [ofl ourlinformation[technology [Systemsfo [perform [as[we
anticipate(could[disruptlour(business(and[could[resultin fransaction(errors, [processing inefficiencies, and(the Toss[oflsales [dnd
customers, ¢ausing ourbusinessand[tesults [of operations[to[Suffer.[Inladdition, ourlinformation technology[Systems may [he
vulnerabletoldamage orlihterruptionfrom[dircumstances beyond our(control, lincluding fire, natural [disasters, [Security (Breaches,
telecommunications failures, computer Viruses, hackers,and[dtheranipulation or improper fuse dfloursystems. Any [such€vents
couldiresultlinlegalclaims lor[proceedings, liability [dr (penalties inder [privacy laws, [disruption/in[dperations, l@and [damage [to [our
reputation, Whichlcould adversely @ffectlour business. Due tolourireliancelon dur information systems, wehavelestablished various
levelsof security, backup and disaster recovery procedures. Further, we have selectedland have begun implementing Ainew enterprise
resourceplanning[(“ERP”)[system, ‘the full implementation[6fiwhich(is[éxpected fo take[several years; however, there thay (be
other(challenges(and [risksds weipgradeand(standardize ([Gur[ERPIsystemdn(alcompany-wide Basis.

Additionally, becauseWwedccept(debitland credit(cards [for[payment,[wedresubject [tothe [Payment[Card (Industry Data
Security [Standard [(the[TPCI(Standard”), lissued [by [the Payment[Card (Industry[Security [Standards[Council. [The[PCI[Standard
contains[¢ompliancel guidelines[with [tegard [to[our[$ecurity[$surrounding(the physicaland[¢électroniclstorage, [processingland
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transmission of( cardholder( data. [ Complying[with[the PCI[Standard[ and[implementing|[ related[procedures, [technologyand
information security measures frequires significantresourcesland longoing @ttention. Costsland potential problemsland interruptions
associatedwith(theimplementation0fnew dripgraded [systems [and technology [such(as those mecessary [to haintain dompliance
withlthe PCIStandard (or with[rhaintenance or [ddequate support (0féxisting [systems [Couldalso[disrupt(orreduce the Efficiency [0f
ourloperations. Any material ihterruptions [dr failures inlourpayment-related Systems/could have lan @dverse effecton lour business,
financial [condition(and [results lofldperations.

Welcould lincur warranty[claims[in €xcess [0f reserves.

Welreceivelwarrantyclaims/from [dur(customers[in [the ordinary course [0f[our business. [Although we thaintain [reserves
for(such(claims, which toldate liave Beenladequate, thereldan Be Mo [dssurance [that Warranty [éxpense levels Will femain[at current
levelsdrithatisuchreservesiwill continueto beladequate. [Alsignificantlincrease ih Warranty [claims l€xceeding dur current warranty
expensellevelsicould havelan(adverse éffection(durresults 0floperations(and [financial (condition.

Inladditiontolthe Costsa@ssociated With the dontractual Warranty [coverage [providedldnldur products, welalso dccasionally
incur costsas @iresult/ofadditional service actions ot covered by durwarranties, including productirecallsland customer satisfaction
actions.Althoughwelestimateland reserve(forthedostofltheseServiceldctions, therelcanBe Mo [@ssurance thatléxpense levels will
remain(atidurrentlevels(orsuch reserves will [dontinue [fo be adequate.

Welhay (be [subjectto [product liability ([claims [if [people(dr [property lare Harmed by [the [products welsell.

Some(oflthe[products/welsell mayexpose us[to[productliability [¢laims(relating[fo [personallinjury, [death,[dr[property
damage, and may require [product recalls [or[dther @ctions. Although we thaintain liability l[@nd [product recalllinsurance, Welcannot
beldertain that/dur(coverage will beladequate for(liabilities [dctually lincurred [or that[insurance Will[Gontinue [fo (be[@vailable [tous
on/économicallyreasonable terms, (or(at(all. In@ddition, [dvenliflaproductliability [claim ik Hiot successful lor[is ot [fully [pursued,
thenegativelpublicity [Ssurrounding [d[productrecall lor[any [assertion (thatdur [productsdaused [property [damage or[personal linjury
couldldamagelour(brand[identity [and [our [teputation [with [éxisting [and [potential [ ¢onsumers [and (have[an(adverseleffect onlour
business, [financial [dondition and results 0f(operations.

Weldouldlincurlassetimpairmentcharges for/goodwill, lintangible @ssets or[Gther long-lived [assets.

Alportion/ofiourltotal [@ssets(as 0fDecember(31,2016 arelcomprised [0figoodwill, [intangible [@ssets and[otherlong-lived
assets. [Atlleastlannually, wereview [goodwill (for[impairment. TLong-lived(assets, identifiable[intangibleassets [@nd [goodwillare
alsoreviewed[forimpairmentWwhenever(évents(orichanges [in [dircumstances [indicate thelcarrying [@amount(oflan @sset tay Mot be
recoverable ffrom futurecash flows. Theselevents lorlcircumstances/could includealsignificant/change in the business [climate, legal
factors, dperatingperformance indicators, dompetition, [sale orldisposition/dfialsignificantportion dfithe businesslor dther factors.
Ifithe[carrying Walue(dflallbong-lived(assetlis[considered limpaired, @n impairmentichargeis[fecorded forthe[amount by which [the
carrying value ofithelong-lived @ssetléxceeds lits fairvalue. (Qur(determination 0f future [cash flows, future recoverability land [fair
value dflourllong-lived [assetslincludessignificant lestimates [and [@ssumptions. (Changesih those @stimates orlassumptions or lower
thanlanticipated [future(financial [performance(thay [fesult(in[the[identification éflan [impaired[assetland [a[non-cashimpairment
charge, Wwhich/douldbe thaterial.[Anysuchchargecould adversely [affectourdperating(results(and financial [dondition.

Ourlstock [pricemay [bevolatile.

Thelpricedflour/dommon/stock thay [fluctuate widely, depending iipon d mumber(ofifactors, thany [0f[which are[beyond
ourldontrol. These(factorslinclude: the [perceived prospectsdfiourbusiness [and Qur industriesas @whole; [differences between (our
actual[financiallandloperating fesults and [those[éxpected by linvestors andanalysts;[¢hangeslinanalysts’ [fecommendations or
projections; [ changes[ affecting the availability [ ofl financing[in[thel wholesalel and [ consumer[ lending markets;[ actions[ or
announcements by competitors;ichanges in the regulatory environment ih which we bperate; significantsales of shares by aiprincipal
stockholder; dctions[taken by [stockholders(thatmay [be[contrary [to Board[ofDirector recommendations; dnd [changeslingeneral
economic(ortharket/donditions. Tnladdition, stock marketsgenerally [éxperience [significant [price ldnd Wolume volatility from time
toltimewhichmay(adversely [affect/the arketprice (0f[dur[common(stock for[reasons inrelated [to [Gur [performance.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
None.

Item 2. PROPERTIES.
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The Company’simanufacturing operations are conducted at facilities that are used for both manufacturingand warehousing.
Many loflthe [properties listed manufactureland warehouse products sbld through both the OEM Segment land A ftermarket Segment.
Square footagelis notallocated lacross the lsegments. Ih laddition, the [Company mhaintains administrative facilities used fororporate
andlddministrative [functions. The[Company’s[primary ddministrative [0ffices [are located in [Elkhart[and (Goshen, Indiana. [Total
administrative $pace[tompany-widelaggregatesapproximately 251,000 square[feet.[At[December 31,2016, the Company’s
properties(wereas [follows:

City State/Province Square(Feet Owned Leased
Double[Springs Alabama 109,000 ™
Gilbert Arizona 11,600 v
Rialto California 62,700 |
Lakeland Florida 15,000 v
Kissimmee Florida 4,246 v
Fitzgerald Georgia 79,000 2]
Nampa Idaho 125,000 ™
Nampa Idaho 83,500 [
Nampa Idaho 22,000 ™
Twin[Falls Idaho 16,060 v
Goshen Indiana 410,000 ™
SouthBend Indiana 379,902 v
Goshen Indiana 355,960 ]
Goshen Indiana 341,000 v
Elkhart Indiana 308,864 ]
Elkhart Indiana 250,000 |
Elkhart Indiana 160,000 ]
Goshen Indiana 153,200 |
Goshen Indiana 144,500 1]
Fort(Wayne Indiana 140,000 2]
Middlebury Indiana 122,226 ™
Auburn Indiana 119,000 v
Goshen Indiana 118,125 |
Goshen Indiana 110,000 |
Elkhart Indiana 102,900 v
Middlebury Indiana 101,776 2]
Goshen Indiana 95,960 v
Elkhart Indiana 92,000 v
Goshen Indiana 87,800 ™
Elkhart Indiana 87,000 0|
Goshen Indiana 74,200 ™
Howe Indiana 60,000 |
Goshen Indiana 53,500 ]
Elkhart Indiana 28,000 v
Goshen Indiana 22,000 v
Elkhart Indiana 18,000 v
Millersburg Indiana 10,000 2]
Calenzano Italy 15,000 ]
SterlingHeights Michigan 37,018 ™
Jackson[Center Ohio 12,000 v
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City State/Province Square Feet Owned Leased
Pendleton Oregon 56,800 2
McMinnville Oregon 35,700 v
Denver Pennsylvania 40,200 ™
Granby Quebec 65,000 v
Chester South[Carolina 108,600 ™
Gaffney South(Carolina 55,000 v
MyrtleBeach South[Carolina 9,800 ]
Springfield Tennessee 60,000 ™
Waxahachie Texas 195,000 ]
Kaysville Utah 70,000 ™
5,234,137 @

(1) At December 31, 2015, the Company used an aggregate of 4,791,182 square feet for manufacturing and warehousing.

At[December 31,2016, [the[Companyiaintained[thefollowingfacilities, or[partial (facilities, not[¢urrently iised [in
production. The[Elkhartproperty lease@xpiresinMay 2017 [and [the femaining [properties [arecurrently leased[to [third parties.

City State/Province Square(Feet Owned Leased
Phoenix Arizona 61,000 ]
Mishawaka Indiana 332,356 |
Elkhart Indiana 144,000 ]
SouthBend Indiana 134,235 |
Mishawaka Indiana 107,600 ]
779,191

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Inithe ormal(course (0flbusiness, the Company [is subject(to proceedings, lawsuits, regulatory ldgency linquiries land [dther
claims.All[suchmatters[aresubject(folincertainties dnd outcomes/thatlare mot(predictable withdssurance. Whilethese matters
couldmaterially(affectdperating [results when [resolved|ih [future [periods, litis[thanagement’s[dpinion[that, [after final [disposition,
includinglanticipated ihsurance recoverieslincertaindases, lany monetary liability lor [financiallimpact/to the Company beyond that
provided [forlin(the Consolidated [Balance[Sheet[as[of(December 31,2016, would[tiotbematerial [tothe [Company’s[financial
position[orlannual lresults ofloperations.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Notlapplicable.
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PART IT

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

AsloflJanuary(31,2017,therewere[343 (holders(ofthe[Company’s/dommon stock, [in[dddition[to (beneficial [owners [of
shares (held[in (broker (and mominee mames. [The[Company’s[¢common[stock [frades[on[the New [York [Stock [(Exchange inder(the
symbol LCII”.

Information(concerningthe high(and Tow [¢losing[prices[oflthe[Company’s[Gommon(stock for(cach quarter[during2016
and 2015 is(set[forthih Note 16 0f'the Notes [to[Consolidated [Financial [Statements [in {tem (8 [0fthis[Report.

Equity [CompensationPlan Information/asof/December31,2016:

Plan(category Number(of Weighted(@verage | Number(of
securities exercisepricelof |securities
to(belissuedipon |outstanding remaining(dvailable
exercise(of options, warrants | forfuturelissuance
outstanding and[rights under [equity
options, [warrants compensation plans
andlrights (excluding

securitiesreflected
inlcolumn((a))
(a) (b) (©)

Equity [compensation [plans [@pproved by [security Holders 765,949 $0.60 1,049,752

Equity [compensation [plans mot/approved By [security hiolders N/A N/A N/A

Total 765,949 $0.60 1,049,752

Pursuant(to(the[LCI Industries[Equity [Awardand Incentive Plan,[As[Amended(and Restated [(the['Plan”), which[Wwas
approved by [stockholdersinMay 2011, the Company mhay [granttolitsdirectors, €mployees, and [Consultants [equity-basedlawards,
suchl@slstock dptions, restricted stock landdeferred stock inits. The number(of'shares(available for(granting @wards tinder the Rlan
was (1,049,752 [atDecember31,2016,land 1,305,440 at Mecember31,12015. ThePlan(is ithe Company’sonly l[dquity [dompensation
plan.

In€achi0f2014and 2015, the Company paid @ispecialCash dividend 6f$2.00 perishare o holders ofrecord oflitsidommon
stock.Mn 2016, the[Company linitiated (@ [egular/quarterly [dividend [6f'$0.30 [pershare, hich WwaslincreasedTater[inthe [year o
$0.50per(share.Muring 2016, fotal[dividends0fT$1.40 pershareoficommon[stock, Mepresenting [dn [dggregate [0{($34.4 illion,
were [paid [tb stockholders.

Futureldividend policy with [respectto the [common [stock Wwill Be [determined by the Board lofDirectors 0f the [Company
inllightlofiprevailing[financial meeds(and [earnings(ofithe[Company [and [other [relevant[factors. [The [Company’s/dividend[policy lis
notlsubject(tolspecificlrestrictions inlits financing [agreements, but(ratherlislimited by(dertain (0flthe[debt dovenant(calculations.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

Thelfollowing(table summarizes(certain(selected lliistorical (financialland[0perating information 0flthe[Company [and [is
derivedfromthe[Company’sConsolidated Financial Statements. Historical financialdatamay motbe indicative [fithe Company’s
future [performance. The linformation(set forth below [should [be readlinlconjunction With Management’sIDiscussion land Analysis
ofFinancial [Condition and Results(of[@perations”landthe Consolidated [Financial [Statements [@and Notes [thereto includedin Ttem
7and Ttem (8 [ofTthis Report, respectively.

Year[EndedDecember(31,
(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Operating(Data:
Netlsales $ 1,678,898 $ 1,403,066 $ 1,190,782 § 1,015,576 $ 901,123
Severance $ — 8 3,716 $ — S — —
Saleloflextrusion[dssets $ — 5 — 1,954 $ — —
ExecutiveSuccession $ — $ — $ — 3 1,876 $ 1,456
Operating[profit $ 200,850 $ 116,254 $ 95,487 $ 78,298 $ 58,132
Income beforelincome [taxes $ 199,172 $ 114,369 §$ 95,057 $ 77,947 $ 57,802
Provision [for ihcome [faxes $ 69,501 $ 40,024 $ 32,791 $ 27,828 $ 20,462
Netlihcome $ 129,671 § 74,345 $ 62,266 $ 50,119 § 37,340
Netlincome perlcommon share:
Basic $ 526 $ 3.06 § 260 $ 2.15 $ 1.66
Diluted $ 520 $ 302§ 256 $ 2.11 $ 1.64
Cash(dividends[per[common(share $ 140 $ 2.00 $ 200 $ — 2.00
FinancialData:
Networking Capital $ 218,043 $ 146,964 $ 100,451 $ 107,339 $ 84,243
Total@ssets $§ 786904 § 622,856 $ 543,841 $§ 453,184 $§ 373,868
Long-term(dbligations $ 87,284 $ 85,419 §$ 41,758 $ 21,380 $ 19,843
Stockholders’ [dquity $ 550,269 $ 438,575 §$ 394,898 $ 313,613 $ 284,245

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.

This[Management’s[Discussionland[Analysisof{ Financial (Condition[and[Results[ofl Operations shouldbeltead in
conjunction Wwith the Company’s[Consolidated Financial [Statements(and Notes [thereto [included [ih Ttem (8 [6f'this Report.

LClIndustries [(“LCII”,land [collectively [withits[subsidiaries, [the (fCompany”), throughits[Wholly-owned [subsidiary,
Lippert[Components, [Inc.[and its[subsidiaries (collectively, I‘Lippert(Components” Lor 'LCI”), [supplies, domestically Land
internationally, ld[broad array loficomponents [for the leading original iéquipment anufacturers (F*OEMs”) [dflrecreational vehicles
(“RVs”)land adjacentlindustries including buses; trailers used to haul boats, livestock, [dquipmentlandother Cargo; trucks; pontoon
boats; [frains; thanufactured homes;[and modularliousing. The [Company [also [Supplies domponents [fo [the related [aftermarkets (0f
theselindustries,[primarily by [selling to retaildealers, wholesale distributors/andservicelcenters. ]

TheCompany [previously had[two [reportablesegments, [the rfecreational (Wehicle[products[Ssegment [(the RV [Segment”)
and[the(manufactured (housing [products(segment[(the 'MH[Segment”). [ The[Company [has[tecently [increasedits focus on the
significant(opportunities [in[theaftermarket for(its[products, [primarily [salesto retail [dealers, Wholesale[distributorsand[service
centers./Additionally, GverthepastiSeveral years, salesofidomponents for manufactured homesHave become [@lsmaller part(ofithe
Company’s(business, largely due to[the [growth the[Company (has (experienced Wwith respect foits[components[sold[to[customers
for(traditional recreational Wehicles(asiwell as(the lexpanded uiseloflits[domponents(in (other on-RV [applications, which werefer
toldslddjacentlindustries. ([Unit(growth forMMH [Segment(products has[dlso beenlower[over [thelast(decade, [primarily (due [to[the
realéstate, (credit/dnd[économiclenvironment, lincluding [the(availability [ofsite built iomes/atistable(prices [and high interest rate
spreads(betweenconventional mortgages|(for site-builthomes [and loans forthanufactured homes. In [responseto [these lchanges [in

22



the[Company’s business, subsequentlto March(31,2016, the [Company modifiedlits internal reporting structure, reflecting ldichange
inhow its [¢hiefloperating [decisiontaker (“CODM”)(assesses the [performance (0fthe[Company’s[Operating [fesults [and[thakes
decisionsaboutiresource allocations. The Company’s new réportable segments are the OEM Segmentand the A ftermarket Segment.
Intersegment(sales(arelinsignificant.[At(December 31,2016, the[Company[0perated 48 manufacturing(and(distribution facilities
located(throughout(the Wnited [States and in[Canadalandtaly.

Netlsalesland [dperating [profitwerelas follows[for(the [years/énded December31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Netlsales:
OEM [Segment:
RVIOEMs:
Travel frailers @nd fifth-wheels $ 1,099,882 $ 938,787 $ 841,497
Motorhomes 116,191 86,513 70,332
Adjacentlindustries[OEMs 332,018 274,760 215,197
Total DEM [Segment riet(sales 1,548,091 1,300,060 1,127,026
Aftermarket/Segment:
Total[AftermarketSegmentmetisales 130,807 103,006 63,756
Total met(sales $ 1,678,898 §$ 1,403,066 $ 1,190,782
Operating[profit:
OEMI[Segment $ 180,850 $ 105,224 $ 88,744
AftermarketSegment 20,000 14,746 8,697
Total [Segment Operating [profit 200,850 119,970 97,441
Severance — (3,716) —
Saleloflextrusion/assets — — (1,954)
Total [Operating [profit $ 200,850 $ 116,254 $ 95,487

Corporateleixpenses areallocated between the segments based ipon nletisales. Accretion related to ontingent consideration

islihcludedin thesegment(fo whichlit(relates.

NetlsaleslandOperating [profit by [Segment, [as [a[percent 0fthe total, wereas follows for the [yearsénded December31:

2016 2015 2014
Netlsales:
OEM Segment 92% 93% 95%
Aftermarket[Segment 8% 7% 5%
Total metisales 100% 100% 100%
Operating[Profit:
OEM [Segment 90% 88% 91%
Aftermarket/Segment 10% 12% 9%
Total [SegmentOperating [profit 100% 100% 100%
Operating[profitimargin(by [segmentwas(asfollows[for(the years/énded December(31:
2016 2015 2014
OEM [Segment 11.7% 8.1% 7.9%
Aftermarket[Segment 15.3% 14.3% 13.6%

ThelCompany’s[OEM [Segmentanufactures [Or(distributes @ broad(array [0f[Gomponents [for the leading[DEMs[0f[RVs
and(adjacentlindustries, lihcluding(buses; [trailers hisedto haul boats, livestock, [équipmentland(other(dargo; frucks; pontoon boats;
trains; thanufactured hiomes; [and thodular Housing. [Approximately 71 [percent[df'the (Company’s[ODEM [Segment net sales forthe
yearléndedDecember 31,2016 wereldficomponents(fortravel trailerland fifth-wheel RVs, including:
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o [Steellchassislandrelated[domponents o [Hurnitureand(rhattresses

e [Axlesland(suspension(solutions e [Electricland hanualentry[steps

o [Slide-outmechanisms/and(solutions e [Awnings/and/@wning/accessories

o Thermoformed Bath, kitchenand(other[products e [Electronic/domponents

o Vinyl, [aluminum [andframeless windows e [Appliances

o [Manual, [electricland hydraulic/stabilizer(and o [Televisions, Soundsystems, Mavigation
[levelingsystems [systemsland backupidameras

o [Entry, luggage, [patioland ramp(doors o [Other(dccessories

TheAftermarketSegment supplies many [dfithese components to the related @ftermarketichannelsofithe RV land ladjacent
industries, [primarily [fo [retail [dealers, wholesale distributors [and [service[centers. The[Aftermarket[Segment(alsolincludes/thesale
oflreplacement/glassland@awnings(to [fulfill insurance(claims.

Mostlindustries where the Company sellsproductslar wherelits products [are ised historically have (beenlseasonal land lare
generallyatithe highest(levelsWwhen [the Wweatherlishoderate. [Accordingly, the (Company’ssalesand[profits havegenerally heen
the highest/in the second lquarterland lowestin the fourth iquarter. However, because of fluctuationsfinidealer inventories, the impact
oflinternational, mational [@and regional [dconomicconditionsdnd [Gonsumer [¢onfidence [On[retail [sales [0f RV s [@and[other[products
forwhich the Company [sellsits[domponents, the fiming 0f dealer lorders, and the impact 0f severe Weather/conditions lon the fiming
oflindustry-widelshipments from time[fo time, [current[dnd [future [seasonal [industry [trends tay (be [differentthan[in [prior [years.
Additionally, salesofi[domponents [to thelaftermarket/channels ofthese lindustries [tend [to (be [dounter-seasonal.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

OEM Segment

Recreational Vehicle Industry

AnlRVlislavehicleldesigned asltemporary [living[quarters for [fecreational, [damping, [fravel [or [Seasonal ise. [RVs may [Be
motorized ((motorhomes) [dritowable((travel trailers, [fifth-wheel travel trailers, folding [camping trailers and [truck [Gampers).

Thelannuallsales(cycle(forlthe RV lindustry [generally [starts in [Dctoberafter the *OpenHouse” in ([Elkhart, Indiana where
many [0flthe largest RVIOEMs|display [product to RV [retail (dealers, ‘@nd lends a@fter (the [conclusion [0f the [summer [Selling [season [in
September [inthe [following[calendar year. BetweenOctoberand March, [industry-wide wholesale shipments[ofltravel trailer land
fifth-wheel RVshavelhistorically lexceeded retail sales(as dealers build inventories o [supportlanticipatedsales. Between A pril and
September, (thelspringland[summer(selling[seasons, (retail ([sales (of(fravel[trailer(dnd fifth-wheel RV s have historically [eéxceeded
industry-wide Wholesale shipments. Based [on [the [strength [6flretail Sales [and the [currentloutlook from(several RVIOEMsandtheir
dealernetworks, tostlindustry@nalysts(dontinue to [report(that[RV [dealerlinventory [is [in (line Wwith [anticipated [retail [demand.

Accordingto the RecreationVehicle Tndustry Association (FRVIA”),ihdustry-wide Wholesale[shipments (df travel trailer
and[fifth-wheel RVs(in[2016,the[Company’s [primary RV market, [increased(15 [percent tb (362,700 inits, dompared 02015, (as(a
result(of:

*  Anlestimated33,300 unitincreaselinretail demand(in 2016, or 11 [percent, s compared t02015. Th @ddition, retail demand
isltypicallyrevised lupward [in[subsequent thonths, primarily [due [to[delayed RV [registrations.

*  RVIdealerslincreasinginventorylevels by lan lestimated 12,300 units in 2016, icompared o theldecreaselin ihventory levels
of(2,700inits[in2015.

While(the[Company ineasures[itslOEM [Segment[RV 3ales[againstlindustry-wide Wholesale[shipment[statistics,the
underlyinghealthlofithe RV lindustryi§ [determined by [retail demand. [A[domparison [dflithe iumber [ofhinits [and [the year-over-year
percentage[changelinlindustry-wideWwholesale[shipments(and(tetail [Sales [of[fravel [frailers[and (fifth-wheel RV, [as[deported by
Statistical[Surveys, Inc.,[ds Wwelllasthe resulting[éstimated [change [in [dealer [ihventories, for boththe Wnited [States [and (Canada, [i5
as(follows:
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Estimated

Unit
Impaction
Wholesale Retail Dealer
Units Change Units Change Inventories
Yearlénded Iecember31,2016 362,700 15% 350,400 11% 12,300
Yearlended Mecember(31,2015 314,400 5% 317,100 14% (2,700)
Yearlended Mecember(31,2014 298,900 12% 277,300 11% 21,600

According(tothe RVIA, lindustry-widewholesaleshipments (0fhotorhome RVs[in 2016 lincreased [16 [percent(to54,800
unitsdomparedto2015. Retail[demand for hotorhome [RVsalsolincreased 11 [percentin 2016, followinga[l5 [percentlincrease/in
retaill[demand(in2015.

TheRVIAhas[projected [dmodest/increaselinindustry-widewholesale[shipments of travel [trailer [and [fifth-wheel RV's
for2017.Several RV IQEMs, however, [are introducing mew [product lines land @dditional features, land lddding [production(capacity.
Retail saleslof RVshistorically havebeen(closely [tied to [general €conomic conditions, [@s Wwell @s[consumer Confidence which was
abovehistorical [@averages(in[2016.[Additionally, retail [Sales(df[travel [trailer[and[fifth-wheel RVshavelincreased(in 84 [oflthe last
86 months(onadiyear-over-year(basis. Industry resources reportstronglattendance land High[consumer linterestlat RV [shows [around
the[Wnited Statesand [Canadalinlate2016 [andlintocarly 2017.

Although(future(vetail [demand isinherently [incertain, 'RV [industry [fundamentals[in[2016,lincluding[ generally [low
unemployment,low [fuel [prices @ndlavailablecredit for(dealersland RV [consumers, Were strong, [ds @videnced by [the [@stimated (11
percentlincreaselihlindustry-widelretail(sales 0fltravel trailer(and [fifth-wheel RVs. The [Company [believesthelstrong RV lindustry
fundamentals, dided by product innovation, demographic tailwinds, industry promotion and theladvent of strongeridealer networks,
arelpositivelsigns for2017.The Company lalso rfemains idonfidentinlits lability to lexceed industry [growth rates through mew product
introductions, market/ share[ gains, [ aftermarket( sales, acquisitions and[ ongoing investments[in[tesearch and[ development,
engineering, quality [and [Gustomer(service.

Overthelong(term, the[Company[expects RV [industry[sales(to (bedided by positive [ demographics(and(the[continued
popularity [oflthe "RV [Lifestyle”. [ The mumber [0f[donsumers (between [the(dges (0f[55 [dnd [70 [@re[projected [to fotal (56 million By
2020,27percenthigher/than(in(2010, d@ccordingtoU.S. Census figures, dnd[one [in[ten vehicle-owning households between the
ages|0f(50(and[64 lownl(atleastioneRV.The[RVIAlreported uch(oflthesuccess [0flthe RV ihdustryHasbeen driven by lthe Baby
Boomergeneration. Thesize(dfthatigeneration(is beginning [fo Wane, [and younger [generations, Generation X and Millennials(are
becoming(morerelevant(to [futurelindustry [growth. [Generation X [dnd Millennials [are more diverse, [fequiring [new [and [creative
marketing [@pproaches [to(dttract them[tothe RV [industry. The[RVIAhas[an advertising[campaign [promoting[the 'RV Lifestyle”
targeted (@t Both [parents [@ged 30 =149 with children atHome, [@s Welllas(Couples aged (50 164 with Mo children @t Home. Inladdition,
the[RVIOEMs haveldeveloped morelentry level iinits, [specifically [targeting[younger families, in both towablesland motorhomes.
Thelpopularity [ofltraveling [in RVs[to INASCAR [and (other[sporting évents, hore[family-oriented [domestic [vacations, [and using
RVs(@ssecond hiomes, [@re [frends [that[dould [Continue [fo otivate Gonsumer demand for RVs. RVIA studies indicate RV [Vacations
costlsignificantly [less than(other [formsofivacation travel, @venwhen [factoringlinfuel [priceslandthe [dost(0f RV [0wnership. More
details/can be foundlatwww.RVIA.org.

Adjacent Industries

TheCompany’sportfoliolofiproducts iised in[RVs can@lso beiised lin[other(dpplications, lincluding Buses; frailers ised
tolhaul (boats, [livestock, [équipment(and dther(cargo; [trucks; pontoon boats; [trains; manufactured (homes;[and (modularhousing
(collectively,fAdjacentIndustries”).In(many(¢ases, [(OEM¢ustomers[oflthe [AdjacentIndustries(areaffiliated (with[RVIOEMs
throughrelatedsubsidiaries. The Company believes therelare significant Gpportunitiesfin these Adjacent Industries and, @s@result,
fourlofithe last(six Businesslacquisitionscompleted by the Company were focusedlin[Adjacent Industries.

Thelestimated fpotential Content perinitthe (Company thay [supply [fo the Adjacent Industries Varies by [(OEM pproductand
differslfromRVs.As@imeans [fo tunderstand the potential i6fleach of these harkets, hanagement reviews the mumber ofretail uinits
sold. Thefollowing are key [target markets [for[AdjacentIndustries .domponent [sales: [

*  Enclosedltrailers. [Accordingto(Statistical Surveys, lapproximately 176,000, 184,000 and 174,000 enclosed trailers were
sold(ih2016,2015/and 2014, respectively.

*  Pontoon(boats. [Statistical [Surveyslalsorfeported [dpproximately 44,800,[41,300and 38,500 [pontoon (Boats were [Sold [in
2016,2015[and2014,[respectively. ]
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*  Schoolbuses.[AccordingtoWards CommunicationslandR.L. Rolk &[Co.,therewerelapproximately(32,800,29,600and
28,200(school buses(soldin2016,2015and 2014, respectively. [

*  Manufacturedhousing.According tothe Institute for BuildingTechnology land [Safety, there Were lapproximately 81,100,
70,500(and 64,300 mhanufactured liome Wholesale[shipments(in(2016,2015/and 2014, respectively. ]

Aftermarket[Segment

Many bffthe Company’s OEM Segment products are also sold through various aftermarket channels, including/dealerships,
warehouseldistributors(and [Service centers, [as[well(dsdirect(to tetail [dustomers. The [Company (has[teams [dedicated [to[product
training[and[marketing[support(for(its[Aftermarket[customers. The[Companyalsosupports twol¢alll¢centers[tolprovideldquick
responses|to customers [for[both productideliveryand ltechnical [Support. This[supportlis[designed for(d[rapid response o [critical
repairs/solcustomer/downtimelis minimized. The[Aftermarket[Segmentlalsolincludes(the sale(oflreplacement(glass/and [awnings
tolfulfill ihsurancelclaims. Many lofithe laptional ipgrades land mon-critical replacements [are [purchasedoutside lthe Mormal iproduct
sellingseasons, [thereby [Causing [Aftermarket(sales [fo becounter-seasonal.

According(to[the RVIA, [current(éstimated [RV [0Ownership ladlincreased(fo mearly mine milliontinits.[Additionally, [@s(d
resultioflavibrantisecondary market, one thirdoficurrentownerspurchased their RV new While the remaining fwo-thirds purchased
alpreviouslylowned RV.[This vibrant/Secondary mharket(is[a key driver [for the @ftermarket, (asthe [Company [anticipates lowners [0f
previouslylowned RVs will likely upgradeitheir units ldswell las replace partsland dccessories Which have beenlsubjected to mormal
wear[and tear.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2016 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2015
Consolidated Highlights

*  Consolidatedmetisalesfor(theyearended Mecember31,2016[hcreasedfoldrecord$1.7Billion, 20 percent igher
than(consolidated met[Sales (for[the[year(énded Mecember31,120156f($1.4billion.[Acquisitions/completed By [the
Companyin2016added$64 rillionlinmet(sales. The15 Percentincreasein industry-wide Wholesaleshipmentsof
travel ltrailer(and fifth-wheel RVs, [ILCI’s[primary [(OEM [harket, [aswell [@sincreased [content [per RV hinit, [positively
impacted met(sales/growthih2016. [Further, the Company [organically lincreased (sales to [adjacent/industries and [the
aftermarket. [

*  Netlincome(for(the[full-year2016[increased [fo[$129.7 million, 0r[$5.20 per(diluted [share, uip [from metincome [6f
$74.3 illion, [6r[$3.02 [per(dilutedshare,[in 2015. ]

*  Consolidated(operatingprofits(during2016[increased 73 [percent, [0 [$200.9 million (from($116.3 (million(in[2015.
Operating[profitimarginincreasedto[12.0 [percent(in 2016 from (8.3 [percent(in2015.

*  ThelCompany [¢ontinues tb [take [dctions fo limproveitscost[structure. The[Company [Seeks [tb [dontinuously hanage
its(laborl(cost, particularlylindirectlabor, Wwhile [Supporting[the [growth [0flthe [Business. [lLean [manufacturing (teams
continueworking|(to reducelcostland limplementprocesses tb Better hitilize [@vailable floorspace. The Company (has
also(feduced [directlabor(attrition [ Wwhichimproves¢fficiencyand teduces [other[dosts dssociated (with [workforce
turnover.

e Thelcostlofldluminum(and (steel lused in[certain(of the[Company’smanufactured [¢components(declined [during (the
second halflof2015(and ontinued(into2016; However, [dertain[dommodities havelexperienced dostincreasesinthe
secondhalflof[2016 (from market(low [points. [Raw [material [costs Continue [to [fluctuate and(areléxpected [to [remain
volatile.

*  During2016,the[Company [completed five dcquisitions, all[dfwhichHavebeen @ccretive fo darnings:

*  CampingConnection-+ AMyrtle Beach, SouthCarolinaand Kissimmee, Florida RV rrepairland service provider,
with @stimated [@nnual [Sales[0f[$2 million, [completed November2016;

*  AtwoodISeatingandChassis[Components-+An Elkhart, Tndiana-basedseating and chassis/components business
oflAtwood[Mobile[Products, [alsubsidiary[ofl Dometic[Group, [ with[estimated[annual [sales 0f[$30 [million,
completed Wovember(2016;

e Project(2000(S.r.1.[4-[AnTtalian[manufacturer [0finnovative, [Space-saving (bedlifts [and retractable steps, (with
estimated [@nnual sales6{T$ 14 million, dompleted May 2016;

e Flair(Interiors(3-[A[Goshen, Indiana-based [manufacturer [0f[RV [furniture, [(With [éstimated [annual(sales [0 $25
million, completed February[2016;/and
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*  Highwater[ Marine! Furniture[+-[ An[Elkhart, Indiana-based marine[ furniturel operation[ providing[ furniture
solutions for[Highwater Marine, [LLC, dhanufactureroflpontoon [boats. [Estimated [annual [sales [for the iharine
furniture[Operation Were[$20 million, [Completed January2016.

Integration activitiesfortheselacquired (businesses [are inderway [and [proceeding in line with éstablished [plans. The

Company [plans togrow [salesland leveragelits [purchasing[power, thanufacturing(dapabilities, [@ngineering [@xpertise

andIdesignresources(to improve(the dost(structure(ofithe lacquired[Operations.

*  Returnlonlequity [for2016, whichlisldalculated by taking et ihcomeloverequity, improved to26.0 [percent, fromthe
18.4[percent(return(onlequity in2015.

*  In[April,[Juneland [September2016, the[Company [paid(aquarterly [dividend [0f1$0.30 [per[share,[aggregating ($7.3
million,($7.4 million(and[$7.4 million, Tespectively. In December 2016, the [Company [paidd(quarterly [dividend [of
$0.50 perishare, @ggregating($12.4 million.

OEM Segment

Netlsaleslofthe @QEM [Segmentin 2016 fihcreased 19 percent, lor $248 imillion, compared to2015. Netsales of components
to[OEMs were[to the following tharkets for the yearsending December31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 Change
RVIOEMs:
Travel [frailers @nd fifth-wheels $ 1,099,882 $ 938,787 17%
Motorhomes 116,191 86,513 34%
Adjacentlindustries[OEMs 332,018 274,760 21%
Total DEM [Segment fiet/Sales $ 1,548,091 $ 1,300,060 19%

Accordingtolthe[RVIA, lihdustry-wide wholesale shipments/forithe yearslended December(31, were:

2016 2015 Change
Travelltrailer(and fifth-wheel RVs 362,700 314,400 15%
Motorhomes 54,800 47,300 16%

ThelCompany’smetisales growthlini[components(for travel trailerland fifth-wheel RVs(during 2016 éxceeded thelincrease
inlindustry-wide Wwholesalelshipments(ofitravel(trailerand (fifth-wheel RVs[during [the [Same [period [primarily [duetb [acquisitions
completedin2016.

ThelCompany’snet(sales[growth/in[components(for motorhomes/during2016 [éxceeded(thelincreaselin/industry-wide
wholesale[shipments [6fimotorhomes (during[thesame[period [primarily [due to[market [share(gains [and [@cquisitions(completed(in
2016. Over the pastfew lyears, the Company has been expanding its product line of domponents for totorhomes inorder ffo ihcrease
itslcustomer(base [and marketpenetration, land furtherigrowthlisléxpected.

Theltrend(in(the Company’s(average producticontent perRV [produced|is[anfindicator(ofthe[Company’sdverall arket
sharedflcomponents foridew RVs. The Company’s/average [productcontent per [type [0f RV, [dalculated based ipon the [Company’s
netlsales of[éomponents [fo RV OEMs for(the[different(types 0f RVsproduced(forthe yearsénded December(31,divided by(the
industry-wideWholesaleshipments 0flthe [differentfypes[of RV s forthe same period, was:

Contentlper: 2016 2015 Change
Travelfrailerlandfifth-wheel RV $ 3,022 $ 2,987 1%
Motorhome $ 2,011 $ 1,810 11%

ThelCompany’s(dverage [product/content[per(type 0f[RV [éxcludes[international [Sales(and [sales[tothe[A ftermarket(and
AdjacentIndustries. Contentlper RV lislimpacted by [marketshare (gains, [acquisitions, fiew [productlintroductions, and changes(in
selling [prices[forthe[Company’s(products, aswell@s[changes(inthe types 0f RVs[producedindustry-wide.

The[Company’smet(OEM [sales[fo[AdjacentIndustriesincreased[during 2016 [primarily [duefo arket[share[gains [and

acquisitions ¢ompleted(in[2016(and[2015. The[Company[¢ontinuesfobelieve[therelare significantldpportunities/in[Adjacent
Industries.
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Operating[profitlofthe MEM[Segmentwas$180.9 rhillionih 2016, @nlimprovement6fi$75.6 million[compared fo2015.
Theloperating[profit thargin(0fithe[DEM [Segment(in[2016 Was impacted By:

»  BetterlfixedCostlabsorption By [Spreading [fixed [Gosts0veral$248 million Targer(sales base.
* Increasing/salesto/AdjacentIndustries[(OEMs.

*  Lower(material(costs(for[certainraw [materials. [Steel l@and/dluminum(costs[declined(in[the[second halflof[2015[and
continued (into2016. Costs/for[these[commoditieséxperienced [somelincreases(in/the [second [and[third [quarters (of
2016.Material ([dosts, which are[subject/to [global [Ssupply [@and [demand forces, [are (@xpected [tb femain volatile.

»  Salesimix[and[pricing[changes oflproducts, includinglincreased [salesoffifth-wheel[products(which(has(ahigher
margin.

*  Indirectllabor(costsavings linitiated [in [the fourth(quarter(0f'2015 [to feducesuch dosts onan(annualized Basis.

» Investmentsoverithepastseverallyears to increase/capacity and improve operating efficiencies. Further, the [Company
haslimplemented (efficiency [improvements, [includinglean manufacturing[initiatives, lincreased [use of automation

andleémployee [retention [initiatives. The Company (has also feduced(direct labor attrition Wwhichlimproves(efficiency
and[reduces(other(dostslassociated withworkforce [turnover.

»  Lower/grouphealth/and workers’ [compensation/dlaims. The Company [dctively Works [tb hanage [and [reduce these
costs,however, [these [ostsfemain[subjectfo fluctuation.

Partiallyoffset by:

»  Fixed[dostswhichwere[dpproximately [$6 millionto[$7 millionHhigher(thanin2015.Over the(pastidoupleoflyears,
the(Company [made significantlinvestmentsin[hanufacturing ([Capacity, both [facilities [and[personnel, [to [prepare for
theexpected increaseinnetsalesin 2016 and beyond. [haddition to investmentsin fixed costs to expand manufacturing
capacity, [the[Company hasadeimprovementsintharketing, liuman [fesources, [@ngineering, [dustomer(serviceland
otherl(critical [departments. [ The (Company(alsolddded(the teams/from [dcquired (businesses, as (well [ds[amortization
costsloflihtangible [@ssets related [to [those businesses.

*  Whilelthe[Company(seeks to¢ontinuously manage/its[labor[cost, it has(ddded[staff(to [support[the [growth[of the
business. [Thelresultslalsolreflect variable dompensation increases Based [0nlachieving [profitability [targets.

Aftermarket Segment

Netisalesldflthe A ftermarketSegmentin 2016 lincreased 27 percent, or$28 million, compared|to the same [perioddf2015.
Netlsaleslofidomponentswere @dsfollows [for the yearslended MDecember(31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 Change
Total[AftermarketSegmentmetisales $ 130,807 $ 103,006 27%

ThelCompany’smet(salesto(the A ftermarketlincreased during 2016 [primarily [duefo [the[Company’s[focus [on Building
outwell[qualified, customer-focused [teams[and [infrastructure(to [Service[thismarket. With[an [€stimated dine thillionHouseholds
in[North[Americalowninglan(RV [and(the[Company’slincreasing[content [per (unit, the[Company [¢continues to (believe thereare
significant(opportunities(in/the RV [dftermarket(as[the .componentsisoldto[OEMs are[subject[to mormal wear andtear[over[time.

Operating[profit(ofithe(Aftermarket[Segmentwas[$20.0 hillion[in2016, [anincrease [0f[$5.3 million [compared[to 2015,
primarily(dueltolthelincreaselin retsalesandthehigherthargins(traditionally [éxperienced(in(dftermarket(channels. [Aslindicated,
thisbusiness is stilllihlan(carly [growthstage land the [Company hasadded staff'to [supportlanticipated igrowth land anticipates further
costlincreases in [this(arealas/itbuilds lip[the[capabilities (dflthis Business.

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2014
Consolidated Highlights

*  Consolidatedmetisales for fhelyearended December31,2015 increased fo[$1.4 billion, (18 percenthigherthan(the
year[énded December(31,12014.[Acquisitions dompleted by the[Company[in2015, [ds well [as[the FurrionLimited
(“Furrion”)distribution @ndSupply @greement for premium electronics (the “Furrion Agreement™), added $52 million
inletlsaleslin2015. Thefivelpercentlincreaselinindustry-wide Wwholesale shipments (of travel trailerland fifth-wheel
RVs, the Company’s primary OEM market, as Welllas increased content perunit through market share gains, positively
impacted(net(sales/growth(in 2015. [Burther, the Company drganically lincreased salestbadjacentindustries [and [the
aftermarket.
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*  Forlthefull-year2015,fhe[Company’s metlincomelincreasedfo[$74.3 million,0r[$3.02 [per(diluted [share, ip from
netlincome6f1$62.3 million,0r[$2.56Per(diluted share,in2014.

»  Consolidatedoperating [profits(during[2015lincreased (22 [percent, to[$116.3 (million[from[$95.5 (million[in[2014.
Operating(profititargin(increased(to(8.3 [percent(in2015 from (8.0 [percentin 2014.

*  Rawlmaterial/dostsidontinued(tofluctuate. In(particular, ldluminum rose mearly 20 percentduring ‘the [second halflof
2014,land[dropped(during[thelsecondhalflof[2015.Similarly, the[cost[df steel lused[in[¢ertain[of the [Company’s
manufactured components(dropped during/thecourse0f2015.1]

*  During2015,the[Company [completed [three [dcquisitions:

*  Signature[ Seating[4-[A[Ft.[Wayne, Indiana-based manufacturer[ of [ furniture[ solutions(for[fresh[waterboat
manufacturers,[primarily [pontoon boats, with(annual(sales Gflapproximately [$16 million;

*  Spectal Industries=F[AQuebec, [Canada-based thanufactureroflwindowsand(doors [primarily [for[school [buses,
aslwelllas(dommercial (buses, [@mergency Mehicles, [trucks, ldgricultural[dquipmentland RV, withlannual [sales of
$25 million;@nd

*  EA[Technologies(=+An(Elkhart, Indiana-based thanufacturer [0ficustom steel [and [aluminum [parts land [provider
oflelectro-deposition[(‘e-coat”) [and[powder[ ¢oating[services for[RV, bus, medium-duty truck, [automotive,
recreational marine, [specialty [@and tility [trailer, [And ilitary [@pplications, with[annual [sales (6f[$ 17 (mhillion.

*  For(2015,the[Companyachieved(an(18.4[percentreturnon/équity,lan improvement from/the17.5 [percentreturnon
equity(in[2014.

e InlApril2015,the [Company(paid @[special(dividend [0f1$2.00 per(share, @ggregating ([$48.2 million.

OEM Segment

Netlsaleslofthe @QEM [Segmentin 2015 fihcreased 15 percent, (or(§173 imillion, compared to2014. Netsales 0f components
to[OEMs wereltothe following(tharkets for the yearsending December(31:

(In thousands) 2015 2014 Change
RVIOEMs:
Travel(frailers@nd fifth-wheels $ 938,787 $ 841,497 12%
Motorhomes 86,513 70,332 23%
Adjacentlindustries 274,760 215,197 28%
Total DEM [Segment miet(sales $ 1,300,060 $ 1,127,026 15%

Accordingtothe RVIA, lihdustry-widewholesaleshipments [for the[yearslénded [December 31, were:

2015 2014 Change
Travel trailer[and fifth-wheel RVs 314,400 298,900 5%
Motorhomes 47,300 43,900 8%

ThelCompany’smetisales growthlih[componentsfor fravel trailerland fifth-wheel RVs(during 2015 [éxceeded thelincrease
inlindustry-widewholesale shipments [oftravel trailer[dnd [fifth-wheel RVs[during [the[same [period [primarily [duemarket[shares
gainslandlacquisitionscompletedin2015.

ThelCompany’snet(sales[growth/in [components(for otorhomes/during2015 [éxceeded[theincreaselin/industry-wide
wholesale shipmentslofimotorhomesduring the[Same[period [primarily(dueto marketsharegainsland [anlacquisition dompleted/in
2014.OQverfthe pastfew yiears, the Company has been expanding lits product line of components for motorhomes|ih order o increase
itslcustomer(base [and marketpenetration, land further(growthlisléxpected.

Theltrendlin[the[Company’s[dverage [productcontent per RV [produced (is [anlindicator[ofithe[Company’s[dverall market
shareldficomponents for new RVs. The[Company’slaverage [producticontent [per type (0fRV, [calculated based iipon the[Company’s
netlsales(oflcomponents to[RVIOEM:s [for[the differenttypes [0f[RVs[producedfor the yearsénded December(31,[divided by the
industry-wideWholesaleshipments 0flthe [differenttypes(of RVsforthesame period, was:

Contentlper: 2015 2014 Change
Travelfrailer@nd [fifth-wheel RV $ 2987 $ 2,816 6%
Motorhome $ 1,810 §$ 1,602 13%
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The Company’s average product contentper typeof RV excludes salesto the A ftermarketiand Adjacent Industries. Content
perRVisimpacted bymarketshare [gains, lacquisitions, new fproductiintroductions, andchangeslin selling prices for the Company’s
products, @siwell [@s[changesinthe fypes 0f RV s [produced industry-wide.

ThelCompany’smetlOEM [sales(to[Adjacent(Industriesincreased[during 2015 [primarily [due(to [harket[share[gains and
acquisitions(dompletedin2015.

Operatingprofitlofithe[DEM [Segmentwas($105.2 millionin2015, [@nimprovement6f$16.5 millioncomparedto 2014.
Theldperating[profit thargin(0fithe[DEM [Segment(in[2015 Wwas impacted By:

Fixed[dostswhichWere[@pproximately[$15 fo[$20 millionhigherthan[in[2014.Overthe [past[douple [oflyears, [the
Company imadel(significantinvestments [in manufacturingdapacity, Both(facilities[and [personnel, [to [prepare for [the
expected/ihcreaselinmet/sales in2015 land beyond. Th/addition to investments ih fixed [Costs tb expand manufacturing
capacity, the Company madelimprovements in marketing, human resources, lengineering, [customer(serviceland ather
critical [departments. [The Company (alsoladded(the(teams from [dcquired (businesses aswell as related [dmortization
offintangible@ssets. As industry-wide Wholesale shipments/growth slowed from multi-yeardouble-digitrates to mid-
single-digitlrates, [the[Company [évaluated|its [éxpenses [and(in the fourth [quarter(0f2015 [initiated [@[focused [frogram
toreducelindirectlabor[Costs o improve@perating leverage. Annual Cost Savings dflapproximately $8 o $10 million
were identified @nd implemented(late ih 2015 landlcame from(aligning stafflevels more/closely o anticipated growth.

Anlihcreaselinstock-based[compensation [6fl@pproximately [$3.2 tillion [due [fo the iimplementation (0flthe mew 2015
compensation [program formanagement.

Sales/thix [changes [oflits[products, lincluding lower(sales [offifth-wheel products.
Alcharge0f($1.5 million [felated fo [€nvironmental [Costs.

Aboluntarysafety recall ofthe Company’s/doubleland ttiple Coach Steps, for which the [Company recorded @ireserve
of'$1.1million for(thecontingent(dbligation(in/selling, [generaland [ddministrative [€xpenses.

Partially [offsetby:

Investments[over[the[past[several [years[tolincrease[¢apacity [and [improveloperating[efficiencies, [ which[benefit
operating[results. The[Company(addedcdapacity [ahead [of[projected [demand, which [eénabled it[to [efficiently [fulfill
customerlorders(as(demandlincreased. Further, (the[Company limplemented[additional [eéfficiency [improvements,
including(lean, [@utomation@and/émployee retention(ihitiatives [to limprove [Operating [efficiencies[going [forward.
Lowerlmaterial ([dosts [for [dertain[raw [materialihputs. Afterlincreasingin the latter(part(0f12014, [steel land [aluminum
costsldeclinedover(theldourse(0f2015.0]

Betterfixed[costs[@bsorption by [spreading fixed Costs Gver(d$173 millionlargerisalesbase.

Aftermarket Segment

Netlsaleslaf'the A ftermarket/Segmentin 2015 increased 62 ipercent, or[§39 mhillion, compared tothe same iperiod 0 2014.
Netlsalesofi[domponentswere dsfollows [for the yearslended December31:

(In thousands) 2015 2014 Change
Total[AftermarketSegment ret(sales $ 103,006 $ 63,756 62%

ThelCompany’snet(sales[fo(the A ftermarketlincreased during 2015 [primarily [duefo [the [Company’s[focus [on Building
outlwelllqualified, ldustomer-focused [feams [andlinfrastructure(to [service this harket.

Operating[profit/ofithe[Aftermarket[Segment(Wwas[$15million[in[2015,[anlincrease[6f[$6 millioncompared(to[2014,
primarily(dueltolthelihcreaselih et salesandthehigher thargins(traditionally [@xperienced/in(dftermarket(channels. [Aslindicated,
this[businesslis[stilllin[anlearly igrowth(stage(and the [Company[added|stafflto[support(anticipated [growth.

Sale of Extrusion Assets

In/April 2014, the Company lentered linto @lsix-year [@luminum [extrusion supply lAgreement, and Concurrentlysold certain
aluminum [éxtrusion @ssets. The Company [recorded @ pre-tax loss 0f($2.0million ih[the [Second [quarter(df2014 onlthe [sale ofthe
aluminum [extrusion-related(assets. Inconnectionwith thesale,the (Company received($0.3 million(atclosinglanda/$7.2 million
notelreceivablelcollectibleldver(themextfouryears, recorded atlits [present[value[0f[$6.4 million[on [the [date[o6flclosing. Muring
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201612014, the [Company received linstallments(0f1$5.8 million tinder the Mote. [AtMecember 31,2016, thepresentvalue (0fthe
remainingamountdue inder fhe Motereceivable was$ 1.4 thillion.

InJuly 2015, the Company @greed fo ferminatethe Supply ldgreement, land @s[consideration the Company received @$2.0
millionMotefreceivableCollectible in2019and 2020. The Company recorded this Note receivableat its presentMalue 0f 1.6 million
and[d[correspondinggain[6f’$1.6millioninthe2015 third[quarter.[At[December 31,2016, thepresentValuelof(the femaining
amount/dueunderfhemotereceivablewas$1.7 rhillion.

Severance

In2015, the[Companylinitiated @ [focused [program[toreducelindirectlabor osts. Tn[connection With thisostreduction
program(and(certainichanges atltheléxecutivellevel, the[Company lincurred Severancelcharges(0f'$3.7 million.

Provision for Income Taxes

Theleffectivelincome tax ratefor 2016 was(34.9 ipercentidompared to35.0percentin2015.Both 2016 and 2015 benefited
fromfederal [and [State [fax [¢redits, [as[Wwell [ds fhe [Meversal [0f(federal [and [State [fax [Heserves, [duefo [fhe [¢losure [0f[the [Statutes[0f
limitation of federalland [state [tax [years, With a[larger Benefitih2016. The Company lestimates the(2017 leffectivelihcome [fax [rate
to(belapproximately 34 [percent(to[36 percent.

Theeffectivelihcome [tax rate [for2015 was[35.0[percent [compared(to34.5 [percentin 2014,
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The(Consolidated [Statements(of(Cash Flows reflect/the (following for the yearsénded DDecember(31:

(In thousandls) 2016 2015 2014
Net[cash(flowsprovided By [dperating@ctivities $ 203,407 $ 95,018 $ 107,020
Netlcashflows hised for linvesting dctivities (91,707) (66,116) (144,074)
Netldash[flows tised forfinancing(activities (37,835) (16,601) (29,222)
Netlincreasel(decrease)(inlcash @and/dashlequivalents $ 73,865 $ 12,301  $ (66,276)

Cash Flows from Operations

Net/cash/flows [from(operatingdctivities in 2016 were($108.4 million Higher than(in2015, primarily(due to:

*  Al$56.5millionlincreaselinthe[¢hange for(accountspayablelandaccruedexpenses andother(liabilities[in[2016
compared [to(a[$37.1 [thillion[decrease(in[2015, [primarily [due to [thelihcreases[ih[sales, production(and(€arnings, [ds
wellas thetimingoflthese[payments.

*  Al$55.3millionlincreaselin metfincomelin 2016 compared To2015.

*  ABmallerfihcreaselin the change forinventories 0f$23.4 millionin 2016 Ccomparedt62015. Thelihcreaseininventories
in[2016 [was(primarily [due to [increasesin[Sourced [products(andlacquisitionscompleted[in[2016. Inventory turnover
for[2016lincreased(to[7.5 [furns[¢ompared [to[6.9 [furns[for(2015.[The[Company [is [(working [fo [improve[inventory

turnover,however, [inventory [turnsmay [trend lower [due to [growth in[product[categoriessuch(as imported furniture
and [Furrion electronics.

*  Increases(inmon-cashicharges/dgainstmetiincome(in[2016lincluding:
*  Al$4.5millionlincreaselin[depreciationand @mortization [primarily ‘[duefolinvestments [in[acquisitionsand

capital lexpenditures.
*  Al$1.4millionfihcreaselin/stock-based [dompensation/in2016(compared[to2015.
Partially [offsetby:

*  AB13.9millionlincreaselinlaccountsreceivablein 2016 domparedfoa$2.1millionidecreasein 2015, primarily [due
tolanlihcreaseinldays(sales/outstandingto [16[atDecember 31,2016, comparedito 14 atDecember 31,2015.

»  Alhigherlincreaselin(the(¢hange for [prepaid expenseldnd (other(dssets (0f($13.3 illion(in2016[compared(fo2015.
Thelincreasein 2016 was[primarily [due(fola$4.5 million higherfax receivableatMecember 31,2016, @swell@slan
increase in[short-termdeposits related [to[2017 [capital ([éxpenditures [and inventory.
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Overlthe long[term, based on(the [(Company’sHistorical [¢ollection [@nd [payment[patterns, ds Wwell [@sinventory [turnover,
andl(also givinglconsideration [to [émerging trendsand[changes [fb [the [sales [mix, the [Company [éxpects working [Capital [toihcrease
orldecrease l@quivalent fo @pproximately 10 to (15 [percentlofithe ihcreaseloridecrease, respectively, lin net/sales. However, there dre
many [factors(that(danimpact(this(relationship, (@speciallyin(the short[term.

Depreciation and @mortizationWas$46.2 millionin 2016, @nd fis Expected fo be @pproximately §50 million o §55 million
forffiscalyear2017. Non-cashistock-based Compensationin 2016 was$15.7 million, including$0.3 millionofideferredstock tnits
issued(folcertainexecutive 0fficers(in(lieulofidash for(a portion ofitheir[2015 incentive [compensation[in[daccordance [With[their
compensation(arrangements. Non-cash(stock-based [Gompensation fis[€xpected [to beldpproximately [$17 illionfo$ 19 millionin

2017.

Net(dashflowsfrom Gperating[activities ih 2015 were$12.0 million Towerthan(in 2014, primarily [due fo:

Alargerlincreaselinthechange forihventories 0f$9.3 millionih 2015 Ccompared fo 2014. Theincreasein ihventories
in[2015 Wwas[primarily [duetblincreasesin[Sourced [products, lincluding linventory [to [Support the [Furrion A greement
(discussed immediately below)[and lacquisitions dompletedin2015.[A[portion [6fithelincreaselinlinventory wasalso
dueltostrategic(positions to[take lddvantage (dffavorable market/donditions [and lincluded ithe strategic [dnboarding [of
almew supplier. Inventory [turnover for(2015 [decreased[to (6.9 turnscompared to 8.2 [turns[for2014.

InJuly 2015, the [Company(entered [into(al6-yearlexclusive distribution and supply[agreementwith[Furrion Limited
(“Furrion”), @[Hong Kong based firm thatldesigns, l[éngineers and thanufactures [premium [electronics. In[donnection
with thisldgreement, [the (Company [acquired (Furrion’s [Gurrentinventory, [as (well [ds [Furrion’s[deposits[oninventory
scheduled(for(delivery, [forlapproximately($11 mhillion.

AT$5.9milliondecreaselinl@ccounts payableland l@ccruedexpensesland Gther liabilities in 2015 compared to@$31.2
millionlincreaselin[2014, [(primarily [due[tolincreased [importsand[other[prepaid [inventories, éfforts tolincrease
consignments, (aswelllds/the[timing[ofipurchases.

Partiallyloffset by:

Al$12.1millionlincreaselin met/income(in 2015 domparedto 2014.
Increases/innon-cash(charges/dgainstnetincomelin(2015 lincluding:

*  Al$9.0millionlincreaselin[depreciationand@mortization [primarily ([due(to investments [in [acquisitionsand
capitaléxpenditures.

»  Al$3.2millionfihcreaselin/stock-based [dompensationin 2015compared fo2014.

*  Anlincreaselin(deferredfaxes(0f($1.1million[in2015[compared fold[$5.5 million decreaselin 2014 [due(to
anlincrease(in (Certain @xpensesdurrently motldeductible for [tax [purposesin2015.

Net(dashflows[from Gperating(activities ih 2014 were$24.3 million Higher(than[in2013, Primarily [due fo:

AT$12.1millionlihcreaselinmetlincomelin 2014 Comparedfo2013.

Al$24.0millionlarger increase inthe lchange [for l@ccounts payable land laccrued iexpensesand other liabilities in 2014
compared(tb[2013, [primarily/due(fo [the[increases[in[sales, [productiondnd [éarnings, ds [Wwell [asthefiming [0f[these
payments.

An($8.5Mmillionsmallerihcrease in thelchange forlaccounts Teceivablein 2014 Icompared ©2013, primarily [due fo
aldecreaselinldays/sales/outstanding(to 15 [@tDecember(31,2014, compared(to 17 dtDecember31,2013.

AI$5.1millionlincreaselin[depreciationand @mortization[primarily [due(to [thedcquisitions(completed [during 2014
and [capitallexpendituresoverthe [last(oupleyears.

Partially(offset by:

An($18.5millionTarger(increase lin thechange forihventories in 2014 [@s[compared f02013. Thelargerlincrease [in
inventorieslin 2014 wasprimarily to supportthed1 percentlincreaseinmetsalesinJanuary 2015. Higher raw material
costslandlincreased [lead [time [On [imports [@lso [contributed [to (the increase linlinventory. Inventory [furnover(for(2014
improved [to 8.2 [furns[comparedto 7.9 [furns for2013.

Anlincreaselindeferred taxes(dfi$5.5 million(in 2014 comparedto [@$0.3 millionldecreaselin[2013 [dueltolan increase
inldertain/éxpensesmot/currentlydeductible [for tax [purposeslin 2014.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cashflows[used[forlinvestinglactivities 0f($91.7 million[in[2016 Were[primarily ([¢omprised (¢f[$48.7 [million for the
acquisition/ofbusinesses(and[$44.7 million[for(capital [expenditures.
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InJanuary 2016, the [Company lacquired lthe business land [certain assets 0fthe [pontoon furniture hanufacturing [dperation
of(Highwater(Marine, LLC[(“Highwater”),(aleading thanufacturer [0f[pontoon @nd[other tecreational (boats located [in [Elkhart,
Indiana. Thepurchase priceWas$10.0 million paid(atidlosing.

InBebruary 2016, the[Company [acquired [the businessandcertainlassets 0f Flair Interiors, Tnc. [(F‘Flair”), lamhanufacturer
of RV [furniture located/in[Goshen, Tndiana. The[purchase [pricewas$8.1 million/paid(at(dlosing.

In[May(2016,the[Company[acquired[ 100[percent oflthel equityinterest of Project[2000(S.r.1.[(“Project[2000), a
manufacturer@finnovative, space-saving bed lifts@nd retractablesteps, located Mear Florence, Ttaly. The purchaseprice was$18.8
million[paidlat(dlosing, [pluscontingentdonsideration based [on [future(sales By thisOperation.

InMNovember(2016,the[Company [acquired[the (business, manufacturing(facility(and[certain[dssets[of[the [seating[and
chassis/domponents business/of[AtwoodMobile Products, ILLCI(“Atwood”),d[subsidiary [of DDometic(Group, Tocatedin Elkhart,
Indiana. The[purchaseprice was[$12.5million paidaticlosing.

InMNovember2016,the[Company dcquired [the servicedentersandrelated (business [0f[Camping Connection, Inc.,[an RV
repairlandlservice providerlocated in Myrtle Beach, [South (Carolinaland Kissimmee, Florida. The ipurchaseprice was$2.0 million
paidat/closing.

ThelCompany’s[¢apital [éxpenditures|are[primarily [for[teplacement(and growth. Over[thelong[term, based on[the
Company’s historical [apital lexpenditures, ‘the [feplacement [portion has@veraged [@pproximately 2 [percent[dfnet(sales, whilelthe
growth portion(has(averaged dpproximately 8 [to[11 [percent[df[theannual increase(inmetsales. However, [thereare tany [factors
that/canfimpactithelactual spending(dompared o these historical l@verages. Th2016@nd 2015 icapital expendituresdfi$44.7 million
and$29.0mhillion, [fespectively, Werelin line with Historical [dverages.

The2016(capital @éxpendituresand [@cquisitions were funded by [Cash from [dperations and [periodic Borrowings inder [the
Company’sllineoficreditiand $50 mhillion 0f Senior Promissory Notes issued tinder the Fshelf-loan” facility with Prudential. Capital
expenditures(in(2017 [areéxpected [fobe [funded (primarily [from [Gash [generated (from[operations, [ds Wwell(ds [periodic [borrowings
underthe[Company’s(line(oficredit.

Cash(flowsised for investing @activities(0f[$66.1 [thillion[in 2015 were [primarily ([comprised [0f($29.0 million [for capital
expenditures(and($41.1million for the acquisition(oflbusinesses.

InJanuary (2015, the (Company ldcquired [the businessland (dertain @ssets Of[EA(Technologies, ILLC[(FEATechnologies™),
athanufacturer 0f/custom steel l@nd [aluminum [parts(@nd [provider 0flelectro-deposition (*e-coat”) land [powder doating [services for
RV, bus, medium-duty truck, l[@utomotive, [recreational tharine, [specialty land [utility [trailer, land military @pplications. The [purchase
pricewas($9.2 million, 0f which[$6.6 hillion was [Paid ih the[fourthIquarter 0f2014, Wwith[the [balance [Paid @t closing.

In[April2015, the[Company [acquired [the [business [and [certain(assets [0fIndustries [Spectal, Inc. [(“Spectal”), [d[Quebec,
Canada-based manufacturerdfiwindowsland [doors primarily for(school (buses, [as Well[as[commercial Buses, .emergency Wehicles,
trucks, @gricultural @quipment@nd RVs. Thepurchaseprice Was $22.3 millionpaidat Closing, plus Contingent Consideration Based
on/future(sales(oflthis[Operation.

In/August2015, the Companylacquiredlthe business/and(certainlassets dfRoehmMarine, ILLC, [also known[as [Signature
Seating[(““Signature”), [dmanufacturer of [ furnituresolutions for fresh (water boat manufacturers, [primarily [(pontoon(boats.[The
purchaselprice was($16.0million [paid aticlosing, [plus/contingent [donsideration Based [on [future sales(dflthis [dperation.

Cash(flowssedforinvestingdctivities[3f1$144.1 million[in 2014 Were primarily Comprised (6f1$42.5 million for capital
expendituresland[$106.8 million[for[the dcquisitiondflbusinesses.

InEebruary 2014, the Company lacquired IDS, aldesigner, developerand manufacturer of €lectronic systems encompassing
alwidevariety 0f RV lapplications. IDS [@lso hanufactures [electronicsystems [forlautomotive, thedicalland industrial [dpplications.
Thepurchase price Was[$35.9 million, 0ftwhich[$34.2 million Was[paid(dt(closing, Wwith[the Balance [fo [Be [paid [Gut@nnually [over
thelsubsequentl(three[years, [plusidontingent(consideration based [on [future(sales[ofthisOperation.

In[March[2014,the[Company[acquired[the[business and[certainlassets ofl Star[Design, [LLC, which[manufactures
thermoformed sheet(plastic products for[the RV, Bus(and(specialty Wehiclelindustries. The[purchasepriceWwas[$12.2 [thillion [paid
atlclosing.

InlJune(2014, the[Company [dacquired the RV [business [0f Actuant[Corporation, Whichmanufactures (leveling[systems,
slide-outmechanisms[and|[steps, primarily [for thotorhome[RVs, under [the [Power(Gear[dand [(Kwikee [brands. The purchase [price
was($35.5 million, paidat(closing.
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InAugust2014, the[Companylacquired ithe business andcertain assetslof Duncan Systems, Inc., an aftermarket distributor
ofreplacementmotorhome Windshields, awnings, and RV, heavy truck and specialty Vehicleglassland windows, primarily to fulfill
insuranceClaims. The[purchase price was$18.0million paidatclosing, [plusContingent/Consideration Basedon future sales6fthis
operation.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash(flows ised forfinancingactivities[in2016 primarily fincludedthe [payment (6f'dividends(0f7$34.4 millionpaid o
stockholders. [[The[Company (had mo outstanding[borrowings inder [the(line[ofcreditlas(ofiDecember 31,2016, [ButBorrowings
reachedf@highof$33.0 million during 2016. Ihaddition, the Company made $4.9 million ih payments forldontingenticonsideration
related(to [@cquisitions.

Cashflowsused forfinancing[activities[in[2015included [the [payment(oflalspecialdividend [0f($2.00 [per(share[oflthe
Company’s[Common [Stock, Tepresenting[an(aggregate (0f[$48.2 million, [paid fostockholders[oflrecord(as[ofiMarch27,[2015,
partially Gffset by [aMet ihcreaseihindebtedness (0f$34.4 million. [Thelincreaseinlindebtedness(included mew [debt[domprised [Gf
$50.0million(6fSenior Promissory Notes drawnihMarch2015 inder the Prudential TnvestmentManagement, Tnc. [Sshelf-loan”
facility, [partially [0ffset by d[$15.7 million(decrease [in [debt [due [fo [paying [down [the Company’s(line [0fIcredit. [The [Companyhad
noloutstanding Borrowingsinder the line 0ficreditas 6f December 31,2015, butBorrowings reached@highdf$71.6 million during
2015.Mnfaddition,ih 2015, the Company thade[$4.0 thillion in payments For Gontingent[donsideration related o [Acquisitions.

Cashflowsused forfinancing[activities[in 2014 included [the [paymentofla [Special[dividend [6f($2.00 [per[share[oflthe
Company’s[CommonStock, fepresenting [an l@ggregate(0f1$46.7 million, paid o Stockholdersof record [@s 0fDecember 20,2013,
partially (offset By [@metlincreaselin indebtedness(0f1$15.7 million. Thelincrease inlindebtedness wasdue [fo Borrowings linder [the
Company’s(line(ofldredit. Tnladdition, in 2014, the[Company Teceived[$5.8 millionlincashl@ndthe related fax Benefitsfrom the
exercise(oflstock-based [Compensation, (0ffset By [$3.7 million ih payments for [GontingentConsideration Telated o [dcquisitions.

Inlconnection With[certain[business@cquisitions, [if[éstablished(sales[targets for [theldcquired [products(dre [dchieved, [the
Companylis[contractually [0bligated to [pay [additional [cashconsideration. The (Company lhas [recorded d[$9.2 (million liability for
the aggregate fair value of these expected contingent consideration liabilities at December 31,2016, including $5.8 millionirecorded
aslalcurrentliability. [For further(information,See Note 11 [6flthe Wotes [to [the[Consolidated (Financial [Statements.

On[Bebruary 24,2014, the Company entered into@$75.0 millionTineGficredit (the[Credit/Agreement”) With JPMorgan
Chase[Bank,IN.A.and [Wells[Fargo [Bank, IN.A.[On[March(3,[2015,/inlaccordance (with [the ‘terms [0f(the [Credit[Agreement, (the
Company lincreased/itsline[dfTcreditHy$25.0millionfo$100.0 million. Interestlonborrowings nder the (ine [ofTéreditWvas
designated from time [to [time by [the Company (as dither((i) the PrimeRate, thinus [d[rate[ranging from[0.75 [to (1.0 [percent [(minus
1.0lpercentlatMecember(31,2015), butmotless(than(1.5[percent, or((ii) LIBOR, [plus(additional ihterest ranging from1.75[to (2.0
percent((plus(1.75[percentlatDecember31,2015)[depending(onthe[Company’s [performanceland financial [condition.

OnlApril(27,12016,the[Company [announced (the [definancing (0fTits lineoflcredit throughlan(dgreement [with[JPMorgan
ChaseBank, N.A., Wells[Fargo Bank, N.A., Bank [0f[America, IN.A., [and[1st[SourceBank. The [dagreement[amends [dnd[restates
thelexisting(line[dficredit, which Wasscheduled to léxpire (on January(1,2019,[and mow leéxpireson(April 27,2021 [(the "Amended
CreditlAgreement”). Tn[donnection With fhis[amendment/and restatement, Theline 0fldredit Was [ihcreased from[$100.0 million fo
$200.0 million, @nd Contains @feature @llowing the Company fo draw up o $50.0 millionih @pproved foreign Currencies, including
Australian(dollars, (Canadian(dollars, [pound/sterling [@and(euros. Thethaximum Borrowingstinder the line [dfcredit/can be further
increased By $125.0mhillion, [Subjecto certainconditions.[AtMDecember 31,120161@nd2015,the Company Had$2.5 millionland
$2.7 million, Mespectively, in[outstanding, butindrawn, [standby [etters[0f[dredit inder [the Tine[0fTdredit. [Availability inderthe
Company’s(linedfcreditwas[$197.5millionatMDecember 31,2016.

OnFebruary 24,2014, the Company alsolenteredlinto@[$150.0 rhillion Fshelf-loan” [facility with Prudential Tnvestment
Management, Inc. landlits@ffiliates [(FPrudential).The facility [provides [for Prudential (o [Consider [purchasing, (atthe Company’s
request, [in[onelor(d[series[0ftransactions, [Senior[Promissory Notes[oflthe [Company [in 'the [dggregate [principal [dmountofip[fo
$150.0 million, [fo tature o thorethan 12 [years dfter the [date df(driginal [issue [dfléach [Senior[Promissory Note. [OnMarch 20,
2015, fhe[Company(issued$50.0 mhillion6fSenior Promissory Notes o Prudential for@ferm6f five Years, @t @fixed interest rate
of13.35[percent[per [@annum, [payable[quarterlyinlarrears, (0f(whichthe [eéntire[dmount Was[dutstanding [dt[December 31,2016.(At
December 31,2016, the fair Walue0flthe[Company’slong-term debt[dpproximates [thelcarrying value, [ds [@stimated lising (quoted
market(prices(and(discounted future cash [flows based lon similar[Borrowing[arrangements.

On(Aprill27,2016,the[Company (dlso [@amended [and restated its[fshelf-loan” (facility (with [Prudential [fo (conform (Gertain
covenants(and(other terms[folthe[Amended (Credit[Agreement. Prudential (has molobligation [to[purchase(the[Senior Promissory
Notes. Interest(payable(on [the[Senior [Promissory Wotes [will[be(at rates(determined By [Prudential Within [five [business [days [after
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the[Company lissues d[requestto Prudential.[Availability lunder(the[Company’s [“fshelf-loan” facility, [subject[fo (the [dpproval [of
Prudential, was[$100.0million@tMecember 31,2016.

Pursuant(fothe[Amended [Credit[Agreement(and“fshelf-loan” facility, [the [Company[is[fequired [fo (maintain minimum
interestand fixed charge coverages, and to meet certain other financial requirements. At December 31,2016and 2015, the Company
was lin[compliance with[all[such fequirements, [@nd [€xpects [fb femain [in [dompliance for [the Mext Twelve thonths.

Availability iinder Both[the[Amended [Credit[Agreementland the [shelf-loan” [facility(is [Subjecttold haximum leverage
ratiolcovenantwhich limits fthe @mountdfidonsolidated Qutstanding indebtedness to (2.5 times the frailing fivelve-month[EBITDA,
as/defined. This limitation/did notimpactthe Company’s borrowing availability latDecember 31,2016. The remaining availability
underthese facilities[(Was[$297.5million(at Mecember 31,12016.Theindrawn Fshelf-loan” [facility [expired [February 24,2017,
andthe Companyland Prudential are icurrently discussing renewal terms. The Company believes the lavailability uinder the Amended
Credit/Agreementlisddequateto [financelthe[Company’santicipateddash(requirements for [the Mext twelve months.

Additionallinformation(on/the Company’s[Credit/Agreement@nd[“shelf-loan” facility islincluded/in Note 9 (0f the Notes
to/the(Consolidated Financial [Statements.

Future minimum/dommitmentsrelating to the Company’s icontractual [dbligations/at Mecember 31,2016 were as follows:

Payments(due by period
Less/than Morel(than

(In thousands) Total 1lyear 1-3[years 3-5lyears Slyears Other
Totallindebtedness $ 50,000 $ — 3 — $ 50,000 $ — —
Interestlon fixed [rate[]
indebtedness® 5,388 1,675 3,350 363 — —
Operating|(leases 40,503 9,388 14,046 9,052 8,017 —
Employment(contracts 7,441 7,070 221 150 — —
Deferred Gompensation [ 13,574 160 609 3,486 5,380 3,939
Royaltylagreements(and(contingent
consideration[payments @ 11,639 6,252 2,275 1,560 1,552 —
Purchase obligations[ 539,891 300,741 238,280 870 — —
Taxes(? 3,100 3,100 — — — —

Total $ 671,536 $§ 328386 $ 258,781 $§ 65481 $ 14,949 $ 3,939

(a) The Company has used the contractual payment dates and the fixed interest rates in effect as of December 31, 2016,
to determine the estimated future interest payments for fixed rate indebtedness.

(b) Includes amounts payable under employment contracts and arrangements, and retirement and severance agreements.

(c) Includes amounts payable under deferred compensation arrangements. The Other column represents the liability
for deferred compensation for employees that have elected to receive payment upon separation from service from
the Company.

(d) Comprised of estimated future contingent consideration payments for which a liability has been recorded in
connection with business acquisitions.

(e) Primarily comprised of (i) purchase orders issued in the normal course of business and (ii) long term purchase
commitments, for which the Company has estimated the expected future obligation based on current prices and
usage.

(f) Represents unrecognized tax benefits, as well as related interest and penalties.

Theselcommitments|areldescribed hore fullylinthe Wotes to [Consolidated (Financial [Statements.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TheCompany[is in[dompliance with the [Corporate [governance requirements dfithe Securities @nd Exchange Commission
(“SEC”)land[the New [York[Stock [Exchange.[The Company’s(governanceldocuments [@and [dommittee [charters[dnd (Key [practices
have been posted tolthe [Company’swebsite (www.lcil.com)and (are updated periodically. The website also [contains, or[provides
directlinks to,all SEC filings, pressreleases and ihvestor presentations. The Company has also Established @WhistleblowerPolicy,
whichincludes @toll-freehotline(877-373-9123) to reporticomplaints about the Company’s ldccounting, linternal iControls, l@uditing
matters orlother[¢oncerns.[The[Whistleblower[Policy [and [procedurefor[complaints[¢an[belfoundlonthe[Company’s[Wwebsite

(www.lcil.com).
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CONTINGENCIES
Additionalihformation(required by [thislitemlis[includedinder Ttem 3 [0f[Part Toflthis[Annual Reportdn Form(10-K.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The/Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principlesigenerally
acceptedlin(the Wnited [States(of[Americalwhichrequirescertain(eéstimates [and [dssumptions [be thade [that[dffect the @mounts(and
disclosuresteported [in[those (financial [statements[and (the (telated [accompanying[notes. [Actual (tesults[¢ould [differ [fromthese
estimates(dnd(@assumptions. Thefollowing/critical ldccounting(policies, some of whichlareimpacted[significantly by judgments,
assumptions andestimates, @affectithe Company’sConsolidated Financial Statements. Management has(discussed theldevelopment
and/(selection(ofTits[¢ritical [Accounting [policies (with[the[Audit/Committee [o0f(the[Company’s Board[of[(Directors dand[theAudit
Committee Has reviewedtheldisclosurepresented below [relating [to [the [dritical [dccounting [policies.

Inventories

Inventories|(finished[goods, work [in [process and[raw [taterials) [dre(stated [at[the lower [0f(dost, [determined [on(a first-in,
first-out(basis, lormarket. Cost(is determined basedsolely dn thosechargesincurredlin the ldcquisition and production ofthe related
inventory(i.e. material, laborland manufacturingloverhead costs). The Company lestimates lan inventory reserve forlexcess quantities
andlobsoleteitemsbased on[Specificlidentification[andhistorical (Wwrite-offs, [takinginto[account future[demandland[iarket
conditions. Tolthe léxtentactual[demand(or market/donditionsin the future differ from[Original[éstimates, [ddjustments[to recorded
inventory [feserves (thay be required.

Self-Insurance

ThelCompany lis[self-insured for(certain (Health dnd Wworkers’ [dompensation benefits iip [fo [certain[stop-loss [limits. [Such
costsfare accrued based lonknown claims landan estimate oflincurred, but notreported (“IBNR”) [claims. IBNR [claims arelestimated
using historical lagihformationland dther(datalprovided by third-party [cdlaimsladministrators. Thislestimation process i$subjective,
and|to [the [extentlactual results (differ from [Original (@stimates, [adjustments [to fecorded [dccruals thay (be [required.

Warranty

The Company [provides Warranty terms based tpon the type ofproductsold. The Company lestimates the Warranty laccrual
based ponvariousffactors, including (i) historical Warranty Costs, (ii) current frends, (iii) productmix, and(iv) sales. The accounting
for(warrantyaccruals tequires the[Company(to makelassumptionsandjudgments, (and(to the eéxtentactual [resultsdiffer from
original [estimates, [ddjustments[to recorded @ccruals(may [Be required.

Income Taxes

TheCompany’sltax provisionfis basedon pre-tax income, statutory ftax rates, federal ‘and|state tax credits, land fax [planning
strategies.[Significant/management judgment!is fequired in [determiningthe [tax [provision @nd[in[eévaluatingthe[Company’s[tax
position. [ The[Company [establishes [ddditional (provisions (for[incomel[taxeswhen, [despite[the [belief[the [tax [positions arefully
supportable, there femain(certain[tax [positions [thatarelikely [to (be [dhallenged [and may [or thay Mot be [sustained [0n rfeview by [fax
authorities. The[Company [adjusts thesetax laccruals in lightdfichanging facts land [dircumstances. [The [effective tax [ratelin lagiven
financial [statement[period (may [be[materially [impacted (by[¢hangeslin[the[expected [outcome[of[tax [audits.[The[Company’s
accompanying[Consolidated[BalanceSheets(alsolincludedeferred tax [assets[tesulting[from deductible [temporary differences,
whichareléxpected [fo reduce future [taxablelincome. [Theselassets dre[basedonthanagement’s[dstimate [of [realizability, Which is
reassessed €achlquarter based upon the Company’s forecastof future taxablelincome. Failure tolachieve forecasted taxable income
couldlaffect(theltimate(realization[0f[certain [deferred (fax[dssets, [and haytesultlinthefecognition(ofla valuation[reserve. For
additional information, [See Note 10 0fthe Notes fo[Consolidated Financial [Statements.

Fair Value of Net Assets of Acquired Businesses

TheCompany [values|thelassetsland liabilities @ssociated withthe l@cquisitions 0f Businesses onthe respective ldcquisition
dates. Depending ipon the type oflasset orliability l[@cquired, the Company Lisesdifferentvaluation techniques in [determining [the
fairvalue. Those techniqueslinclude icomparable harket pprices, long-term(sales, [profitability land [Cash flow [forecasts, l[@ssumptions
regarding future industry-specific/économicand (market(conditions, [a[market[participant’sweighted [dverage dost [0f[capital,[as
well@slother fechniquesasdircumstances required. By [their ature, these [@ssumptions require judgment, [and if hanagement had
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chosendifferentlassumptions, the fair value of metlassets oflacquired businesseswould have been different. For furtherinformation
onlacquired assetsland liabilities, see Notes 2[and 13 [oflthe Notes[to[Consolidated [Financial [Statements.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, including Other Intangible Assets and Goodwill

The Company performsirecoverability and impairment testslof loncurrent assets inlaccordance With accounting principles
generallylaccepted inthe United States. Forcertainlassets, recoverability land/orimpairment tests are required only when conditions
existlthatindicate[the[carrying value tay mot[be Hecoverable.[When sucheévents[or [circumstancesdccur, the (Company [@ssesses
theltecoverability [ofl long-lived[assets[ byl determining whether[ the[ carrying[value[Wwill[beltecoveredl through!thelexpected
undiscounted futurecash flows|resulting from the tise (0flthe dsset. Inlthe [dvent the [sum [dfithe [@xpected indiscounted future (cash
flows(isless/than/the carrying Walueloflthe @sset, [dn impairment(loss equal o the [excess[oflthe @sset’s [Carrying value lover its [fhir
valuelwould(be recorded.

For[dther(assets, impairment [tests[dre [fequired(atleastannually, [or thore [frequently, [if [évents [or[dircumstances [indicate
thatlan assetmay be impaired. The impairment test for other assets consists of anlassessment of qualitative factors. I[fsuch qualitative
factors[domot(support(that(the fair valueloflthe teporting unit(is greaterthan the[carrying[amount, [the[Company [then uses(a
discounted (cash flow modellto @stimate(the fair Walue[dfthe eporting tinit.

ThelCompany’sassessment(oflthelrecoverability [dnd limpairment [tests[0f oncurrent dssets involve dritical [daccounting
estimates. These [@stimates requiresignificantimanagementjudgment, linclude inherentincertainties land [are (often interdependent;
therefore, they do motichange ihlisolation. [Factors thatmanagement must€stimatelinclude, l@mongothers, the @conomic lifeGfithe
asset, salesvolume, [pricing, [dostlofiraw mhaterials, [delivery(costs, inflation, [costaficapital, tax rates, Capital spendingland [proceeds
from [thesale(dfldssets. These(factors(areléven more difficultto [predictWwhen(financial harkets [are Highly (volatile. Theléstimates
management ises When @ssessing the rfecoverability [df oncurrent assets lare [Consistent Wwith those management ises ih fits internal
planning. [When[performingimpairment[tests,[management( éstimates|thelfair[Valuesloflthe assets[iising management’s[best
assumptions, [ Whichlis(believed(tobe¢onsistent[with[What[alhypothetical (marketplace[participant[would[uise. [Estimates(and
assumptions sed in thesetests [arelévaluatedand tipdated (@sdppropriate. The variability (0fthese factors [depends (dn dmumber (0f
conditions, lincluding incertainty [about(future[évents, dnd [thus [dccounting [estimates imaychange (from [period [tb [period. If lother
assumptions and estimates had been ised When these tests Were performed, impairmentichargesicould have resulted. Asmentioned
above, [these factors(domot/changelinlisolation(dnd, therefore, the[Company [does Mot believe/itlis [practicable[ormeaningful [fo
presentlthelimpactidfichangingalsingle factor. [Furthermore, lif hanagement hises(differentassumptions orlifldifferent/donditions
occurlihfuture(periods, future impairment(charges (dould result.

Contingent Consideration Payments

Inléonnectionwith(severalldcquisitions, [in[dddition [fothecash[paid[at/dlosing, ddditional [payments ¢ould [be required
depending upon(thellevel [oflsales[generated (from[¢ertain[of the acquired (products.Thelfair(valuelof(the [dggregate/éstimated
contingenticonsideration payments lhasbeen recorded s /liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. [Hach quarter, the Company
islrequired [fo re-evaluate lthe [fairwalue (0flthe [liability [for the [@stimated [dontingent[donsideration payments [for [Such [dcquisitions.
Thefair value [0flthe[contingent[consideration [payments[is [estimated 1ising[d [discounted [¢ash flow model. Thismodelinvolves
theluselofleéstimatesand [significantjudgments(that/dre based [on[a[mumber of factorsincluding(sales 0fcertain [products, future
businessplans, €conomiclprojections, weighted averagelcostdficapital, land market(data. [Actual resultstay [differ from forecasted
results.

Other Estimates

The(Company [thakes @ number(oflother(estimatesdnd judgments(in[the[drdinary [course[dflbusinesslincluding, butnot
limited fo, [thoserelated [to [product (returns, [Sales [and (purchase [febates, [dccountsreceivable, lease [terminations, [dsset retirement
obligations, (long-lived(assets, [éxecutive[succession, [ post-retirement [benefits, [stock-based [¢ompensation,[segment(allocations,
environmental liabilities, ontingencies and litigation. Establishing reserves fforthese matters requires anagement’slestimate land
judgmentwith regard [to risk [@and iltimate (liability (or realization. [As(dresult, theseestimates(are [based (onthanagement’s [Gurrent
understanding[of the inderlying [facts[and/¢ircumstances(and(may[alsobe[developed(in¢onjunction(with[outside[advisors, (as
appropriate. Duelto incertainties(related [to [the iltimate [outcome ofltheselissues [or (the[possibilitiesof 'changes ih the inderlying
factsland(circumstances, [@ctual results(and [@ventscould differsignificantly from hanagement@stimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Information required by [thislitem [is[included in Note 15 [0flthe WNotes [fo the[Consolidated [Financial [Statements.
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INFLATION

Thelpricesoflkey raw (materials, [¢consisting [primarily [6f(steel (and [aluminum, [and [¢omponents used by [the[Company
which (@re thade [from these raw (thaterials, [@re influenced by [demand @nd[dther factors [specific [to these [commodities, rather than
being(directly [dffected by inflationary [pressures. [Prices[oflthese[commodities have historically [(beenvolatile,(dnd[dver [the[past
few [months(priceshavelcontinued to[fluctuate.[The[Company(did not(éxperience dny [Significantlincreases in[its[labor[¢ostsin
2016 (related [tolinflation.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

AtMDecember 31,2016, the Company had$49.9 millionoffixed ratedebt(Gutstanding. [Assuming thereis@ndecrease6f
100basis points(in[theinterest(tate[for Borrowings oflalsimilar maturesubsequent(to Mecember 31,2016, which[the[Company
becomesunablelfo(capitalize[onin [the [short-term [@s(aresultlofthe structure (oflits[fixed rate financing, futurelcashflows Wwould
bel@pproximately($0.3 millionTowerperfannum than ifTthe fixed rate financing[dould e (obtained @ticurrent tarket [rates.

TheCompany is alsolexposed o [changes inthe [prices 0firaw materials, [specifically steel l@nd [@aluminum. The [Company
has, from time [to time, [entered [into derivative ihstruments for the ‘purpose (0f managing [@portion ofltheléxposures @ssociated with
fluctuationslinlsteelland aluminum [prices. While these derivative instrumentsare subject to fluctuations in Malue, these fluctuations
arelgenerally 0ffset By the(changes(in fair[valuelofitheinderlyingléxposures. [See Note 13 [ofithe Notes [fo [Consolidated [Financial
Statements [for[@moredetaileddiscussion/oflderivative instruments.

ThelCompany hashistorically Been[dblefo[obtain[salespricelincreases fo [partially [offset[the thajority [oflraw [haterial
costlincreases. However, [thereldan [be [nodassurance futurelcostlincreases, [iflany, (can be [partially lor [fully [passed [on[to [dustomers,
orlthatlthe fimingoflsuch(sales [price increases will match raw thaterial [Gostlihcreases.

Additionallihformation(required by [thisitemi5[included inder thedaption[‘Inflation”(in the Management’s Discussion
and[Analysis0f(Financial[Conditionand Results [0f[Operations(section dfthis[Report.
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

TheBoard OfDirectorsandStockholders
LCIIndustries:

Wehavelauditedthedaccompanying/consolidated balance sheets (0f ILCI Industries and [subsidiaries[(the ‘Company”) lds
of(December(31,[2016(and[2015,and[the(telated¢onsolidated [statements[oflincome, [comprehensivelincome, [cash [flows,and
stockholders’ lequity [forléach ofthe lyears inlthelthree-yearperiodlended December31,2016. Welalso have laudited the Company’s
internal [dontrol[0ver financial [deporting [as(of December(31,12016, based [on criterialdstablished lin Internal [Control = (Integrated
Framework(2013)lissued by ithe Committee of[Sponsoring [Drganizations ofithe Treadway [Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management(is(responsible(for(theselconsolidated [financial [Statements, for(maintaining[éffectivelinternal [control (dver financial
reporting, [dnd[forlits[assessment[ofthe [éffectiveness 0flinternal [control [Over(financial [reporting, [included [inthe [Accompanying
“Management’s Annual ReportlonIhternal ControlloverFinancial Reporting.” (Qur responsibility[is to lexpressanopinion an these
consolidated financialstatements andan opiniondnlthe [Company’s linternal [dontrol [Gver financial reporting Based [on [dur [audits.

Weldonducted(our(auditslinlaccordance with the standards0flthe [Public[Company [Accounting [Oversight Board [(United
States). Those(standards require [that We [plan@nd [perform [the[audits [to [0btain[reasonabled@ssurance [@dbout whether(the financial
statements (are(free (0f material misstatement [and whether [@ffective linternal [dontrol [Gver [financial [reporting was maintainedin(all
material respects. [Qurlaudits dfithe [Consolidated financial [statements included [examining, lon(atest basis, [@vidence [supporting the
amounts [dnd(disclosures|inthe financial [Statements, [dssessing theldccounting principles ised [dnd[significant[éstimates(made by
management,(and(évaluating [theoverall (financial [Statement [presentation. [Qur(dudit(oflinternal [¢ontrol [over [financial (teporting
included(dbtaininglan tinderstanding loflinternal [Control dver financial reporting, lassessing the risk that@material weaknesslexists,
and[testing[and(évaluatingthe [design and [Operating[effectiveness(oflinternal control (based[onthelassessed[risk. (Qur duditsdlso
includedperforming(such(other(proceduresas Wweldonsidered necessary lin (the ([dircumstances. WeBelieve [thatour [@udits [provide
alreasonable Basis/for(our(dpinions.

Alcompany’slinternal [dontrol [0ver financial teportingis(a[process/designedto [provide reasonable dssurance [regarding
thereliability (offinancial reportingland the [preparation (df financialstatements for[éxternal [purposes inldccordancewith [generally
acceptedlaccounting [principles. [Aldompany’slinternal [controllover [financial ireporting lincludes those [policiesland [procedures that
(1) [pertain[to[the aintenance [0frecords|that, [ih feasonable(detail, @ccurately [and fairly reflect theltransactions and[dispositions
oflthe(assets [0fithe[company;[(2)[providefeasonable @ssurance that [fransactions dre recorded|ds mecessary [to [permit[preparation
oflfinanciallstatements(in(accordance with generallyaccepted [accounting [principles, and[that[teceipts(and[éxpenditures[oflthe
company arebeingmadelonly(inlaccordance with [@uthorizations[dfthanagement and(directors(oflthe dompany;and (3 ) [provide
reasonable(dssurance [regarding[prevention or[timely [detection lof inauthorized [acquisition, use, [or(disposition[0flthe [dompany’s
assets/that/couldhavelamaterial €ffect(on [the financial[statements.

BecauselofTits[inherent(limitations, [internal(¢ontrol [over[financial [deporting [thay mot[prevent[dr[detectmisstatements.
Also,[projections|dfiany évaluation ofleffectiveness to future [periods lare subject to [the [fisk that[Controls thay becomelihadequate
becauseloflchangeslin/conditions, [orthatlthe degreelofldompliancewith thelpolicies(or [procedures(thay(deteriorate.

Inlourlopinion, the Consolidated financial statements referred[to l@bove present fairly, lin [all material respects, the financial
position[0f ILCIIndustriesand [subsidiaries [@s0f IDecember(31,12016and 2015, [and[the results (0f their(Operations dnd[their(cash
flowsforeach of the yearslinthe three-year period ended December3/1,2016, in conformity with[U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Alsoinlouropinion, the[Company maintained, infall material respects, effectivelinternal Control ver financial reporting
aslofDecember(31,2016,based on criterialestablished in Internal Control 2 Integrated Eramework(2013)issued by the Committee
of[Sponsoring [Organizations [0f'the Treadway [Commission (COSO).

/s/[KPMGILLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 28,2017(]
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LCI INDUSTRIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Yearlended December(31,
2016 2015 2014
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Netlsales $ 1,678,898 $ 1,403,066 $ 1,190,782
Costlofisales 1,249,995 1,097,064 935,859
Gross [profit 428,903 306,002 254,923
Selling,[generalland@dministrative léxpenses 228,053 186,032 157,482
Severance — 3,716 —
Sale[dflextrusion(assets — — 1,954
Operating[profit 200,850 116,254 95,487
Interestléxpense, met 1,678 1,885 430
Income Beforeincome [faxes 199,172 114,369 95,057
Provision [forlincome faxes 69,501 40,024 32,791
Netlihcome $ 129,671 $ 74,345 $ 62266
Netlincome [per(common [share:
Basic $ 5.26 $ 3.06 $ 2.60
Diluted $ 5.20 $ 3.02 $ 2.56
Weightedlaverage common [sharesoutstanding:
Basic 24,631 24,295 23,911
Diluted 24,933 24,650 24,334

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LCI INDUSTRIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year(EndedDecember(31,
2016 2015 2014
(In thousandls)
Consolidated Metihcome $ 129,671 $ 74,345 $ 62,266
Otherdomprehensive[loss:
Netforeigncurrency [franslation/adjustment (1,798) — —
Total[comprehensivelincome $ 127,873 $ 74,345 $ 62,266

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LCI INDUSTRIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December(31,
2016 2015
(In thousands, except per share amount)
ASSETS
Currentlassets
Cashland[cashléquivalents $ 86,170 $ 12,305
Accountsireceivable, net 57,374 41,509
Inventories, Met 188,743 170,834
Prepaidlexpenses and (other currentlassets 35,107 21,178
Total[Current[assets 367,394 245,826
Fixedlassets, met 172,748 150,600
Goodwill 89,198 83,619
Otherlintangiblelassets, net 112,943 100,935
Deferredtaxes 31,989 29,391
Otherl(assets 12,632 12,485
Totall@ssets $ 786,904 $ 622,856
LIABILITIESIAND STOCKHOLDERS’ [EQUITY
Current(liabilities
Accounts[payable,[trade $ 50,616 $ 29,700
Accruedlgxpenses(and(other(currentliabilities 98,735 69,162
Total [Gurrentiabilities 149,351 98,862
Long-termlindebtedness 49,949 49,910
Otherlong-term liabilities 37,335 35,509
Totalliabilities 236,635 184,281
Stockholders’ [équity
Commonlstock, parvalue$.01 [per(share: @uthorized
75,000 shares; issued (27,434 [shares(atMDecember31,2016
and27,039(shares/atDecember31,2015 274 270
Paid-in(capital 185,981 166,566
Retained(éarnings 395,279 301,206
Accumulated [other[comprehensive loss (1,798) —
Stockholders’ [équity [before [treasurystock 579,736 468,042
Treasurystock, atlcost, 2,684 [shares @t Mecember(31,2016
andDecember(31,2015 (29,467) (29,467)
Totallstockholders’[equity 550,269 438,575
Total liabilities land[stockholders’ [€quity $ 786,904 $ 622,856

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LCI INDUSTRIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YearEnded December31,
2016 2015 2014
(In thousandls)
Cash[flowsfrom[operatingactivities:
Netlihcome $ 129,671 $ 74,345 62,266
Adjustments to reconcile netlincomelto(cash flows provided by
operatingactivities:
Depreciationand/@mortization 46,167 41,624 32,596
Stock-based [dompensationeéxpense 15,420 14,043 10,817
Deferreditaxes (2,598) 1,062 (5,493)
Othermon-cashlitems 1,540 1,335 2,796
Changes/in[assets(and (liabilities, Met/oflacquisitions(dflbusinesses:
Accountsreceivable, net (13,899) 2,082 (606)
Inventories, net (7,856) (31,276) (21,940)
Prepaidlexpensesland(dtherlassets (15,553) (2,249) (4,610)
Accounts[payable, trade 18,800 (21,783) 21,269
Accruedlexpenses/and(otherliabilities 31,715 15,835 9,925
Netlcash flows provided by [Operating activities 203,407 95,018 107,020
Cashflowsfromlinvestingactivities:
Capital lexpenditures (44,671) (28,989) (42,458)
Acquisitions0flBusinesses, net0fidash@cquired (48,725) (41,058) (106,782)
Proceedsfrommote [feceivable 2,000 2,000 1,750
Proceedsfrom[sales0ffixed[dssets 698 2,337 3,587
Otherlinvestingldctivities (1,009) (406) (171)
Netlcash flows hised forlinvesting[dctivities (91,707) (66,116) (144,074)
Cash(flows/from[financingactivities:
Exerciseloflstock-based [awards, net(ofishares tendered for[]
[MPayment(ofitaxes 2,574 1,470 5,769
Proceeds(fromlineoficredit(borrowings 81,458 614,629 425,330
Repaymentsiinder line 0flcredit[borrowings (81,458) (630,279) (409,680)
Payment/dfidividends (34,437) (48,227) (46,706)
Proceeds[from [shelf-loanBorrowing — 50,000 —
Payment(dfidontingent(donsideration related [to lacquisitions (4,944) (3,974) (3,739)
Other[financing|activities (1,028) (220) (196)
Netlcash flows hised for financing activities (37,835) (16,601) (29,222)
Netlincreasel(decrease) inlcashland(dashleéquivalents 73,865 12,301 (66,276)
Cashland(cashléquivalents/atbeginning 0flyear 12,305 4 66,280
Cashland(cashléquivalents(atiend(oflyear $ 86,170 $ 12,305 4
Supplementalldisclosure 0ficash flow ihformation:
Cash(paid(duringtheyear(for:
Interest $ 1,992 $ 2,113 641
Incomeltaxes, net0frefunds $ 65,792 $ 33,782 30,947

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LCI INDUSTRIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Other Total
Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury  Stockholders’
Stock Capital Earnings Loss Stock Equity

(In thousands, except shares and per
share amounts)
Balance - December 31, 2013 $ 261 $ 126,360 $ 216,459 — $ (29,467) % 313,613
Netlincome — — 62,266 — — 62,266
Issuance(0f476,047 [shares[0f[dommon

stock[pursuantto [stock-based

awards 4 2,298 — — — 2,302
Incomeltax [benefit(relating tolissuance

ofldommon stock [pursuant o stock-

basedl@wards — 3,914 — — — 3,914
Stock-baseddompensationeéxpense — 10,817 — — — 10,817
Issuance(0f(43,188 [deferred (stock hinits

relating[to[prioryear([compensation — 1,986 — — — 1,986
Dividend/équivalents(on[stock-based

awards — 1,811 (1,811) — — —
Balance - December 31, 2014 265 147,186 276,914 — (29,467) 394,898
Netlincome — — 74,345 — — 74,345
Issuance(0f1505,312 [shares[ofldommon

stock [pursuant|(to[stock-based

awards, met(oflshares(tendered [for

payment/ofitaxes 5 (7,563) — — — (7,558)
Incomeltax (benefitlrelatingtolissuance

ofldommon stock pursuant [tolstock-

basedlawards — 9,028 — — — 9,028
Stock-based [dompensationeéxpense — 14,043 — — — 14,043
Issuance(0f136,578 [deferredstock hinits

relating[to[prior [year(compensation — 2,046 — — — 2,046
Specialcashidividend[($2.00per(share) — — (48,227) — — (48,227)
Dividend/équivalents(on[stock-based

awards — 1,826 (1,826) — — —
Balance - December 31, 2015 270 166,566 301,206 — (29,467) 438,575
Netlincome — — 129,671 — — 129,671
Issuance(0f1395,274 [shares[0fldommon

stock [pursuant(to[stock-based

awards, met0flshares(fendered [for

payment/ofifaxes 4 (5,413) — — — (5,409)
Incomeltax benefit/relatingtolissuance

ofldommon stock pursuant [tolstock-

basedlawards — 7,983 — — — 7,983
Stock-based [dompensationeéxpense — 15,420 — — — 15,420
Issuance(0fl4,784 [deferred(stock hinits

relating[to[prior[year(compensation — 264 — — — 264
Otherlcomprehensiveloss — — — (1,798) — (1,798)
Cashldividends(($1.40 per(share) — — (34,437) — — (34,437)
Dividend(équivalents(on(stock-based

awards — 1,161 (1,161) — — —
Balance - December 31, 2016 $ 274 $ 185,981 $§ 395279 $ (1,798) $ (29,467) § 550,269

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LCI INDUSTRIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

ThelConsolidated Hinancial Statements include the accounts af [LCI Thdustriesland lits wWholly-ownedsubsidiaries(*LCII”
and[dollectively withits[subsidiaries, the “‘Company”). ILCII[hasno linconsolidated [subsidiaries. ILCII, through lits Wwholly-owned
subsidiary, Lippert[Components, Inc.[and/its [Subsidiaries[(collectively, ‘Lippert[Components” [or 'LCI”), supplies, domestically
andlinternationally, (a[broad [array [of(components for(theleadingoriginal [équipment manufacturers [(“OEMs”) [oftecreational
vehicles((RVs”)andl@djacentindustries/including buses; trailersused to Haul boats, livestock, [équipment(and(dther cargo; trucks;
pontoon[boats; [ trains; manufactured "homes; and ' modularhousing.[ The[ Companyalso[suppliesl components[to[the telated
aftermarkets (dftheseihdustries, primarily by selling [fo retail [dealers, wholesale distributors and service (denters. At December 31,
2016, the[Company [operated 48 thanufacturing [and(distribution facilities located throughout/the Wnited States [and ih[Canada land
Italy.

Mostlihdustrieswherelthe Company sells [products (or wherelits products [are used historically have been [Seasonal and are
generally(dtithe(highestlevels whenl(the Wweatherlis moderate. [Accordingly, (the [Company’s salesand [profits have [dgenerally (been
the highest/in thelsecondIquarter and lowestinthe fourth lquarter. However, because loffluctuations/inidealerinventories, the impact
oflinternational, Mational land regional @conomiclconditionsand [donsumer confidencelon retail sales (0f[RVs land (other [products [for
whichthe[Company sells its.Gomponents, [the timing[ofldealer(orders, [and [the impact0fisevere Wweather(donditions[dn[the timing
oflindustry-widelshipments from [fime[tofime, durrent(dnd [futureSeasonal lindustry [frends[thay [be [different[than [in [prior [years.
Additionally, salesof([domponents [fo the @ftermarketchannels(ofltheseindustries tend [fo be [Gounter-seasonal. [

The Company is notaware oflany significantievents, exceptas disclosed in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
which occurredsubsequent [to the balance sheet(date [but [prior to thefiling (0flthis report that Wwould have [@material impact(on the
Consolidated [Financial [Statements.[All [significant[intercompany [balances [and [fransactionshave been[¢liminated. [Certain[prior
yearbalances(liave (beenreclassified[to [donform [to[Gurrentyear [presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

ThelCompany (donsiders(all highly liquidlinvestments with [@maturity [0f three months [0r Iess [at[the [time of [purchase [to
beldashléquivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts[teceivablelarestated (at/historical [darrying[value, metofwrite-offsand(dllowances. The (Company [éstablishes
allowances based [upon historicallexperience land lany [specificcustomer collection issues identified by the Company. Uncollectible
accounts|receivabledreWritten[off (when[d [Settlement[is[feached [or (when[the Company [has[determinedthe[balanceWwill ot be
collected.

Inventories

Inventories(dre(stated (at(the Tower[oflcost[(using [the first-in, first-out method) or (market. [Costlincludes material, (labor
and[dverhead; market(is feplacement(cost(dr(realizablevalue after@llowance for[costs [0fldistribution.

Fixed Assets

Fixedlassets Wwhich arelownedarestatedlat/cost lesslaccumulated [depreciation, land areldepreciated on @lstraight-line Basis
overthelestimated useful lives[oflthe[properties(and ‘eéquipment. [ILeasehold [improvements [and (Teased[équipment are ‘@amortized
over the shorterofthe lives oftheleases or the underlying assets. Maintenanceland repair (costs thatdo mot improve service potential

orlextend/dconomicllife @re/éxpensed (@s incurred.

Warranty

ThelCompany [provides Warranty terms based tipon the type df productisold. The Company [estimates the Warranty laccrual
based Uponivariousfactors, including (i) historical Warranty (Costs, (ii) Current trends, (iii) productmix, and (iv) sales. The accounting
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forwarranty laccruals requires the Company to makelassumptions and judgments, and o the ex tent actual results differ fromloriginal
estimates, [ddjustments|[to [recordedaccruals thay be required.

Income Taxes

Deferred taxassetsand liabilities[@re(determined bBased on the femporarydifferences Between the financial reporting land
tax[basis 0flassetsand liabilities, [dpplyinglenactedstatutory [tax rates(in[éffect for [the [yearin Which the differences [dreexpected
tolreverse.

ThelCompany [accounts(for[uncertainty [in[tax [positions by [decognizing [in[its[financial [Statements the [impact[ofla [tax
position[only [if(thatposition [is ‘morelikely [than[niot[of (being [Sustained [dndudit,Based [on[the[technical merits[dflthe[position.
Further, the Company (@ssesses the [tax benefits [of the [tax [positions in its financial statements (based [on [éxperience With [similar fax
positions,[information(obtainedduring the [éxamination [process [dnd [the[advice ofleéxperts. The Company [fecognizes previously
unrecognized [tax benefitsipon(the darlier dfithe éxpirationlofithe [periodto @ssess taxlinthel@pplicabletaxing jurisdiction dr when
thematter(is[donstructively [Settled [and ipon (changes (in [statutes Or regulations and mew [Gase law [Or [rulings.

ThelCompany [classifies interestland [penaltieslrelated tolincome taxes s ihcome tax lexpenselih its Consolidated [Financial
Statements.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents [theexcess[dflthe tbtal [donsideration[given inan [dcquisition 0fldbusiness (over the[fair[value 0flthe
netltangiblelandidentifiablelintangible @ssetsldcquired. Goodwill is motl@mortized, Butlinstead|is [tested (atthe reporting unitlevel
forimpairment/dnnually in INovember, [orthore [frequently [if[certain dircumstances lindicate a[possiblelimpairment may [éxist. (In
2016[and[2015, the[Company lassessed (qualitative[factorsoflits reporting tinits [fo [determine [whether [it Was more [likely [than not
thelfair value ofithereporting unitWas lessthan lits[darryinglamount, including ‘goodwill. Thequalitative impairmenttest/consists
oflanlassessmentlofiqualitative factors, lincluding [general (@conomicland [industry [conditions, marketshare(and linput(costs.

Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets withlestimableuiseful lives are amortized, primarily on an accelerated basis, overtheir respective estimated
useful lives [to[their(estimated[residual Values, [and reviewed (for impairment. The@amortization (0flother(intangible [dssets [is[done
usingdmethod, straight-linelorl@ccelerated, which Bestreflects/the [pattern inWhichthe [€stimated future [dconomic [benefits (0fithe
asset(will beldonsumed. Theuseful lives oflintangibleassets [dredetermined afterdonsidering [the (expected(cash flows[and [other
specific[facts(and dircumstances(related o (€achintangibleldsset.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-livedlassets, dther thangoodwill, lare [tested for limpairmentwhen [changes in [dircumstances [indicate [their[carrying
value tay motbelrecoverable. Aldetermination (oflimpairment, iflany, is made based lon the hindiscounted valueldflestimated [future
cashflows, [salvagevalueorlexpected metisales proceeds, [depending(on the dircumstances. Impairment/is heasured|(as the [excess
ofltheldarrying [valueover [the estimatedfair value[dflsuch assets.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Assetiretirement/obligations are legal obligations associated With the retirementoflong-lived assets. The Company records
assetlretirementabligations on (Certain(oflits[0owned and leased facilities @nd leased machinery land @quipment. These liabilities are
initiallyrecorded(at(fair value(and areladjustedfor[changes(tesulting [from [fevisions[fo [the[fiming [0r [the [amount oflthe [driginal
estimate.

Environmental Liabilities

Accrualsforlénvironmental thatters(dre rfecorded Whenitlis [probable@(liability has Been ihcurredand the @amount[0fithe
liability[can bereasonably lestimated, based Upon (current law [and existing ltechnologies. (These l@mounts, which are hotldiscounted
andlare(exclusiveloficlaims(against [potentially responsible(third [parties, [are[adjusted [periodically [asassessmentland [remediation
effortsprogressloriadditional fechnical [orlegal ihformation Becomes(available. [Environmental lexposures are difficult to@ssess for
numerous reasons, including theidentification ofinew sites, developments atsites resulting from investigatorystudies land remedial
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activities, [ddvances/inltechnology, [changes/in[environmental (laws [and [fegulations(and[their[application, the[scarcity [0f [feliable
datalpertaining o identifiedsites, the difficulty in assessing the involvementland financial lcapability of other potentially responsible
partiesandthe Company’s ability fo obtain Contributions from other parties, and the lengthy fime periods over which site rtemediation
occurs. [tispossiblesome0fthesematters (the dutcomes of which are siibject to Various incertainties) imay be resolved infavorably
againstthe[Company,(and(could materiallyaffectOperating[resultswhen resolved ihfutureperiods.

Foreign Currency Translation

Theffunctional [currency” (0fithe [Company’s[subsidiaries(in Ttaly [isthe tespective local [currency. [The franslation[from
thelapplicableforeign/currency toU.S. Dollars is performed for balance sheetlaccountsusinglexchange ratesin effectlat the balance
sheet(dateland [for revenuelandléxpense accounts using the weighted laverage leéxchange rate [for the [period. The resulting translation
adjustments (are [recorded(aslalomponent 6flAccumulated [@ther Comprehensive Income (Loss).[]

Financial Instruments

Thelcarryingvalues aficashland cash iequivalents, @ccounts receivablelandlaccounts ipayablelapproximated their fairvalue
duelto [thelshort-term mature (0fltheselinstruments.

Stock-Based Compensation

Alllstock-based [dompensationdwards [dre eéxpensed [over(their Vesting [period, Based on [fair value. [For[awards having d
service-only[Vesting[c¢ondition, [thelCompany [recognizes [stock-based[compensation[expense onlalstraight-line[basis over[the
requisitelservice periods. Foriawards with aiperformance Mesting condition, which are subject to Certainpre-established performance
targets, [the[Company [fecognizes[stock-based [compensation[éxpenseonlagraded-vesting (basisfo [the[éxtentit[is[probable the
performancefargetsWwill e met. The(fair[value[for[stock [options[is [determined ising the Black-Scholes [option-pricingtodel,
whilelthe fair values(ofideferredistock hinits, [restricted[stock nits, restricted [stock and stock lawards [are (Based [on [the market [price
oflthe Company’s Common [Stock, [@ll[on the datelthestock-based awards(are[granted.

Revenue Recognition

ThelCompany [recognizes revenuewhen products lare shippedand thelcustomertakes dwnershipland @ssumes risk ofloss,
collectabilitylis reasonably ldssured, land lthe sales[priceis fixed [drldeterminable. Sales taxes collected fromIcustomers and remitted
tolgovernmental [@uthorities, which(are Mot[significant, [areaccountedforon(ametbasis(and therefore [dreexcluded fromret(sales
inltheConsolidated Statements 0fIncome.

Shipping and Handling Costs

ThelCompany[tecords shippinglandhandling[¢osts[within[selling,[ general and[administrative[expenses. [Suchl¢osts
aggregated($51.8 million,$45.8 thillionand [$40.9 million in thelyearslended Mecember 31,2016,2015@nd 2014, respectively.

Legal Costs

The[Companyéxpenses all(legal¢osts/associated Wwith[litigation(asincurred. Legalléxpenses[arelincludedlin[selling,
generallandladministrativeléxpenses in [the[Consolidated [Statements[ofIncome.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair(valuelis/determineduising(d (hierarchy [that has[threelevelsbased [On[the[reliability [0fithe[inputs iised [to[determine
fairivalue. ILevel(l [refersto [fair[values/determined based [on quoted [prices [in [active harkets [for identical assets. LLevel 2 [fefers [fo
fair[values[estimated (usingsignificantlotherobservablelinputs, and[Level[3 [includes[fair[values[estimated (usingSignificant
unobservablelinputs.
Use of Estimates

Thelpreparation offinancial 'statements [ih [onformity Withlaccountinglprinciplesgenerally[@ccepted [in the Wnited [States

oflAmericalrequireslthe Company fo akeestimates/and judgments [that(affect the reported @mounts(oflassets, liabilities, met(sales
andlexpenses, and related disclosureloficontingent lassets and liabilities. Dnlan longoing basis, the Company levaluates|its [éstimates,
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including, butmotlimited to, those related to iproduct returns, sales and [purchase rebates, ldccounts receivable, ihventories, [goodwill
andlotherlintangiblelassets, netlassetsloflacquired businesses, ihncome taxes, warranty land [productirecall obligations, lself-insurance
obligations, lease ferminations, @ssetretirementobligations, long-lived @ssets, post-retirement benefits, stock-based dompensation,
segment(allocations, [¢ontingent[consideration, [énvironmental [liabilities, [contingencies and(litigation. [ The [Company [bases its
estimates/on Historicallexperience, dtherlavailableihformationand warious/other@assumptions believed to Be feasonable linder the
circumstances, [the [fesults[offwhich[form [the (basis [for haking judgments[dboutthe[darrying values[0fldssets [dnd [liabilities Mot
readily [apparentfrom[Other fesources. [Actual results [and évents ([dould[differ Significantly from hanagement/gstimates.

2. ACQUISITIONS, GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Acquisitions in 2017
SessaKlein S.p.A.

InFebruary2017,the[Company [dcquired 100 [percent (0fithe loutstanding(shares0f[SessaKlein(S.p.A. (F‘SessaKlein™),d
manufacturer(ofHighly l@ngineered side Window [systems [for both High [speedland (commuter trains, Tocated MearVarese, Italy. The
purchase price Was($8.5 million paid at closing, plus/contingent Consideration based onfuture sales by this Operation. The Company
islunableltomake@llthedisclosures [required by ASC[805-10-50-2 @tlthistime @s thelinitial Accounting land [pro formalanalysis [for
this[business/combinationlislincomplete.

Acquisitions in 2016
Camping Connection

InNovember(2016, the[Company ldcquired [the service centers and [related business[of (CampingConnection, Tnc.,an RV
repairlandlservice providerllocated in MyrtleBeach, [SouthCarolinaland Kissimmee, Florida. The [purchase price was($2.0 mhillion
paidiat/dlosing.

Atwood Seating and Chassis Components

In[November(2016,[the[Companyacquired(thebusiness, manufacturing(facility [and[¢ertain[assets of[the[Seatingland
chassis[domponentsbusiness[dflAtwood MobileProducts, ILLCI(F*Atwood”),@subsidiary [0f [Dometic[Group,Tocatedin ([Elkhart,
Indiana.Thelpurchase [price[was$12.5million paid(atclosing. The results(0fithe [dcquired business Have [Been included [primarily
in[the[Company’s[OEM [Segment(and(in[the[Consolidated [Statements[oflIncome(since(thelacquisition[date. [ The[Company!is
validating[accountbalances[and(finalizingthe Valuation[forthe dcquisition. Thelacquisition [of(this [business was preliminarily
recorded [onthe@cquisitiondate as [follows (in thousands):

Cash[donsideration $ 12,463
Customer relationships $ 2,116
Netlotherlassets 10,347

Total fair value0f et @ssets acquired $ 12,463

Thelcustomer [relationshipsintangible@ssetis[Being @mortized [Overlits [preliminary [éstimated [useful life (of 15 [years.
Project 2000 S.r.1.

In[May[2016,[the[Company [acquired[100[percent[ ofl thelequity [interestl of Project[2000(S.r.1.[(“Project[20007),la
manufacturer@fiinnovative, Space-saving bedTiftsand retractable steps, located mear Florence, Ttaly. The purchase price was $18.8
million[paid(at/closing, plus(contingentdonsideration based (on future(sales By this(Operation. The results 0fithe [@cquired business
have beenlincluded primarilyih the Company’s OEM [Segmentlandin the Consolidated [Statementslafhcome since the l@cquisition
date.The[Companylisvalidating[accountbalances andfinalizing ‘the valuation [for the [dcquisition.
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Thelacquisition(oflthis(business was [preliminarily recorded [on [the [dcquisition(datelas follows|(in thousands):

Cash(donsideration metlofidash@cquired $ 16,137
Contingent/donsideration 1,322
Total fair Walue[of[consideration[given $ 17,459
Customer relationships $ 9,694
Otherlidentifiablelintangible @ssets 5,193
Netlother assets 128
Total fair[valueoflnet(dssets @cquired $ 15,015
Goodwill[(not[tax [deductible) $ 2,444

Thelcustomer relationships lintangible @sset/is being [@mortized (dverlits preliminary l[dstimated hiseful life [0f (15 lyears. The
consideration/given Was greaterthan the fair value bfthe netlassetslacquired, resulting in goodwill, because the Company anticipates
thelattainment oflsynergiesland dn increase [in [the harkets forthe(dcquired [products.

Flair Interiors

InFebruary2016,the Companylacquired/the Business [and [dertain [@ssets 0f([Flair Interiors, Inc. [(FFlair”),lamanufacturer
of RV furniturellocatedin Goshen, Tndiana. The purchase price was$8.1 million paid it closing. The results ofithe acquired business
havebeen ihcluded primarily infthe Company’s[OEM [Segment andlin the Consolidated [Statementsof Ihcomelsince the ldcquisition
date.Theldcquisition (0flthis Business Wwasrecorded (onthe [dcquisition(dateas follows|(in thousands):

Cash(donsideration $ 8,100
Customer|relationships $ 3,700
Netlother(@ssets 2,378
Totalfair value of met @ssetsl@acquired $ 6,078
Goodwill((tax[deductible) $ 2,022

Thelcustomerlrelationships fihtangible @sset is beinglamortized lover itsestimated tseful life Gf 15 years. The Consideration
givenwas greater thanthe fair Value ofthe netlassets acquired, resulting inlgoodwill, because the Company anticipates the attainment
oflsynergieslandanincreaselin/the markets(forthel@cquired products.

Highwater Marine Furniture

InJanuary 2016, the Company dcquired the business land [Certainassets (0f the pontoon furniture anufacturing operation
of(Highwater Marine, [LLC[(“Highwater”), d[leading(manufacturerof [pontoon(and(other tecreational (boats located [in Elkhart,
Indiana. Thelpurchase [priceWwas[$10.0million [paid(aticlosing. The results[ofthe acquired Businesshave been included primarily
inlthe[Company’s/(WEM [Segment and inthe Consolidated [Statements (6f Income [sincelthelacquisition(date. The[acquisition [0flthis
business Was [recorded(on [the acquisition(date(as follows((in thousands):

Cash(donsideration $ 10,000
Customer [relationships $ 8,100
Netltangibleassets 1,307
Total fair Walue [of et [@ssets [@cquired $ 9,407
Goodwill((tax [deductible) $ 593
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Thelcustomer relationships intangible @ssetis being lamortizedlover its lestimated useful life 0f(115 years. The iconsideration
givenwaslgreater thanthefair valueldflthe metlassets lacquired, resulting lih goodwill, because the Company lanticipates leveraging
itslexistingléxperience andanufacturing[dapacity withrespectfo these product lines.

Acquisitions in 2015

Signature Seating

In/August2015, the Company [dcquired the (business [and [Certain [@ssets [0f Roehm Marine, ILLC, [also known[as [Signature
Seating[(“Signature”), [a[manufacturer(of furniture(solutionsfor fresh water [boat[manufacturers, [primarily [pontoon boats. The
purchase [price was($16.0 million [paid(at(closing, plusdontingent[donsideration based [on futuresales ofithis[0peration. The results
ofithelacquired business havebeenlihcludedin the Company’s[(OEM Segmentandfih the Consolidated Statementsdf Tncome [since
thelacquisition[date. The dcquisition (0fTthis[Business was(recorded on thedcquisition(date(as([follows (in thousands):

Cash[donsideration $ 16,000
Contingent[consideration 3,556
Total[fair value[ofldonsideration/given $ 19,556
Customer [relationships $ 7,500
Net/otherlassets 4,023

Total fair[value oflnet(dssets @cquired $ 11,523

Goodwilll(tax [deductible) $ 8,033

Thelcustomer relationshipsintangible @sset is being lamortizedlover its lestimated useful life Qf(115 years. The iconsideration
givenwas|greater thanthe fair valuelofithe metlassets dcquired, resultinglih[goodwill, because the [Company [anticipatesleveraging

itslexistingleéxperience and thanufacturing Gapacity (with respect to these [product [lines, [and [also Believes the[diversified [customer
base will further/its[expansionintoadjacentindustries.

Spectal Industries

In[April2015,the[Companylacquired(the Business [and dertain dssets 0flIndustries [Spectal, Inc.[(*“Spectal ), d [Quebec,
Canada-based manufacturer 0fwindows [and doors [primarily forschool buses, @s well [@s [dommercial Buses, [@émergency Wehicles,
trucks, lagricultural eéquipmentand RVs. Thefpurchase priceWwas($22.3 million paid at(closing, plus ontingent consideration based
onlfuture sales of'this operation. The results ofthe acquired business have been included primarily lin the Company’s (OEM Segment
and[in(the Consolidated [StatementsofIncome[sSince[theldcquisition date. Thelacquisition[of(this[business Wwasrfecorded[on(the
acquisition(datelas follows|(in thousands):

Cash[donsideration $ 22,335
Contingent/consideration 1,211
Total[fair valuelofldonsideration/given $ 23,546
Customerlrelationships $ 10,100
Netlotherlassets 4,381

Total fair[value oflnet(dssets @cquired $ 14,481

Goodwilll(tax [deductible) $ 9,065

Thelcustomerrelationships fintangible @sset is beinglamortized lover its lestimated useful life [df (15 years. The consideration
givenwas|greater thanthe fair Valuelofithe metlassets @cquired, resultinglih[goodwill, because the [Company [anticipates leveraging
itslexistingleéxperience [and tanufacturingcapacity with respect/to theseproductlines, @nd(alsobelieves [the [diversified [dustomer
base will furtherlits[expansioninto[ddjacent industries.
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EA Technologies

InJanuary(2015, the[Companyacquired thebusiness(andcertain(assets(0f [EATechnologies, LLC(“EA[Technologies™),
athanufacturer 0flcustom steel land ‘aluminum [parts @and [provider [oflelectro-deposition[(‘e-coat’) land [powder[coating [services for
RV, bus, medium-duty truck, automotive, recreational marine, [specialty land wtility [trailer, land military lapplications. The [purchase
pricewas($9.2 million, 0ftwhich($6.6 million Was [paidin (the fourth quarter(0f2014, with the (balance paid atclosing. The [results
ofithelacquired business havebeenlihcluded ihthe[Company’s[(OEM [Segment/andih the Consolidated Statementsdf Thcome since
thelacquisition[date. The dcquisition 0flthis Business was(recorded on thedcquisitiondate(as[follows (in thousands):

Cash[consideration $ 9,248
Identifiablelintangible @ssets $ 480
Netltangibleassets 8,868
Total fairvalue Ofmetl@ssets@cquired $ 9,348
Gain[on [bargain [purchase $ 100
Acquisitions in 2014

Duncan Systems

InlAugust2014, [the [Company [dcquired the [Business [and (dertain [@ssets (6f Duncan Systems, Inc. (F‘Duncan Systems”), [an
aftermarket(distributor [oflteplacementmotorhome windshields, [awnings, [and [RV, heavy [fruck [and [$pecialty [vehicle[glass [and
windows, primarily fo fulfill ihsurance claims. Thepurchaseprice Was $18.0 million paid at Closing, [plus Contingent Consideration
based on[future [Sales[ofthis[operation. The [results (0f[the [dcquired (businesshave Beenlincluded inthe[Company’sAftermarket
Segment/and(inthe(ConsolidatedStatements [0f Income [since[the [dcquisition date. Theldcquisition [0flthis business Was[recorded
on'thelacquisitiondatelas follows (in thousands):

Cash(donsideration $ 18,000
Contingent/donsideration 1,914
Total [fairvaluedflconsideration(given $ 19,914
Customer relationships $ 10,500
Netlotherlassets 5,000
Total fair value[of et [@ssets [dcquired $ 15,500
Goodwill [(tax [deductible) $ 4,414

Thelcustomerrelationships fintangible asset is beinglamortized lover itslestimated useful life df 14 years. The consideration
givenwaslgreater than the fair valueldf the [@ssetsacquired, resultingin [goodwill, Because the Company anticipates the lattainment
oflsynergiesland/an increase/in market(share(for(thedistributed [products.

Power Gear and Kwikee Brands
InlJune(2014,the[Company [dcquired[the RV [business 0f[Actuant[Corporation, which hanufactures(leveling[systems,
slide-outimechanisms and steps, [primarily [for hotorhome RVs, inder the Power (Gear land [Kwikee brands. The purchase [price was

$35.5million, paidaticlosing. The resultsGfthe Acquired Business have Been included [Primarily ih the Company’s OEM[Segment
andlih the Consolidated [Statements of(Income [since [the [dcquisition date.
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Thelacquisition(oflthisbusiness Was [fecordedon theldcquisition(dateas follows[(in thousands):

Cash/donsideration $ 35,500
Customer[relationships $ 12,300
Patents 5,300
Otherlidentifiablelintangible [@ssets 2,130
Netltangible @ssets 2,227

Total fair[value oflnet(dssets @cquired $ 21,957

Goodwill[(tax [deductible) $ 13,543

Thelcustomer relationships lintangible@ssetlis[beinglamortized [overlits (éstimated [useful life[0f[14 [years [and[the [patents
arebeinglamortizeddverl(theirléstimateduseful life(ofigightlyears. Theldonsideration[given was(greater(than [the fair value[ofithe
assetsldcquired, resulting ih[goodwill, Because the Company @nticipates the @ttainment(ofsynergies land lanincrease [in the harkets
for(thelacquired(products.

Star Design

InMarch 2014, the Company lacquired the business [and [certain lassets afStar Mesign, ILLC(**Star Mesign”). The [gurchase
pricewas$12.2 millionpaid/aticlosing. Theresults 0ftheacquired Business have Been included primarily ihfhe Company’s[OEM
Segment(and(in/the[Consolidated[Statements loflIncome[Since the[acquisition[date. Theldcquisition[ofithis businesswas recorded
on'thelacquisitiondatelas [follows(in thousands):

Cash(cdonsideration $ 12,232
Customerl(relationships $ 4,400
Netlotherlassets 2,718
Total fair[valueoflnet(assets @cquired $ 7,118
Goodwill[(tax[deductible) $ 5,114

Thelcustomer relationshipsintangible @ssetis being lamortizedlover its lestimated useful life 0f(1/4 years. The iconsideration
givenWaslgreater thanthefair valueldfthe metlassets @cquired, resulting lih goodwill, because the Company ldnticipates leveraging
itslexistingleéxperience land thanufacturing Gapacity with respect to these [product lines, [and [also Believesthe diversified [customer
base will further/its[expansioninto[ddjacentindustries.

Innovative Design Solutions

In[February 2014, the[ Company[acquired [ Innovative[ Design Solutions, [ Inc.[(“IDS”), al designer, developerand
manufacturer oflélectronicsystems/éncompassingd[wide [variety [0f[RV [applications. IDS [also manufactures [électronic [Systems
forlautomotive, medical [dnd [industrial [dpplications. [The purchase price Wwas[$35.9 million, [0fiwhich[$34.2 million Wwas [paid[dt
closing, (with[the[balance [fo (bepaidoutlannually [0ver(the Subsequent [three years, plus(contingentdonsideration based on future
sales(oflthis/operation. (Thelresults (ofthe[dcquired [Business havebeen included primarily [in[the Company’s(ODEM[Segment(and in
the[Consolidated[Statements [oflIncome since the @cquisitiondate.
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Thelacquisition(oflthisbusiness Was [fecordedon theldcquisition(dateas follows[(in thousands):

Cash/donsideration
Presentvalueloffuturelpayments
Contingent[consideration

Total fair[valuelofidonsideration(given

Patents
Customer [relationships
Otherlidentifiablelintangible @ssets
Netltangible @ssets

Total fair[value oflnet(dssets @cquired

Goodwill((tax[deductible)

$

34,175
1,739
710
36,624

6,000
4,000
3,180
1,894
15,074

21,550

Thelpatents(are (beinglamortized [over their [éstimated [useful (life[of[10 years(dand thedustomer(telationships/intangible
assetlisBeinglamortized(dver[its éstimated useful life[0f[12 [years. Thelconsideration [given Was [greater thanthe fair(value oflthe
assetsacquired, resulting in goodwill, because the Company lanticipateslanincrease in the markets for the acquired products, market

share(growth(ihBothlexisting[and Mew [mharkets, [dsWell s attainment 0fisynergies.
Goodwill

Goodwill by reportable[segmentwas [as [follows:

OEM Aftermarket
(In thousandls) Segment Segment Total
Netbalance = MDecember31,2014 $ 52,815 $ 13,706 $ 66,521
Acquisitions 32015 17,007 91 17,098
Netbalance FMDecember31,2015 69,822 13,797 83,619
Acquisitions 32016 5,059 738 5,797
Other (218) — (218)
Netbalance = MDecember31,2016 $ 74,663 $ 14,535 $ 89,198

ThelCompany [performed its [@annual [goodwill impairment[procedures for(all[ofTits Heporting Winits[as ofNovember 30,
2016,20151and[2014,[andconcluded Mo (goodwill impairmentexistedat(thattime. The Company [plans to ipdatelits[review ds[of
November(30,2017,orsoonerlifiévents(occur [oricircumstances (change that could more likely [than not[feduce [the [fair value 0fla
reporting unitbelow lits carrying Malue. Ih Conjunction With the Company’sichange fin reportable segments during the second lquarter
of2016(seeNote14), goodwill wasreassigned [tb [reporting inits lising [d[relative [fairvaluelallocation. Tnladdition, the Company
completed[@nldssessment(oflany[potential [goodwill impairmentforall [reporting inits immediately [priorto[the [feallocation [and
determined (thatolimpairmentexisted. The/goodwill balance ihcludes [$50.5 mhillion [dflaccumulated impairment, Whichdccurred

priortoMecember(31,2014.

Any changelin[the goodwill @amounts(resulting[from [foreign[currency [translations [and [purchase [dccounting(adjustments

are(presented(as [Other” ih [the @bove table.
Other Intangible Assets

Otherlintangiblelassets, by [Segment, [donsisted (0flthe following [atDecember31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015

OEM Segment $ 97,689 $ 84,752

Aftermarket/Segment 15,254 16,183
Otherlintangible @ssets $ 112,943 $ 100,935
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Otherlintangible@ssetsconsisted 0flthe followinglatMecember 31,22016:

Estimated
Gross Accumulated Net Useful
(In thousandls) Cost Amortization Balance LifelinYears
Customerl(relationships $ 110,784 $ 32,414 $ 78,370 6 to 16
Patents 56,468 34,066 22,402 3 to 19
Tradenames 10,041 5,667 4,374 3 to 15
Non-competelagreements 5,852 2,975 2,877 3 to 6
Other 309 76 233 2 to 12
Purchased (researchland/development 4,687 — 4,687 Indefinite
Otherlintangible@ssets $ 188,141 $ 75,198 $ 112,943
Otherlintangiblelassetsconsisted [0flthe followingatDecember 31,2015:
Estimated
Gross Accumulated Net Useful
(In thousands) Cost Amortization Balance Lifelin(Years
Customerrelationships $ 94,560 $ 30,514 $ 64,046 6 to 16
Patents 54,293 28,255 26,038 3 to 19
Tradenames 8,935 4,751 4,184 3 to 15
Non-competelagreements 4,493 2,800 1,693 3 to 6
Other 594 307 287 2 to 12
Purchased(researchlanddevelopment 4,687 — 4,687 Indefinite
Other lintangibleassets $ 167,562 $ 66,627 $ 100,935
Amortizationexpenselrelated(toother(intangible @ssetsiwas(ds follows [forthelyears/énded December(31:
(In thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Costloflsales $ 5,967 $ 6,017 $ 5,092
Selling, [general [and [ddministrative 11,791 10,038 7,612
Amortization/éxpense $ 17,758 $ 16,055 $ 12,704
Estimatedlamortizationéxpense [forO0ther lintangibledssetsfor [the mMext five [yearsis(as follows:
(In thousandls) 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Costloflsales $ 5,809 $ 4973 $ 4,330 $ 3,283 $ 2,743
Selling, [general [and [ddministrative 10,989 10,405 9,362 8,060 7,466
Amortizationléxpense $ 16,798 $ 15,378 $ 13,692 $ 11,343 § 10,209
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3. RECEIVABLES

Thelfollowing(table[provides a[reconciliation [of[theactivity [related [to the[Company’s(allowance [for[doubtful [accounts
receivable, forlthe yearslended December(31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Balancelatbeginning ofperiod $ 844 $ 917 $ 705
Provision [for/doubtful [dccounts (83) 5) 178
Additions [related [to [dcquired Businesses 29 33 58
Recoveries — 8 4
Accounts written [0ff (135) (109) (28)
Balancelat(énd (0fperiod $ 655 $ 844 $ 917

Inaddition to theallowance for doubtful accountsreceivable, the Company hadlan allowance for prompt payment discounts
inthe @mount(6f1$0.5 thillionand($0.4 mhillion @t Mecember31,2016(and 2015, respectively.

4. INVENTORIES

Inventories(donsisted 0flthe followinglatDecember31:

(In thousandls) 2016 2015
Raw materials $ 155,044 $ 144,397
Worklinlprocess 7,509 4,932
Finished[goods 26,190 21,505

Inventories, Met $ 188,743 $ 170,834
5. NOTES RECEIVABLE

InApril2014, the Company [entered linto @lsix-yearlaluminum lextrusion supply @greement, and [Concurrently [Sold [Certain
aluminum @xtrusionfassets. The Company recorded @pre-tax Tossf$2.0 million in theSecondquarter[6f2014 Onfthe sale6fthe
aluminum éxtrusion-related(assets. Tnconnectionwith thesale, the Company received [$0.3 million(dtclosingland @$7.2 million
notereceivableldollectibleoverthe mextfour(years, Tecorded atlits [Present Value 0f[$6.4 million on thedate[0f'Closing. Muring
201652014, the[Company [feceived installments 6{1$5.8 Thillion inder the Mote. At MDecember 31,2016, the Present Value0fTthe
remaininglamount(due inderthe mote receivablewas$1.4 millionlincludedlinprepaid [€xpenses @nd [Gther[current@ssets.

InTuly 2015, the[Company [dgreed to terminate the supply @greement, [@nd s [Consideration the Company received @$2.0
millionNotefreceivableCollectibleih 2019 and 2020. The Company recorded this notereceivableat iits present Malueldf $1.6 million
andlaldorresponding(gain[0f($1.6million[in(the 2015 [third[quarter./At[December 31,2016, the presentvalueloflthe femaining
amount(dueunderlthe otelreceivablewas($1.7 thillionlincluded ih[dther(dssets.
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6. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed/assets(donsisted 0flthe [following(atDecember31:

Estimated Useful

(In thousandls) 2016 2015 LifelinYears
Land $ 13,802 $ 11,064
Buildingsland/improvements 106,831 89,616 100140
Leaseholdimprovements 11,918 11,147 3[to0
Machinery [andléquipment 167,691 153,784 3[to15
Furnitureland fixtures 27,053 20,653 3[fo(8
Construction [in [progress 10,067 5,512

Fixedassets, [@t[cost 337,362 291,776
Lesslaccumulated depreciationlandlamortization 164,614 141,176

Fixed[dssets, Het $ 172,748 $ 150,600

Depreciation/andlamortization 0flfixed [dssetsWwas(asfollows for[the yearsended IDecember31:

(In thousandls) 2016 2015 2014
Costloflsales $ 22,993 $ 21,289 $ 16,364
Selling,general l@andladministrativeleéxpenses 5,140 4,137 3,440

Total $ 28,133 $ 25,426 $ 19,804
7. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accruedlgxpensesandlother(currentliabilities (consisted [dflthe followingat[December(31:

(In thousandls) 2016 2015
Employeelcompensation @nd benefits $ 47,459 $ 25,147
Current[portion(dflaccruedwarranty 20,393 17,020
Customerrebates 9,329 7,993
Other 21,554 19,002
Accruedlexpenseslandother(current(liabilities $ 98,735 $ 69,162

Estimated(costs[related [fo[productwarranties(are(accrued|at/the fime [products [@re(sold. Tnestimating [its future Warranty
obligations, the Company (onsiders various [factors, including/the Company’s (i) (istorical Warrantycosts, [(ii) [durrent[trends, [(iii)

productirhix, and((iv) sales.

Thelfollowing table[provides(areconciliation 0flthe [dctivity [related [tb the[Company’s [dccrued Warranty, lincluding (both

thelcurrentland long-term [portions, [for the yearsended December(31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Balancelatbeginning dfiperiod $ 26,204 $ 21,641 $ 17,325
Provision [forWwarranty [€xpense 20,985 17,267 12,860
Warranty [liability from[acquired [Businesses 125 240 688
Warranty [Costs [paid (14,921) (12,944) (9,232)
Balanceatlend oflperiod 32,393 26,204 21,641
Lessllong-term[portion 12,000 9,184 7,125
Currentlportion/ofidccrued Warranty $ 20,393 $ 17,020 $ 14,516
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8. RETIREMENT AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Contribution Plan

ThelCompany thaintains [@ldiscretionary [defined[contribution 401 (k) [profitisharing[plan/covering @ll eligiblelemployees.
TheCompany [¢ontributed[$3.1 million, [$2.5millionland[$1.8 million[fo [this [planduringthe[years[énded December 31,2016,
2015(and 2014, [respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

ThelCompany haslanExecutive Won-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan[(the {Plan”). Pursuant(to ‘the Plan, Gertain
managementemployees are eligible to defer all orlaiportion of their regular salary and incentive compensation. Participants/deferred
$2.3 million,[$1.2millionland($1.6 million during the yearslended December 31,12016,2015(and 2014, respectively. Thelamounts
deferredinder(this [Plan are(dredited with[éarnings [or(losses Based ipon (changes(in Malues 6ftheMotional ihvestments(elected by
the[Planparticipants. BachPlan pparticipantiis fully Mested in theirldeferredlcompensation and €arnings icredited to his lor herlaccount
aslallldontributions(to[the [Planare made by [the [participant.[The[Company [is[responsible for Gertain[costs[0f Plan [ddministration,
which (aremotlsignificant, @and Will Mot thake any [Contributions [to [the Plan. Rursuant o the Plan, [payments[tothe [Plan participants
aremade from [the [general linrestricted [@ssets0flthe[Company,(and the[Company’s(obligations [pursuantto [the [Plan are infunded
andinsecured. Participants withdrew $1.5 million, $0.8 millionland $0.4 million from the Plan during the yearsended December 31,
2016,2015@nd 2014, respectively. AtIDecember 31,2016@nd 2015, deferred compensation 0f($13.4 rhillion@nd$11.7 million,
respectively,Wasrecorded(inGther Tong-term liabilities, and ideferred Compensation Gf1$0.2 million @nd[$0.2 mhillion, fespectively,
was[recorded(inlaccruedlexpensesland(other current liabilities. [The [Company [investsdpproximately (60 [percent 6fthe[@amounts
deferred by [the [Plan[participants(in life(insurancecontracts, hatching [thelinvestmentsélected By [the Plan(participants. Deferred
compensationassetslandliabilities dre(recorded(dticontractvalue. [AtDecember 31,2016land 2015, lifelinsurancelcontract assets
of($8.2 mhillionland[$7.8million, respectively, were recorded [in [Gther [@ssets.

9. LONG-TERM INDEBTEDNESS
AtDecember 31,2016/and 2015, the[Company (HadHo [Gutstanding borrowings onits line (dfcredit.

On(Bebruary24,2014, the[Company [eénteredinto @$75.0 milliondinedficredit (the “Credit/Agreement”) with TPMorgan
ChaseBank,IN.A.[and [Wells[Fargo Bank, IN.A.[OnMarch(3,12015,in[accordance [Wwith the ‘terms[0f(the [Credit[Agreement, the
Company [increased (itsline[of[¢redit(by[$25.0 million[to[$100.0million. (Intereston (borrowings inderthe(line[oflcredit[Wwas
designated from[time to time By [the [Company [as either((i)the Prime[Rate, hinus(arate ranging from[0.75 [to 1.0 [percent[(minus
1.0percentlatDecember31,2015), ButmotIessthan(l.5 Percent, or((ii) [LIBOR, [plusadditionallinterest ranging from1.75 {0 2.0
percent((plus(1.75[percentlatDecember31,2015)[dependingldnthe[Company’s [performanceland financial [condition.

OnlApril(27,12016,the[Company@nnounced [the fefinancing [0flits [line [0f[creditthroughldnagreement with[JPMorgan
ChaseBank, N.A.,[Wells BargoBank, N.A., Bank(df/America, N.A.,land Ist[Source Bank. The lagreementldmends and restates the
existing lineloficredit, which Was [scheduled tolexpirelon January (1), 2019, land now expires an April 27,2021 (the "Amended Credit
Agreement”). Inlconnectionwiththis @mendment [and restatement, [the line (0f credit wasincreased from ($100.0 million [to[$200.0
million,[and[¢ontains[a[feature[allowingthe [Company [fo [draw ip o [$50.0 million [in [approved [foreign[¢urrencies, including
Australian(dollars,Canadian(dollars,[pound|sterling [and[éuros. [ The maximum borrowings inder [the [line (0fcredit/can Be [further
increased By [$125.0 mhillion, Subjectfo certainconditions. InterestlonBorrowingsinder the mew line6flcrediti5 [designated from
timel[to [time by [the[Company(as(cither((i) the[Alternate Base Rate(definedinthe /Amended [Credit[Agreement [as [the [greatest (0f
(a)lthe Prime Rate[0f[JPMorgan [Chase, (b) the[federal [funds effective rate (plus(0.5 [percent [@nd (¢) [the [Adjusted (LIBO [Rate[(as
definedinlthe Amended (Credit/Agreement) for @ldne thonth interest (period [plus 1.0 percent), plus @dditional interest ranging [from
0.0lpercentt00.625 percent(0.0percentat Mecember 31,2016)depending onthe Company’s performanceland financial idondition,
or((ii) the Adjusted LIBO Rate foraiperiod €qual to lone, tivo, three, six or fvelve months as selected by the Company, plusadditional
interestranging(from(1.0[percent(to1.625 [percent((1.0 percentat Mecember 31,2016)[dependingonthe(Company’s performance
and[financial¢ondition.[AtDecember 31,[2016[and 2015, The[Company (had[$2.5 millionand$2.7 (million, (Fespectively, [in
outstanding, (butindrawn, [standby [letters (0ficredithinder(theline0flcredit. [Availability hinderthe[Company’s line[df credit[was
$197.5 million@tDecember 31,2016.

On(February 24,2014, the[Company alsoléntered into@a$150.0rhillion “shelf-loan” facility With Prudential Tnvestment

Management, Inc. and/its affiliates (FPrudential”). The(facility [provides for [Prudential [to [consider [purchasing, at/the (Company’s
request, [in[oneldra series[df fransactions,[Senior[Promissory [Notes [0flthe[Company in[the dggregate [principal @mount[ofup(fo
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$150.0million, to thature no more ‘than (12 years/after(the[date[0floriginal lissue[0fleachSenior Promissory Note. [OnMarch (20,
2015, the[Company lissued[$50.0 million (6f[Senior[Promissory Notes fo Prudential for @lterm[0f five [years, at(afixed interest rate
of13.35[percent[per[dnnum, payable(quarterlylin(drrears, (0f Wwhich the[éntire [dmount[was[dutstanding [atDecember 31,[2016.[At
December 31,2016, the(fairvalueofthe[Company’s long-term(debtlapproximates(the(darrying value, [ds [éstimated lising quoted
market(prices(and[discounted future (Gash [flows based on similarBorrowinglarrangements.

OnlApril27,2016,the[Companyladlsoldmended(and restated [its 'shelf-loan” facility with [Prudential [to .conform dertain
covenants/and [other(terms(to/the[Amended(Credit/Agreement. Prudential has(nolobligation [to [purchase(the[Senior[Promissory
Notes. Interestpayable(on(the[Senior Promissory Notes will (be atrates [determined by [(Prudential Wwithin[five [Business [days [after
the[Company lissues d(tequest(toPrudential.[Availability lunder[the [Company’sfshelf-loan” (facility,[Subject to the [approval [of
Prudential,was($100.0million(@tDecember 31,12016.

Borrowingsinder Both(the lineoflcreditland(the [shelf-loan” [facility [are(secured [0n (@ [pari-passu basis by (first(priority
liens(on[the[capital stock dr(other €quity interestslofithe[Company’s(direct@nd indirectsubsidiaries((including ip [to 65 [percent (of
thelequity linterest(dfidertain “icontrolled [foreign(dorporations.”)

Pursuant(to(the[Amended Credit[Agreement/and[“shelf-loan” [(facility,[the [Company (is [tequired [to [thaintain minimum
interestand fixed chargelcoverages, and o meet Certain other financial requirements. At December 31,2016and 2015, the Company
wasih[compliance with @ll such requirements, [and [éxpects[to femain in[dompliance [for the mext(twelve tonths.

Availability iinder Boththe[Amended[Credit(Agreement(dnd [the fshelf-loan” [facility [is[subject[fo [d aximum leverage
ratiolcovenantwhich(limits the @mount/cficonsolidated|dutstanding ihdebtedness(to 2.5 times the frailing fivelve-month[EBITDA,
asldefined. This limitation/did mot impactithe Company’s borrowingavailability lat December 31,2016. Thelremaining availability
underfthese facilities was[$297.5million @t Mecember 31,2016.Theindrawn“shelf-loan” facility €xpired February 24,2017, and
the[Company(and [Prudential(dre [currently [discussing renewal lterms. [The[Company (believes [the[d@vailability inder(the [Amended
Credit/Agreementlislddequate(to [financelthe[Company’santicipateddash(requirements for [the Mext twelve months.

10. INCOME TAXES

Thelcomponents6fidarningsbeforeincome(taxes(donsisted (0flthe [following for the yearsléended December31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 2014

United [States $ 196,827 $ 113,280 $ 95,057

Foreign 2,345 1,089 —
Totalldarnings beforelihcome [taxes $ 199,172 $ 114,369 $ 95,057

Thelprovision[forlihncome[taxes[in [the[Consolidated [Statements[of Income Was [@s[follows [forthe[years eénded
December(31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Current:
Federal $ 61,073 $ 31,132 $ 32,142
Stateland(lbcal 10,560 7,670 6,142
Foreign 466 160 —
Total [Gurrent(provision 72,099 38,962 38,284
Deferred:
Federal (2,506) 466 (4,545)
Statelandlocal (110) 596 (948)
Foreign 18 — —
Totalldeferred(provision (2,598) 1,062 (5,493)
Provision [forihcome [faxes $ 69,501 $ 40,024 $ 32,791
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Thelprovision for ihcometaxes [differs from ithe @mount computed By Applying [the federal istatutory rate fo income before
income [taxes [for [the following [reasonsfor [the [yearslénded December(31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Income [tax [@t[federal [Statutory rate $ 69,710 $ 40,029 $ 33,270
Statelincome [tax, netloflfederal income [tax limpact 6,480 4,386 3,376
Foreign [tax [rate differential (614) (82) —
Manufacturing (credit[pursuant/to Jobs[Creation/Act (5,067) (2,336) (2,258)
Federal [tax [credits (1,736) 919) (681)
Other 728 (1,054) (916)
Provision [forihcome faxes $ 69,501 $ 40,024 $ 32,791

AtMecember31,2016, federal income taxesreceivable0f$12.7 million land statelihcome taxes receivable 0f$0.4 million
werelihcluded (in [prepaideéxpenses (dnd(dther(currentlassets. AtDecember(31,2015,federal (and [statelincomeltaxes receivable df
$8.1million werelincludedlin[prepaid[eéxpenses and other[¢urrentdssets, [and[stateincome[taxes [payable[0f[$0.4 million[were
includedlinlaccruedlexpenses @ndother current(liabilities.

Theltax [effects of temporary [differences [that(dive rise[to significant[portions[ofithe deferred [tax [dssets[and deferred [tax
liabilities werelas[follows/at(December(31:

(In thousandls) 2016 2015
Deferredtax [assets:
Goodwilllandlotherlintangible [dssets $ 10,952 $ 11,879
Stock-based [compensation 7,550 7,428
Deferred [compensation 5,184 5,310
Warranty 11,679 8,809
Inventory 6,572 5,974
Other 5,000 4,922
Totaldeferred(tax [@ssets 46,937 44,322
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixedassets (14,948) (14,931)
Netldeferred(tax [@ssets $ 31,989 $ 29,391

ThelCompany [concluded|it/is tore [likely than Mot the [deferred [tax [assets dtMDecember 31,2016 will be realized in(the
ordinary (dourse [ofloperations(based(on(projected future [taxablelincome @ndscheduling lofldeferred [tax liabilities.

Excessfax Benefitson stock-based compensation6fT$8.0 million, $9.0 million@nd$3.9 mhillionWere credited [directly o
stockholders’ [équity [during[the[years(ended December(31,(2016,[2015[and[2014, [tespectively, telating[totax [(benefits[which

exceededtheldompensation(cost(for(stock-based [dompensation recognizedin/the[(Consolidated [Financial[Statements.

At[December(31,12016, thefemaining [pool dfléxcess tax benefits from(priorexercises0fstock-based [compensationin
stockholders’ [€quity was[$31.5million.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

Thelfollowing table [reconciles(thetotallamountsof tinrecognized [tax benefits, [at MDecember31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Balancelatbeginningofperiod $ 2,854 $ 1,526 $ 1,369
Changeslin[tax [positions(oflprior [years 214 912 84
Additionsbased[on [fax [positions [related [to [the [Gurrent[year 1,252 866 603
Payments — (85) —
Closureofltax[years (573) (365) (530)
Balancelatlend oflperiod $ 3,747 $ 2,854 $ 1,526
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Infaddition, the fotal @mount/oflaccrued interest@nd Penalties related o faxes, fecognized @s @iability, Was$0.2 million,
$0.2million@nd$0.2 mhillion[dt Mecember31,2016,2015@nd 2014, respectively.

Thelfotal @mountdflunrecognized tax benefits, netloffederal ihcome fax Benefits, (6f1$2.9 thillion, $2.7 thillion@and $1.2
millionlatDecember(31,2016,2015[dnd[2014, [fespectively, would, lif recognized, increase[the[Company’s[éarnings, [dand lower
the Company’s [dnnual [effective tax rate(in[the[year 0flrecognition.

The[Company is subject(to taxation inthe[United[States and [various states[and[foreign jurisdictions. The[Company
periodically undergoes examinations by the Internal Revenue Service (1'IRS”), as well as various state and foreign taxinglauthorities.
TheIRSandlother taxingauthoritiesmay(challenge dertain/deductionsand [positions feported by the Company onlitslincome [tax
returns. [For U.S. federal income [tax [purposes, [the [fax [year(2014 [is[durrently iinder(audit, Wwhile[tax [years 2013 [and 2015 [femain
subject toléxamination. For/Indianalstatelincome[tax [purposes, the tax [years2013 through[2015 [femain[Subject[to [éxamination.
Approximately 80 percent'dfthe Company’s operations are located ih Ihdiana. Thothermajor juirisdictions, Open Years are[generally
2013 (or(later.

ThelCompany (has(assessedits risks/associated with(all [fax [feturn [positions, [and believesits fax [reserve lestimates [reflect
itsbestlestimate[ofithe[deductionsand [positions [it will Be ableto sustain, [or [it thay (be willing [to [concede as [part[ofa[settlement.
Atlthis(time, the[Company(cannot(estimate [the[range[of reasonably [possible[changelinlits[tax [feservelestimates(in[2017. [While
these[tax (atters(could thateriallydffect Operating results when [resolved[in [future [periods, [itis[management’s [Opinion [that [after
finalldisposition,lany monetary liability orfinancial impact tolthe [Company [beyond that [provided [for inlthe Consolidated Balance
SheetdslofDecember(31,2016, would Mot bematerial [to the[Company’s [financial [position [0rlannual [results [0f[dperations.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

ThelCompany’slease commitments [are primarily [for real lestate, hachinery land [equipment, and vehicles. Thelsignificant
reallgstateleases[provide fordenewalloptions (dnd [tequire ‘the [Company [fo [pay [for [property [faxes [and dll [other[costs[dssociated

withlthe(leased [property.

Future minimum (ease payments inder(operating (leases [dt Mecember 31,2016 @relasfollows (in thousands):

2017 $ 9,388
2018 7,978
2019 6,068
2020 4,936
2021 4,116
Thereafter 8,017

Total hinimum (lease [payments $ 40,503

Rentlexpense for(operating leases was[$11.5(million, $9.8 millionand [$8.6 million forthelyears/énded December 31,
2016,20151and[2014, respectively.

Contingent Consideration

Inl¢onnection[with[several [(businessacquisitions, [if[¢ertain(sales[targets for[the acquired (products arelachieved,the
Company [would pay(additional (¢ashd¢onsideration. The[Company [has[tecorded [a liability [for[the fair[value[of[this[¢ontingent
considerationat[December 31,(2016(and[2015,[based[on(the[present(valueloflthe (éxpected [ future(¢ash[flows(using almarket
participant’s weighted dverage [Cost(ofldapital (0f[13.7 [percentland (13.9 [percent, respectively.

Aslrequired, thelliability [for this[contingentConsideration [is measured at(fair Waluequarterly, [Consideringactual [sales[of
thelacquired[products, ipdated (sales(projections, and [the ipdated market [participant weighted [@verage [dost0f [capital. Depending
upon(theweighted(average[costs[oflcapital(dnd [future(sales[oflthe [products Which(aresubjectfo contingent ¢onsideration, the
Company [could[recordadjustments in future periods.
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Thefollowing(table [provides(d[teconciliation[6fthe[Company’s[contingent[consideration iability [for [the[years/énded
December(31:

(In thousandls) 2016 2015 2014
Balancelatbeginningdfiperiod $ 10,840 $ 8,129 $ 7,414
Acquisitions 1,322 4,766 3,370
Payments (4,944) (3,974) (3,739)
Accretion® 1,274 1,196 1,075
Fair(valueladjustments 749 723 9
Balancelatlend 0flthe [period ® 9,241 10,840 8,129
Lesscurrent/portion(inldccruedéxpenses and(dther(durrentliabilities (5,829) (3,877) (3,622)
Totallong-term[portion/in(otherlong-term [liabilities $ 3,412 $ 6,963 $ 4,507

(a) Recorded in selling, general and administrative expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

(b) Amounts represent the fair value of estimated remaining payments. The total estimated remaining undiscounted payments
as of December(31, 2016 are $11.6 million. The liability for contingent consideration expires at various dates through
September 2029. Certain of the contingent consideration arrangements are subject to a maximum payment amount, while
the remaining arrangements have no maximum contingent consideration.

Furrion Distribution and Supply Agreement

In{July (2015, the(Company [éntered [into[a[six-year éxclusiveldistribution/and[supply [dgreement(with (Furrion Limited
(“Furrion”),la[HongKong[based [firmthat[designs,[éngineersand supplies premium[eélectronics. [Thisagreementprovides(the
Company with thelrights toldistribute Furrion’s/complete line df products to (DEMs land [aftermarket customerslin the RV, [specialty
vehicle, utility frailer, Horse ftrailer, marine, transit bus [@nd schoolbus industries throughoutthe United States [@nd [Canada. [Furrion
currently [Supplies d[premium (line [ofltelevisions, [sound[Systems, navigation[systems, Wwireless (backup[cameras, [Solar [prep [inits,
powerlsolutions(and kitchenlappliances, [primarily(to the RV lindustry.

Inlconnection With [this[@greement, [the [Company [éntered [into [the [following thinimum [purchaselobligations (*MPOs”),
whichthe [Company [anticipates will Be revised [fromtimeto time:

July2016[-[June2017 $90(rhillion
July2017=June2018 $127 million
July2018-[June2019 $172 million

Furrion(and(the [Company [agreed [to review [these MPOslafter the [firstyearonlan[annual Basis @nd [adjustthe MPOsds
necessary basedupon currenteconomic and industry conditions, the developmentiand customeracceptancelof new Furrion products,
competition and [0ther(factors whichlimpact/demand for [Furrion [products. Despite[good (marketldcceptance of Furrion(products
during(thefirst(year 0flthe(distribution(dgreement, the MPO [was motdchieved [for the[yearlended [June 30,2016, [primarily(due [fo
theltiming[ofldevelopment and availability [oflanticipated mew [products(from [Furrion.[As[a(tesult, the parties(are[¢urrentlylin
discussions/(torevise[the MPOs, [and[the[Company [and[Furrion [areworking[together(to[increase[product dvailability land [new
productlihtroductions.

Subject/tolagreed iponrevisions [totheMPOs, (Furrion has [the [right[to dither terminate [the [distribution [dgreement [with
six[months’ motice 0r remove [@xclusivity from(the[Company [if the [Company [misses @n MPO lin any [given year by hore[than [fen
percent, [after takinglintolaccountlexcess purchases fromthe [previous(year. Iflexclusivity is withdrawn, the Company (atlits election
may [ferminate(the(distributionldgreement[with[six (months’ [notice. [Upon[termination[ofthelagreement, Furrion has(agreed to
purchase [from [the Company [any on-obsolete stocks 0f [Furrion [products at the[dost [paid by (the [Company.

Product Recalls

From[timefo[time, [the[Company [¢ooperates With [and[assists[its[¢ustomers[ontheir product(tecallsand[inquiries,[and
occasionally receives linquiries directly from[the National Highway Traffic[Safety [Administration (fFNHTSA”) regardingreported
incidentslinvolving the[Company’sproducts. Aslalresult, the Company has ihcurred lexpenses [@ssociated with [productirecalls from
timeltotime, [and hay lincur [expenditures for futurelinvestigationsor [productrecalls.
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FEnvironmental

ThelCompany’s operations dre subject(tol¢ertain[Federal,[stateand[local [tegulatory[fequirements [telating [fo [the [use,
storage, [dischargeand(disposal 0flHazardousmaterialsiised [during[the thanufacturing [processes. [Althoughthe Company believes
itsCoperationshave[been[consistent with prevailing[industrystandards, andarein[substantial [compliance 3vith[applicable
environmental(lawsland [regulations,[one(or more [oflthe[Company’s[current(or former(operating sites, [0r[@djacent[sites[dwned by
third-parties, have Been affected By [releases oflhazardous materials. [As(aresult, [the [Company [may [incur(éxpenditures [for (future
investigation @nd remediation [oflthese sites, lincluding [in [Conjunction [with Woluntary femediation ([programs|or [third [party [Glaims.

Litigation

Inlthe normal Coursedf business, the Company [is [Subject(to [proceedings, lawsuits, regulatory l[@gency linquiries land [0ther
claims.[Alllsuch(matters(are[subject(toincertainties [and (outcomes[that(are (not[predictable (with[assurance. Whilethese matters
couldmaterially [@ffectOperating [results when resolved [in future [periods, [it[is management’s [Opinion [that, [after final [disposition,
includinganticipated insurance recoveries inlcertainicases, l[Any monetary [liability (or financial impact to ithe [Company beyond that
providedfinlthe(Consolidated Balance [SheetlasofDecember 31,2016, would motbematerial [to[the [Company’s financial[position
orlannual(results(dfidperations.

Severance

In2015, the[Company [ihitiated [a[focused [program [to reduce [indirectIabor [costs. Tn/donnection With[this[costreduction
program(andcertainichangesat(theexecutivelevel, the[Company incurred[Severancecharges0f($3.7 million.

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Dividends

On/April(10,2015,alspecial [dividend[0f($2.00 perishare 0fthe Company’s[Common(Stock, representing lan laggregate of
$48.2million, Wwaspaidto stockholders (ofrecordas 0fMarch27,2015.[On January 6,2014,alspecialdividend (0f($2.00pershare
ofthe[Company’s Common Stock, representing an aggregate 0f §46.7 million, Was paid to stockholders bf record aslodf December 20,
2013.Inlconnectionwith theselspecial (dividends, holders(ofideferred stock inits, restricted stock [and [stock [@awards were [credited
with deferred stock units, restricted stock oristock lequal to $2.00 perspecialdividend for each deferred stock init, share of restricted
stock [Or(stock [@ward, Tepresenting[$1.8 million [ih fotal for€achlofthe 2015 land 2014 [special [dividends. Inconnectionwith€ach
ofthesespecial Cash(dividends, the exercise price 0ffall dutstanding Stock Options Was reduced by $2.00 perishare. These reductions
inléxerciseprice weremade [pursuant to the terms (dfthe [dutstanding lawards, resulting in no ihcremental stock-based icompensation
expense.

In[2016,the[Company [initiated the [payment[of(tegular[quarterly [dividends. [ The(table (below [Summarizesthe [tegular
quarterlydividends(declared [and [paid[during(the [yearlended December31,2016:

(In thousands, except per share data) Per[Share Record(Date PaymentDate TotalPaid

First[Quarter2016 $ 0.30 04/01/16 04/15/16 $ 7,344
SecondQuarter2016 0.30 06/06/16 06/17/16 7,363
ThirdQuarter2016 0.30 08/19/16 09/02/16 7,371
Fourth[Quarter2016 0.50 11/28/16 12/09/16 12,359
Total 2016 $ 1.40 $ 34,437

Stock-Based Awards

Pursuant(to(theILCI Industries [Equity [Award [and Incentive[Plan,(ds[Amended [and [Restated [(the [TEquity [(Plan”), which
was approved by stockholdersihMay 2011, the Company may [grant o its directors, employees, land othereligible persons Common
Stock-based dwards, [such(ds[stock (0ptions, [restricted stock [and [deferred [stock [units. All [such[dwards granted (under the [Equity
Plan mustbe approved by the Compensation Committee of LCII’s Board of Directors (the “'Committee”). The Committee determines
thelperiod (forwhich(all[Such@wardsmay[belexercisable, Butlin o évent aysuchanlaward [be [éxercisable thorethan10(years
from the[date(0flgrant.[The number(dfishares(available under(the [Equity [Plan, [@nd(the[éxercise[price[dfldll[suchlawards granted
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under the[Equity [Plan, [are subject to adjustments by [the Committee [to reflect(stock splits, [dividends, [recapitalization, mergers, [dr
othermajor(dorporatelactions.

AtlthelAnnual Meeting[df'Stockholders(heldidnMay 22,2014, stockholders a@pproved @anlamendmentto lthe Equity [Plan
tolihcreaselthe mumber [oflshares/dflcommon stock(available forissuance [pursuant(toawards by 1,678,632 [shares.

Themnumber afishareslavailable for(granting awardswas(1,049,752,1,305,440(and 1,389,506 lat December31,2016,2015
and[2014, [respectively.

Stock-based dompensation [resulted [in [charges to [operations [d@s[follows [for [the [years(ended December(31:

(In thousandls) 2016 2015 2014
Stock [Options $ 444 $ 974 $ 1,412
Deferred stock inits 7,830 7,023 4,343
Restrictedstock 1,770 1,031 910
Stock@awards 5,376 5,015 4,152
Stock-based [dompensationeéxpense $ 15,420 $ 14,043 $ 10,817

Stock-based[¢ompensation[éxpenselis(tecorded in the Consolidated ‘Statements[oflIncomelin(the samelline as[¢ash
compensation to those@mployeeslisrecorded, [primarilylinlselling, general and ladministrative léxpenses. In(dddition, forthe years
ended[December31,12016,2015[and2014, [the Company lissued [deferred [stock Winits [to[dertain éxecutive dfficers/in lieu oficash
forlalportion(ofiprior(yearlincentive[compensation,[indccordance with [their[compensation[arrangements,[6f$0.3 [million,[$2.0
million and ($2.0 million, respectively.InBebruary 2017, the Company issued deferred istock units valuedat/$6.9 million, tolcertain
officersin lieu/dficash for(d[portion(ofitheir2016 lincentive dompensationlinlaccordance With[their[compensation arrangements.

Stock Options

The[Equity Plan(provides [forthegrant[0fistock [Options [thatiqualify @slincentivestock [Options[tinderSection 422 (6flthe
Internal Revenue [Code,land non-qualified stock [Options. Thelexerciseprice for(stock [Options(granted inderthe [Equity [Plan hust
belatlleastléqual to 100 pgercentlofithe fairmarket value 0flthe shares(subject/tosuchlstock (option [on theldateldfigrant. Thelexercise
pricemay (be(paidlin(dash(orin(shares(ofthe[Company’s[Common[Stock Whichhave been(held [fordminimum [0fsix months.
Historically, ipon(exercise 0fistock[dptions, mew [shareshave beenlissued linstead [0fhising treasury [shares.

Outstanding stock [Options €xpire[six [years [from [thedate[0fgrant, [and [€ither WVest ratably [Overthe[service[period[0fTfive
years[forlémployees [or, [for(certain[executive 0fficers, Based[onachievement 0flspecified [performancelconditions. [As(a result[0f
the[Company’s[éxecutive succession and [¢orporate(relocation, ‘the[vesting[of certain stock [optionsWwas/accelerated [pursuant/to
contractual dbligations With Certainlemployees Whose @mployment/terminated @s @iresultlofthe relocation foIndiana. Transactions
inlstock loptions inder [the EquityPlanare([summarized|as follows:

Weighted
Number(of Average
Option/Shares  Exercise/Price
Outstanding(atDecember(31,2013 723,661 $ 15.46
Exercised (258,530) $ 12.89
Forfeited (11,800) $ 16.93
Reduction [for(special [Gash dividend — S (2.00)
OutstandingatDecember31,2014 453,331 $ 16.89
Exercised (214,601) $ 14.48
Forfeited (26,700) $ 14.30
Reduction [for(special (cashdividend — S (2.00)
Outstandinglatecember31,2015 212,030 $ 15.38
Exercised (183,600) $ 15.10
Forfeited (1,550) $ 17.17
Outstanding at December (31,2016 (@ 26,880 $ 17.17
Exercisable@tMecember31,2016% 26,880 $ 17.17
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(a) Theaggregate intrinsic value for option shares outstanding and option shares exercisable is $2.4 million. The weighted
average remaining term for option shares outstanding and option shares exercisable is 0.9 years.

Additional linformation [for the [éxercise[ofstock [Optionslis[asfollows forthe years(énded Mecember(31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 2014

Intrinsic Waluelofistock [Options[exercised $ 13,204 $ 9,424 $ 7,860
Cashlreceipts[fromstock [dptions[exercised $ 2,772 $ 3,280 $ 3,333
Incomeltax (benefits from[stockldptionlexercises $ 4,435 $ 2,885 $ 3,660
Grant(date fairValue 6fIstock [Options Mested $ 506 $ 1,055 $ 1,561

Deferred and Restricted Stock Units

ThelEquity [Plan(provides [for the[grantdrlissuancelofldeferred stock inits[(FDSUs”) land [restricted [stock units (F'RSUs™)
toldirectors, émployees and(other(eligible[persons. Recipients[0f [DSUs and [RSUsare entitled [to teceive shares|at/thelend[ofla
specified(vesting[or(deferral period. Holders[of DSUsand[RSUs/teceive dividends(granted to holders oflthe[Common[Stock,
payablelin/additional [DSUsland RS Us, [and [@re subject to the [Same Vesting[driteria as the driginal [grant.

DSUswvest (i) ratablyaver theserviceperiod, (ii) atalspecified future date, or (iii) for Certain officers, based lon achievement
oflspecified performance(conditions. RSUsvest((i) ratably [0verthe [service[period [or((ii) [at[aspecified future [date. [As[d result 0f
the[Company’sexecutive [successionlandlcorporaterelocation, the vestinglofidertain [deferred stock inits Wwas [dccelerated [pursuant
tolcontractual [obligations [with [¢ertain[émployees whose[employment terminated. (In(addition, DSUsare issued(in lieu[of cash
compensation. [Transactions(in [DSUsland RSUs inder the [Equity [Plan are [summarized (as follows:

Number(of Weighted
Shares AverageBrice
Outstanding(atDecember(31,2013 692,961 $ 30.26
Issued 56212 $ 46.08
Granted 187,490 $ 46.94
Dividendléquivalents 27,532 $ 50.45
Forfeited (38,855) $ 29.83
Exercised (187,052) $ 29.90
Outstanding atDecember(31,2014 738,288 $ 36.96
Issued 54982 §$ 47.51
Granted 90,184 $ 60.22
Dividendléquivalents 20,922 $ 59.94
Forfeited (23,604) $ 4478
Exercised (353,259) § 32.62
Outstanding@tMecember31,2015 527,513 $ 44.94
Issued 10,742 $ 72.01
Granted 173,097 $ 54.67
Dividendlequivalents 9,075 $ 87.01
Forfeited (10,893) $ 48.98
Exercised (203,087) $ 43.55
OutstandinglatDecember(31,12016 506,447 $ 50.00

AsldfMecember31,2016,therewas$14.4 million dffotal linrecognized Compensation(costs telated fo MSUsland RSUs,
whichlislexpected(toBe fecognizedoverlaweighted @verage remainingperiod (0f (1.5 years.

Restricted Stock

TheEquity Plan provides forthelgrant of restricted stock to directors, employeesland otherleligible persons. The restriction
periodlis(established by [the [Committee, Butmay not[beless[thanoneyear.[Holders[oflrestricted [stock (have(all ‘the tights ofla
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stockholderlofithe Company, including the rightto voteland the right o ireceive ldividendsgranted to holderslofithe Common(Stock,
payablelinladditional [shares [of restricted [stock, [and [subject to[the [Same Vesting|[criterialas the original (grant. [Shares[ofrestricted
stockare Mot transferableduring [the [testrictionperiod. Restricted stock (grants, which were(all thade [to [directors, Wereds follows
(in thousands except share and per share amounts):

2016 2015 2014
Granted 17,439 20,558 19,439
Weighted @verage[stock price $ 74.55 $ 59.60 $ 46.82
Fair(valuelofistock granted $ 1,300 $ 1,220 $ 910

AslofDecember(31,2016, thereWwas[$0.5 million [6ffotal inrecognized [Gompensation [Gosts Felated [fo [Mestricted [Stock,
which(is@xpectedfo be recognizedover(aweightedaverage remaining [period 0f10.4 [years.

Stock Awards

Inlaccordance with the @mploymentagreements [for various(dfficers dfithe Company, such 6fficers(arelentitledto receive
anlannual Tong-term@ward[consisting dflthe rightto [@arn sharesof[dommon[stock. Theseshares [arelarned (during the[subsequent
threeyear[period (based[on[growth(inthe (Company’s(eéarnings(per [diluted [share.Transactions [in[stock [dwards under the [Equity
Planare[summarized (as/follows:

Number 0f
Shares Stock [Price
OutstandingatMecember(31,2013 193,602 $ 30.84
Granted 103,500 $ 51.20
Dividendlequivalents 7,675 § 50.45
Exercised (31,959) $ 26.88
OutstandinglatDecember(31,2014 272,818 $ 39.03
Granted 96,010 $ 60.29
Dividendléquivalents 8,992 § 59.94
Forfeited (16,534) $ 60.29
Exercised (98,830) $ 29.70
Outstandinglatecember(31,2015 262,456 $ 49.36
Granted 86,918 $ 54.47
Dividendléquivalents 3,811 $ 88.04
Forfeited (10,832) $ 53.95
Exercised (109,731) $ 39.94
OutstandinglatDecember(31,12016 232,622 $ 55.60

Aslofecember31,2016, thereWwas($7.6 mhillion0ffotal inrecognized [Compensation [dosts related [fo [Gutstanding [stock
awards, Wwhichlis[expected [to belrecognizedover aweighted[average remainingperiod(0f(1.4 [years.

Weighted Average Common Shares Qutstanding

Thefollowing [reconciliation [detailsthe [denominator hised ih the [domputation0fibasic [@nd diluted [@arnings [pershare for
thelyearslended December(31:

(In thousandls) 2016 2015 2014

Weighted [@verage shares(dutstanding|[for [basic @arnings [per(share 24,631 24,295 23,911
Common/stockequivalentspertaining [fo stock-based awards 302 355 423
Weightedaverage shares(dutstanding [for[diluted [@arnings [pershare 24,933 24,650 24,334

Thelweighted(average(diluted [shares/outstanding(for the yearsended [December 31,12016,2015[and 2014, [exclude the
effect(ofl184,277,1255,547and[293,860 shares(of[common|stock, [fespectively, subject(to [stock-based [dwards. [Such [shares[were
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excluded from [total [dilutedshares because [they Wwere [anti-dilutive or [the [Specified [performance conditionsthatthose [shareswere
subjecttowere notlyetlachieved.

13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Recurring

Thelfollowing tablelpresents(the Company’s (assetsland liabilitiesheasured (at [fair[value on(arecurring basis/(at! |
December(31:

2016 2015
(In thousands) Total Levelll Level2 Level3 Total Levelll Level2 Levell3
Assets
Unrealized[gain(dn(derivative[
[Mihstruments $ 2296 $ — $ 229 $ — — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Liabilities
Contingent[consideration $ 9241 $ — 3 — $ 9241 $ 10,836 $ — 3 — $ 10,836

Contingent Consideration Related to Acquisitions

Liabilities for(contingent(consideration relatedto lacquisitions were [fair Malued [using thanagement’s [projections forlong-
term(sales(forecasts, [includingassumptions|tegardingmarket[ $hare[gains(and[futurelindustry-specific[économicland market
conditions, [and(a(marketparticipant’sweighted @veragecost(0f[capital. [Over(the mext(six years, the [Company’slong-termsales
growth [forecasts for[productssubject/to/contingent/donsideration arrangementsaverage [dpproximately (14 [percent(per year. [For
furtherinformation(on(thelinputsuised [in [determining the fair[value,[and [d[toll-forward [0f[the [contingentconsideration [liability,
seeNote (11 0flthe Wotes [fo [Consolidated [Financial [Statements.

Changes/in[either[of(theinputs(in[isolation [would[tesult(in[a ¢hangelin[the fair[Valuemeasurement.Alchange in the
assumptionsfised(for(salesforecasts would resultlin(aldirectionally similarichange/in/the fair Malueliability, Whilelalchangein the
weightedlaverage (dost/dficapital would result/ih @directionally [dpposite change [ih [the [fairvalue liability. Ifthere it [an ihcreasein
the ffair valueliability, the [Company would record @lcharge o selling, igeneral land @dministrative expenses, and if therelisladecrease
inlthe fair valueliability, [the (Company would record @abenefit(in[selling, [general land [administrative[éxpenses.

Derivative Instruments

AtDecember 31,2016, the[Company had[derivativelinstruments [for40.8 thillion pounds [dfsteel, [in [order [fo hanage(a
portionofitheexposureto thovements(dssociated With[steel[costs. [Theselderivativelinstruments éxpire throughDecember2018,
atlan(average!(steel(price[0f[$0.25 [perpound. [Whilelthesederivativeinstruments(are/consideredtobe economichedges of'the
underlyingmovement/ihthe price dfsteel, theyare Motdesignatedor@ccounted for s [@hiedge. These derivative ihstruments Were
valued at/fairvalue using [@marketlapproach baseddn thelquoted marketprices ofisimilar instruments [atthe end [0fléach reporting
period, and [the [resultingnet(gain was recorded [in [dost(0flsales [in[the(Consolidated [Statements(of ITncome. At Mecember 31,2016
the($2.3millionCorresponding @ssetwas recorded lin [0ther (Gurrent@ssets(as feflected inthe [Consolidated Balance[Sheets.

Non-recurring

Thelffollowing table presentsithe carrying vialue lon the measurement/date (of any assets and liabilities Wwhich Were measured
atlfairvalueland recorded at/the lower (dficost(or[fair value, lon don-recurring basis, Using significantinobservablelinputs (Level
3),/andthecorresponding mon-recurring losses [recognized [during [the yearsénded Mecember(31:

2016 2015 2014
Non- Non- Non-
Carrying Recurring Carrying Recurring Carrying Recurring

(In thousands) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Assets
Vacantowned facilities $ 2,496 $ — 3 2,537 $ — 3 3,863 $ —
Netlassetsdflacquired businesses 44,250 — 28,727 — 66,169 —

Totaldssets $ 46,7746 $ — $ 31264 $ — $ 70,032 $ —
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Vacant Owned Facilities

During 2016, the Company reviewed the recoverability 0f the carrying value ofone vacant owned facility. At December 31,
2016, the[Company [Hadone Wacant/owned Facility, With @n(éstimated fair Walue [6flover$3.0 million @ndalcarrying Malue 6{1$2.5
million, (Glassified in fixed [@ssets[in[the (Consolidated [Balance [Sheets.

During 2015, [the [Company [reviewed|[the recoverability (0f the[darrying alue[of three Vacant [wned [facilities, [0fwhich
oneloflthese(facilitieswas(soldandone was/reopened. [At[December 31,2015, the[Company hadonevacantlowned facility with
an(éstimated fair value0fldver($3.0million[@ndlacarrying Value 6 $2.5 million, classified[in fixed [@ssets in the [Consolidated
Balance[Sheets.

During[2014,the[ Company [ teviewed[the[tecoverability Lof[the[carrying[valuel of fourracant[ owned[facilities. LAt
December 31,2014, the(Company Had [three vacant/dwned facilities, with(an [dombined(éstimated fair value[0f'$4.2 million and @
combined darrying vValue0f($3.9 million, classifiedinfixed [assetsih [the [Consolidated BalanceSheets.

Thedetermination offfhir value Was based on fthe best ihformation @vailable, including internallcash flow lestimates, tharket
prices for[similar(assets,Broker(quotes/andindependentlappraisals, [ds[@ppropriate.

Net Assets of Acquired Businesses

ThelCompany valued(the @ssetsland liabilities l@ssociated with the lacquisitions of businesseslon the respective ldcquisition
dates. Depending ipon the fypeoflasset(dr liability @cquired, the [Company used different valuation techniquesih[determiningthe
fairvalue. Those techniqueslincluded icomparable marketprices, long-termlisales, profitability andcash flow forecasts, assumptions
regarding future industry-specific ieéconomic land marketiconditions, @imarketparticipant’s weighted average icostoficapital, las well
aslother [fechniques|(as(circumstances(required. For furtherinformationonldcquired(assetsdnd liabilities, [See Note 2 [ofithe Notes
tolConsolidatedFinancial [Statements.

14. SEGMENT REPORTING

ThelCompany [previously (had [two [reportable [Segments, [the [tecreational [vehicle [productssegment[(the 'RV Segment”)
and[the manufactured (housingproductssegment(the [TMH[Segment”).[The [Company [has[tecently [increasedits [focuslon[the
significant(opportunities(inthelaftermarket(for[its[products, [primarily(sales [to[tetail[dealers, Wholesale[distributors [and [Service
centers./Additionally, [dverlthe [past/several [years, sales [0fidomponents formanufactured Homeshave become [alsmaller[part(afithe
Company’s[business, largelyduefo[the[growth the[Company has[éxperienced [with[fespect(folits ([components[sold [to[dustomers
for(traditional [fecreational (vehicles [as (well [as[the[éxpanded hise[0flits[components [in [0thernon-RV [applications, which [werefer
tolas@djacentlindustries. Unit/growth for MH [Segmentproducts has [also been lower aver the lastidecade, [primarily [due fo thereal
estate, [dreditland leconomiclenvironment, including the lavailability of'site built homes at/stable pricesland High interest rate lspreads
between[¢onventional (mortgages!(for site-built[homesand(loans for(manufactured homes. Intesponse(to/these[¢changeslinthe
Company’s business, [subsequentto March 31,2016, the[Company thodified litslinternal reporting structure, [reflectinglalchange in
howlits[chiefloperating[decisionmaker[(“CODM”)[assesses[the performanceloflthe[Company’s [operating [tesults[and [makes
decisionslaboutiresource allocations. The Company’s new reportable segments are the OEM Segment and the A ftermarket Segment.
Intersegment(sales(are insignificant.

The[OEM [Segment, whichldaccounted for(92 [percent, 93 [percentland (95 percentoficonsolidated metlsales [foridachdflthe
years(ended December 31,12016,(2015[and (2014, [Hespectively, manufactures [or [distributes(abroad array [0f[components (for(the
leading[OEMs[0f[RVsandladjacentindustries, lincluding buses; [trailers hised [to (haul (boats, livestock, [@quipmentland(Other [cargo;
trucks; [pontoon[boats;[frains;manufactured(homes; [and modularhousing. [Approximately (71 [percent[ofthe[Company’s[OEM
Segment(net(salesin2016 werelofidomponents [for travel trailer land fifth-wheel RVs.

ThelAftermarketSegment, whichldccounted [for8 [percent, (7 [percentldnd (5 [percent0f[consolidated metsales for(dach [0f
thelyearsiended December 31,12016,2015and2014, respectively,[supplies(domponents(totherelated aftermarketichannelsoflthe
RViandladjacentlindustries, [primarily [to retail [dealers, Wholesale distributors(and [service[centers. The A ftermarket[Segment(also
includesthelsale 0flreplacement(glass(and @awnings [to fulfill insurance(claims.

Decisionsdoncerning theallocation [0f'the Company’s resources lare tade by [the[Company’s[CODM, with [oversight by
the(Board[of[Directors. [The[CODM évaluates the performancelofleachsegmentbased [ipon segment operatingprofitlorloss,
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generally(defined(dslincome(dr(loss Beforelinterest/and lincome [taxes. Decisions [concerning(theldllocation [offesources are dlso
based[dnleach(segment’s hitilization oflassets. Management(ofldebtlis[d [corporate function. Theldccountingpolicies 0fithe (DEM
andAftermarket(Segments are the samelasthoseldescribed in Note llofithe Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements. Thelchange
inlteported[segmentshad noéffect/on the Company’s netlincome, total [assets [dr liabilities, [dr[stockholders’ l[equity.

Corporatelexpenseslare allocated between the segments based upon et sales. Accretion related tolcontingent Consideration

and[dthermon-segmentlitems [drelincluded(inthe[segment fo which they relate. Informationrelating[to [Segments[follows for [the

yearslended December31:
Segments Corporate
(In thousands) OEM Aftermarket Total and[Qther Total
2016
Netlsales fo lexternal (Gustomers $ 1,548,091 $ 130,807 $ 1,678,898 $ — $ 1,678,898
Operating profit ) 180,850 20,000 200,850 — 200,850
Total @ssets 569,385 65,211 634,596 152,308 786,904
Expenditures(forlong/-Ilived dssets [ 80,588 6,014 86,602 — 86,602
Depreciationand [@mortization $ 42,593 $ 3,298 $ 45,891 $ 276 $ 46,167
2015
Net/sales foleéxternal iGustomers @ $ 1,300,060 $ 103,006 $ 1,403,066 $ — $ 1,403,066
Operating [profit/(loss)® 105,224 14,746 119,970 (3,716) 116,254
Total i@ssets ¢ 500,734 56,683 557,417 65,439 622,856
Expenditures(forlong/-llived @ssets @ 65,492 2,095 67,587 — 67,587
Depreciationland [@mortization $ 38,583 § 2,898 $ 41,481 $ 143 § 41,624
2014
Netlsales foléxternal ‘Gustomers @ $ 1,127,026 $ 63,756 $ 1,190,782 $ — $ 1,190,782
Operating [profit/(loss)® 88,744 8,697 97,441 (1,954) 95,487
Totallassets[ 441,127 54,489 495,616 48,225 543,841
Expenditures(forlong/-llived @ssets & 119,715 27,655 147,370 — 147,370
Depreciation(and@mortization $ 30,954 $ 1,554 $ 32,508 $ 88 $ 32,596
(a) Thor Industries, Inc. (“Thor”), a customer of both segments, accounted for 37 percent, 28 percent and 33 percent of the Company’s

(b)
(©

@

consolidated net sales for the years ended December(31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (through its
subsidiaries Forest River, Inc. and Clayton Homes, Inc.), a customer of both segments, accounted for 26 percent, 26 percent and 28
percent of the Company’s consolidated net sales for the years ended December(31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Jayco, Inc., a
customer of both segments, accounted for 10 percent of the Company’s consolidated net sales for the year ended December 31, 2015,
this customer was subsequently acquired by Thor and is included in the Thor’s 2016 percentage above. No other customer accounted
formore than 10 percent of consolidated net sales in the years ended December(31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. International sales, primarily
in Europe and Australia, and export sales represented approximately 2 percent, 1 percent and 1 percent of consolidated net sales in
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Certain general and administrative expenses are allocated between the segments based upon net sales or operating profit, depending
upon the nature of the expense.

Segment assets include accounts receivable, inventories, fixed assets, goodwill and other intangible assets. Corporate and other assets
include cash and cash equivalents, prepaid expenses and other current assets, deferred taxes, and other assets.

Expenditures for long-lived assets include capital expenditures, as well as fixed assets, goodwill and other intangible assets purchased
as part of the acquisition of businesses. The Company purchased $42.0 million, $38.6 million and $105.0 million of long-lived assets,
as part of the acquisitions of businesses in the years ended December(31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Netlsales by [productiwereas[follows for(the yearslénded December(31:

(In thousandls) 2016 2015 2014
OEM [Segment:
Chassis, [chassis[partsandslide-out thechanisms $ 743,160 $ 664,542 $ 593,756
Windowsland[doors 335,717 301,171 258,915
Furniture(and mattresses 245,596 161,840 132,356
Axlesland/suspension/solutions 115,538 108,464 88,909
Other 108,080 64,043 53,090
Total[(DEM [Segmentmetisales 1,548,091 1,300,060 1,127,026
Total (A ftermarketSegment riet(sales 130,807 103,006 63,756
Total het[sales $ 1,678,898 $ 1,403,066 $ 1,190,782

Thelcompositionlofrietisaleswas(asfollows for theyearsénded December31:

(In thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Netlsales:
OEM Segment:
RVIOEMs:
Travel frailers(and [fifth-wheels $ 1,099,882 $ 938,787 $ 841,497
Motorhomes 116,191 86,513 70,332
Adjacentlindustries[OEMs 332,018 274,760 215,197
Total DEM [Segment ret(sales 1,548,091 1,300,060 1,127,026
Aftermarket/Segment:
Total A ftermarketSegmentmetisales 130,807 103,006 63,756
Total met(sales $ 1,678,898 $ 1,403,066 $ 1,190,782

15. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In[August[2016, the Financial [Accounting[Standards(Board[(“FASB”)lissuedAccounting[Standards Update [(“ASU”)
2016-15,[Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments,Wwhichlamends/ASC[230, Statement of Cash Flows.This
ASU providesguidancednlthe statement oficash flows [presentation 6fldertain transactions where [diversity [in [practice [exists. (This
ASUlisleffectivefor(dannualland linterim[periods beginning [after Mecember(15,(2017,and [should be [@pplied retrospectively Wwith
early adoption permittedlat the beginning of'anihterim lorlannual reporting period. The Company is evaluating the effectlofladopting
this[dew[dccountingguidance, But/doesnotlexpect/adoptionwill havelamaterial impact/on[the[Company’s results(of [Operations,
cashflows orfinancial[position.

InMarch(2016,the [FASB lissued[ASU2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, Which
amended/ASCI718, Compensation - Stock Compensation. This|ASU [simplifiesseveral [dspects [0f'theldccounting for[share-based
payment(transactions,[includinglincome(tax¢onsequences, [the[¢lassification[oflawards[as[éither[eéquity [or[liabilities, and[the
classificationlon/the statementloficash[flows. Thispronouncement/is [effective [for reporting[periods beginning after Mecember 15,
2016.[Thelguidance will (be[applied[either[prospectively, tetrospectivelylorusing almodified [tetrospective transition method,
dependinglonfthe drealdovered|in this ipdate. Wponladoption, any future excess tax henefits drideficiencies will berecorded to the
provision[for ihcomeftaxes ihlthe consolidatedstatementofiincome, ihstead dfladditional paid-incapital intheconsolidated balance
sheet. [Horthelyearsiended December(31,2016,2015and 2014,($8.0 million,($9.0 millionland [$3.9 million, respectively, oflexcess
tax [benefitswere fecorded [tb [additional [paid-in [Gapital that sould Have (been recorded(as areduction tothe [provision forlihcome
taxes[iflthismew[guidancehad[been ddopted(as[oflthe tespective dates. Additionally, (excess [tax [benefits(Wwill (belclassified[as
operating/activitiesin[the ¢onsolidated [statementoflcashflow[instead [oflin[financing activities as tequired lunder[the[¢urrent
guidance. The[Company [has Mot (selected @ [fransition method, [and [éxcept(as(described [@dbove, [does motlexpect(the [provisions [0f
ASUR016-09toMavelanimpact(on(the Company’s(consolidated [financial [position or results [0flOperations.
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InFebruary2016,the [FASBlissued[ASU2016-02,[Leases. This[ASU[requires, in ostlinstances, d(lessee(tofecognize
onlits(balancelsheet@liability o hakellease payments [(theleaseliability) landlalso dlright-of-use @sset fepresenting lits right [to hise
thefunderlyinglasset(for the lease term. The amendments lare effective for fiscal ears beginning after December 15,2018, ihcluding
interim (periods (withinthose[periods, using[amodified[tetrospectiveldpproach Wwith éarly [adoption [permitted. [ The[Company[is
evaluating [the leffect/dfladopting this Hewaccounting/guidance.

InMNovember2015,the FASBlissued[ASU2015-17,Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes. This[ASU[requires
entitiesWith(d[classified Balancelsheet(to [present(all[deferred tax [assets [@nd (liabilities[ds Mon-current. Duringthe first[quarter of
2016, the Company lelected to retrospectively lddopt ASU2015-17, thus reclassifyingcurrent(deferred tax [assets to Mon-currention
theldccompanying[Consolidated Balance[Sheet.As(aresult, the[Company [feclassified[$22,6 16 from[currentd@ssets fo Tong-term
assetslas(ofDecember(31,2015.Thelddoption oflthis guidancehas moimpact(on(the[Company’sresults(0floperations and[¢ash
flows.

InJuly2015, the FASB lissued ASU2015-11,Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory. This[ASU ldpplies toinventory
measured using|(thefirst-in, [first-out[(“FIFO”) [or[average[dost methods. [Under the ipdated [guidance, [dn éntity [should measure
inventory [thatlisWithinScopelat(the Tower[0fcost(and metrealizable value, Whichis the [éstimated[selling[prices(inthe [Ordinary
courseoflbusiness, less reasonably [predictable dosts loficompletion, [disposal land [transportation. This[ASU lis [effective forannual
andlinterim[periods Beginning [@fter Mecember(15,2016,land[should belapplied [prospectively with carly ladoption [permitted atlthe
beginning 0flan interim or @nnual reporting period. Adoption 0fithis ASU will ot have @material impactlan the Company’s results
ofloperations, cash [flows [dr(financial [position.

In[April2015,the [FASBlissued[ASU2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.This[ASU requires
debtlissuancecostsbelpresentedon the balancesheet as @lreduction from the lcarrying @amountldfthe related debt liability. Tn August
2015, the FASBfissuedlan ASU fthat allows the presentation 0f'debtissuance [Costs related o line-of-creditlarrangements o continue
tolbelan(asset/onthe balancelsheetiinderthelsimplified guidance, fegardless lof whether(there [are any [dutstanding Borrowings [on
thelrelated larrangements. Thelamendmentslin these[ASUs arelto be applied retrospectively landlare leffective forlinterim and annual
reporting iperiods beginning afterDecember 15, 2015. The Company adopted these ASUs retrospectively effective Tanuary [1,2016,
and(Haslreclassified all debtlissuanceldosts, with[the l@xception 0fithose related [to [the revolving [credit(facility, @s(areduction from
thelcarrying/dmount oflthe related (debtliability [for Bothcurrent(and[prior[Periods. Theddoption dflthis [guidancehad Mo limpact
on'the[Company’siresults(ofidperationsland cash flows.

InMay (2014, the FASBissued[ASU[2014-09,[Revenue from Contracts with Customers. This[ASU[outlines(a[single,
comprehensive model (for éntities to uselinldaccountingfor(revenue arising [from [¢ontracts (With [customers and [Supersedes most
current revenue recognition/guidanceissued by the FASB, ihcluding industry specificlguidance. ASU2014-09 provides accounting
guidancel(for(all revenuelarising[from [dontracts with(customers(and dffects(all lentities[that[eénter into[contracts with[customers/[to
providelgoodsland services. Thelguidancelalsoprovides @thodelforthetheasurementandrecognition [0fgains [dnd losseson(the
saleloflcertain mon-financial [assets, [Such [as(property [dnd [equipment, [including [real [eéstate. [ASU2014-09 [is [éffective [for (@annual
reporting periods, includingfinterim reporting[periods within thoseperiods, beginning after Mecember15,2017. The mew standard
must/beladopted (using[¢eitheralfull (tetrospectiveapproach(forlall ‘periods presentedlin(theperiodlofladoption orlalmodified
retrospective l@pproach. ASU2014-09 also requires lentities todisclose both quantitative and (qualitative information to ienable uisers
oflthe financial [statements(to understand the (mature, @mount, [timing, and incertainty [offevenue and[¢ash flows arising[from
contractswithcustomers.

The[Company [does motlanticipate(the@adoption of'this[standard Will haved material impact(on/its feported [Gurrent et
sales;however,[givenlits/dcquisition [strategy, [there may beladditional fevenue [streams[dcquiredprior[to ‘the[ddoption(date. The
Company’s(technical [analysis/is on-going with[tespect[to variable ¢onsideration, whether[certain[contracts’ [tevenues [ will[be
recognized/overltime(or(at(alpoint(in(fime, @and Whether[coststo[obtain(aldontract will (belcapitalized. Further, (the[Company [is
continuing|to dssess Whatlincrementalldisaggregated revenue ldisclosures will Berequiredinlitsiconsolidated financial statements.
TheCompany [continues [folévaluatetransition thethods,andléxpect(to finalize lits[determination oncelall (other [significantmatters
areldoncluded.
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16. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Interimunaudited financial ihformation{ollows:

First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands, except per share amounts) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Yearleénded Mecember31,2016
Net[sales $ 422,798 $ 440,831 § 412,370 $ 402,899 $ 1,678,898
Gross [profit $§ 108,441 $ 116,904 $ 105,550 $ 98,008 § 428,903
Income Before ihcome [taxes $ 55252 $ 58975 $ 44,742  $ 40,203 $ 199,172
Netlihcome $§ 35959 $§ 37,569 $§ 29844 $§ 26,299 § 129,671
Netlincomeper(common [share:
Basic $ 146 $ 152§ 121§ 1.06 $ 5.26
Diluted $ 145 $ 1.51 $ 1.19 $ 1.05 $ 5.20
Stockmarketlprice:
High $ 6446 $ 85.09 § 102.46 $ 11295 $§ 11295
Low $ 52.85 % 60.75 $ 84.61 § 8420 $ 52.85
Closel(atlend [0f quarter) $ 6446 $ 84.84 $ 98.02 § 107.75 '$  107.75
YearlendedDecember31,2015
Netlsales $§ 361,457 $ 362,085 $ 345296 $§ 334,228 $ 1,403,066
Gross [profit § 76403 $§ 82,060 $§ 74,125 $§ 73,414 § 306,002
IncomeBeforeihcome faxes $§ 31,649 $ 33,019 § 26576 $§ 23,125 § 114,369
Netlihcome $ 20,073 $§ 20,869 $ 17,263 § 16,140 § 74,345
Netlincome per(common [share:
Basic $ 083 $§ 086 $ 071 § 0.66 $ 3.06
Diluted $ 082 $ 085 $ 070 $ 0.65 $ 3.02
Stockmarket(price:
High $ 64.61 $ 62.60 $ 5942 § 61.90 §$ 64.61
Low $ 47.63 S 5526 $ 5242 § 5355 § 47.63
Closel(atlend [0flquarter) $ 61.54 $ 58.02 $ 54.61 $ 60.89 $ 60.89

Thelsum oflpershareldmountsfor(the four [quarters hay mot(équal (the total [per[share [@mounts [for(the [year[ds[a result
ofichanges/ih the weighted [@verage([dommon(shares(outstandingorfounding.
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Item 9.ICHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

The(Company maintains(disclosurecontrolsland(procedures [that(aredesigned [to [€nsurethatinformation required [fo (be
disclosedlinthe[Company’s[Exchange(Act(reports is((i) recorded, processed, [summarized(and [reported [Wwithin [the [time [periods
specifiedlin(the [SEC’stules[dnd forms, and[(ii) [Accumulated [and [communicated [fo [the [Company’smanagement, [including/its
ChieflExecutive[OfficerandChief Financial (Officer, as(appropriate, [todllow [timely [decisions tegarding [dequired(disclosure, [in
accordance with [the definition(of“disclosure controlsand [procedures”in Rule13a-15 inder [the Exchange Act. Inldesigningland
evaluating the(disclosuredontrols(and [procedures, managementrecognized that@ny(controls/and [procedures, fo matter How well
designedland(operated, dannotprovideldbsolute(assuranceoflachieving theldesired [controllobjectives. Managementlincludedlin
itslevaluation[thelcost-benefitirelationship [dfpossiblecontrolsand procedures. The (Company [dontinually [€valuates itsdisclosure
controls@nd procedures fo [determine(ifichanges [@re [@ppropriate based tipon changes [in [the Company’s [Operations[or the Business
environment/inWhichlitloperates.

Asloflthelend(oflthe period (dovered by this[Form[10-K,the (Company [performed(an evaluation, under(the [Supervision
andlwithlthelparticipation ofithe[Company’s hanagement, lincluding the[Company’s [ChiefExecutive [Officer(and the [Company’s
ChieflFinancial [Officer, [0f(the [éffectiveness [0f[the[designdnd [Operation[0flthe [Company’s(disclosure/controls@nd [procedures.
Basedlon(the[foregoing, the[Company’s[Chief[Executive [Officer and[ChieflFinancial (Officer ¢oncluded thatthe[Company’s
disclosure(dontrols(and [procedureswere éffective.

(a) Management’s/Annual Reportion Internal Control [@ver [Financial Reporting,

Weldre responsible for[the [preparation dnd(integrity [0fthe[Consolidated (Financial [Statements [@ppearing in[the [Annual
ReportionForm(10-K. We lare [also responsible for l€stablishing land maintainingladequate linternal (ontrol laver [financial reporting.
Welmaintain(alsystem[oflinternal(control that(is [designed[to [provide reasonabled@ssurance(ds fo [the (fair[dnd reliable[preparation
and[presentation 0flthe(Consolidated Financial [Statements, ds (well[ds/[to [safeguard(assets [from [unauthorized ise[or(disposition.
The Company (ontinually[evaluates/its[System (dflinternal [dontrol (Gver financial reporting [to [determine [if changes are @ppropriate
based ipon(changes|ih[the[Company’sOperations [orthe business(énvironment [in WhichlitlOperates.

Our(control environment/is the foundation(for dur(systemloflinternal ([dontrol [0ver [financial feportingand is[@mbodied in
ourGuidelines [for Business Conduct. It sets the [tone (6flour lorganization land includesfactors(such @sintegrity land [éthical walues.
Ourlinternal (control [over financial[teporting[is [Supported by [formal (policies [and [procedures[which(are reviewed, hodified [dnd
improved|as/changes(dccurlin (business(conditions [dnd (Operations.

Welconducted [an/evaluation ofithe effectiveness [ofldurinternal (control [Gver(financial reporting based lon/the framework
inlInternal [Control (4—[Integrated Framework [(2013)issued [by the[Committee[of Sponsoring Organizations of(the Treadway
Commission(COSO). Thislgvaluationlincludedreview 0fithe[documentation 0ficontrols, €valuation 0fithe[design effectiveness
oflcontrols, festing[ofthe [operating[effectiveness oflcontrols(and(d[donclusion[on[this[évaluation. [Although therelareinherent
limitationsin the effectiveness oflany system dfinternal control over financial reporting, based on dur evaluation, we have concluded
that[ourlihternal(dontrolldver [financial feporting Was [effectiveds 0fDecember31,2016.

KPMGLLLP, anindependentregistered public accounting ffirm, has audited the Consolidated Financial Statementsfincluded

inlthis Reportland, las partof their laudit, has issued their attestation reportlan the effectiveness o flgur internal [Control Gver financial
reporting, included [elsewherelin this[Form 10-K.

/s/Jason[D. Lippert /s/BrianM. Hall
ChiefExecutive Officer ChiefFinancial (Officer

(b) Report(dfithe Tndependent Registered Public(Accounting Hirm.

Thelreportlis(includedinItem(8. “Financial [Statementsand [SupplementaryData.”
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(©) Changeslin Internal (Controllover Financial Reporting.

Therelwerenochanges ih the[Company’s/internal(controls(over financial reporting [during[the[quarter [ended December
31,2016, thathave materially [affected, (orlarereasonably llikely [to materially @ffect, the (Company’s internal [control [Gver financial
reporting.

The Company has selected anew enterprise resource planning (‘ERP”’) system. Implementation lof the new ERPsoftware
beganlin(late(2013.(To(date, 21 [Iocationshavebeen putlon this[ERPsoftware.Theroll-outplan(is[¢continually [évaluated(in[the
contextlofipriorities forthe Businessand thay [change [as meeds 0f the [Business[dictate. The [Company [@nticipates €nhancements [fo
controls(due(to both thelinstallation 0f the Hew [ERP[software [and Business[process changes [resulting therefrom.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None.
PART III
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Information with[respecttb the[Company’s Directors, Executive Officersand [Corporate [(Governanceis incorporated By
reference [from(thelinformationcontained inder(theproposalléntitledElection(ofDirectors”and inder ‘thecaption fCorporate
Governanceland Related Matters =@ Board Committees” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual MeetingldfStockholders
tobeheldlonMay 25,2017 (the©2017 [Proxy[Statement”) [and from[the information[dontained inder[“Executive[Officers 0fthe
Registrant”(inRart I, Ttem 1, Business,” [in/this [Report.

Informationregarding/Section 116 reporting compliancelis incorporated by ireference ffrom the information contained inder
thelcaption[fVoting[Securities = [Compliancewith[Section 16(a)(df'the Exchange(Act” [ihlthe[Company’s 2017 Proxy [Statement.

The Company hasadopted Governance Principles, Guidelines for Business Conduct, @Whistleblower Policy,landalCode
ofEthics for Senior Binancial Officers (1*‘Codeof Ethics™), €achlaf Which, as Welllas the Charterland KeyPractices of the Company’s
AuditlCommittee,[Risk[ Committee, [Compensation[Committee, [and [ Corporate[Governance and[Nominating[Committee,[are
available[on[the[Company’s(websiteatwww.Icil.com/investors. Al¢opy [0flany [0f these[documents [will (be [furnished, [Without
charge, ipon [writtenrequestto[Secretary, ILCIIndustries, 3501 [County [Road (6 [East, [Elkhart, Indiana[46514.

Ifithe[Company [makes[any [substantivelamendment[to [the [CodelofEthics[or the(Guidelines for(Business Conduct, [dr
grants@waiverl(to @Director or Executive Officer from @lprovision [dfthe Code df Ethicsorthe Guidelines for Business Conduct,
the Company (willdisclose the nature (0f'suchl@amendmentor waiveron lits Websitelor inl@CurrentReport dn [Form 8-K. There have
beenmno waiverslto Directorslor Executive Officerslaflany provisionslofithe Code ofBthics or the [Guidelinesfor Business (Conduct.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Thelinformation tequired by [this[item [is[incorporated By [teference from [the [information ¢ontained inder the[caption
“Executive[Compensation”[@nd “Director[Compensation”(in/the Company’s2017 [Proxy Statement.

Item 12.SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Thelinformation fequired by this[item is[incorporated by [Heference [from(theinformation [contained inderthe [¢aption
“Voting[Securities 2 Security [@wnershiplofCertain Beneficial Owners land Management” lin the Company’s 2017 Proxy [Statement
and[the[Equity [Compensation Plan Information/dontained(inPart I, Ttem(5(in this Report.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

Thelinformationdequired By [thislitem [Wwith[tespect[fo[fransactionsWwithtelated [personsand[directorindependencelis

incorporated by reference [from the information/contained inder thelcaptions [“Transactions with Related Persons” land ‘Corporate
Governanceland Related Matters = [Board dfDirectorsand Director Independence” in the [Company’s(2017 [Proxy [Statement.
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Item 14.PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

Thelinformation(required [by this item [is[incorporated by [feference(from [the[information[contained [under [the[proposal
entitled ["Appointment[ofi/Auditors = Fees[for Independent/Auditors” in the [Company’s2017 ProxyStatement.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
(a) Documents(Filed:
(1) Financial [Statements.

2) Exhibits.SeeTtem[15[(b) @ Listl0f[Exhibits”ihcorporated lierein by reference.
(b) Exhibits[-IListlof(Exhibits.

Exhibit Description

Number

3.1* LClIndustries Restated[Certificate of Tncorporation,@sfdmended €ffective Mecember30,2016.

3.2 Amendedfand Restated By-lawsof LCI Industries(incorporated by referencefo Exhibit3.2 included
inlthe Registrant’s[Form8-K [filed (on December(19,2016).

10.221 FormoflIndemnification(AgreementBetween Registrant(and fits (0fficers@and ihdependent(directors
(incorporated by feference o [Exhibit[10.1includedintheRegistrant's [Form[8-K filed[on May 26,
2015).

10.231% ExecutiveNon-Qualified Meferred CompensationPlan, [asf@amended [(incorporated By Teference fo
Exhibit10.231lihcludedintheRegistrant's[Form10-K [for fhe yearlendedDecember31,2015).

10.259+ LClIndustries[Equity[Award[and[Incentive[Plan,[As[Amended[and[Restated[(incorporated by

reference [to[Appendix [Alincluded in theRegistrant’s efinitive[Rroxy[Statement(on[Schedule 14 A
filed[on(April(11,22014).

10.2687 Changelin[Control[Agreement[between[Registrant[and [Jason[D.[Lippert, dated C(April[9,[2012
(incorporated by referencefo [Exhibit10.02 ihcluded inthe Registrant’s Form 8-K ffiled [on April 10,
2012).

10.2697 Changelin[Control[AgreementbetweenRegistrant[and[Scott T.[Mereness, dated[April[9,[2012
(incorporated by referencefo [Exhibit[10.03 ihcluded inthe Registrant’s Form 8-K ffiled [on April 10,
2012).

10.273% Amendment(toChange in[Control Agreement between Registrantland Jason[D. Ilippert, dated May
10,2013 [(incorporated By [feferencefo (Exhibit10(ii)(A)-2lincludedlin the Registrant’s [Form8-K
filed[onMay(10,2013).

10.2747 Amendment o ChangeinControl AgreementBbetween RegistrantiandScottT. Mereness, dated May
10,2013 {incorporated by [reference foExhibit[10(ii)(A)-3 includedin theRegistrant’s Form 8-K
filedlonMay(10,2013).

10.278+ Changelin[Control[Agreement[between[Registrantand [(Robert[A. Kuhns,[dated [April(4,[2013,(as
amended(May (20,2013 [(incorporated By [feferenceto [Exhibit(10.278included (in(theRegistrant’s
Form10-K forthe yearlended December31,2013).
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10.286

10.287

10.294+

10.296F

10.297+

10.299

10.300%

10.301%

10.3027

10.303

10.304

10.305

10.306

10.307

Third[/Amended andRestated NotePurchaseland Private[Shelf/Agreementdatedas6fHebruary 24,
2014, by andamong[Prudential [Investment Management, [ Inc. and[Affiliates, and [ Lippert
Components, Inc.,lguaranteed by Drew Ihdustries Incorporated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.8lihcludedfinthe Registrant’s [Form 8-K [filed February26,2014).

FormlofShelfNotedfIlippertComponents, Tnc. [pursuantfothe Third Amendedland Restated Note
Purchaseland [Private[ShelflAgreement((incorporated by [eference [fo (Exhibit(10.9 included(inthe
Registrant’s[Form 8-K [filed [February26,2014).

Form[oflExecutive [Employment/Agreement (incorporated by eference [fb [Exhibit[10.1 includedlin
the Registrant's[Form8-K filed March4,2015).

Form[oflPerformance[Stock Award[(incorporated (by[teferencelto[Exhibit(10.3lincludedlin(the
Registrant's[Form(8-K filed March4,2015).

Form ofDeferred Stock Award (incorporated by reference fo [ExhibitT0.4 included inthe Registrant's
Form(8-K [filed March4,2015).

Form(6f13.35% (Series/AlSenior Notes/dueMarch 20,2020 6f Lippert Components, Thc. [pursuant fo
theThirdTAmended[andRestated WNotePurchaseland [Private[ShelfTAgreement[{incorporated (by
reference fo[Exhibit[10.2[includedinthe Registrant's [Form8-K filed March23,2015).

Transition,Separationand[General [Release[Agreement, dated [August[14,[2015, (between Drew
Industries[Incorporatedand JosephS. [Giordano (Il [{incorporated [by [Feference [fo [Exhibit[10.1
includedfih the Registrant's[Form [8-K filed[August20,2015).

Transition,[ Separation[and[General [Release[Agreement,[dated [January[1,[2016,between[Drew
IndustriesIncorporated [and Todd Driver((incorporated by referenceto Exhibit10.1 includedlinthe
Registrant's[Form 8-K [filed January 7,2016).

2016/Annual Tncentive Plan(incorporated By [referencefo [Exhibit[10.1 included ihtheRegistrant's
Form[8-K[filed[February12,2016).

Third[Amended(and Restated [Credit/Agreement(dated @s 0f[April 27,2016 @mongMrew Industries
Incorporated, Lippert[Components, Inc., LippertComponents Canada, Tnc., IPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A.,lindividuallyfandTasCAdministrative[Agent,['Wells[Fargo[Bank 'N.A.,[individually Cand [as
Documentation Agent, Bank 0fiAmerica, N.A., andst[Source Bank (together with TIPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., Wells[Fargo Bank,N.A. @and Bank [0f[America, N.A., theLenders”)[(incorporated by
reference [fo [Exhibit[10.1included inthe Registrant's [Form[8-K filed May 3,2016).

FormlofRevolving(CreditNoteldatedlasofApril 27,2016 by LippertComponents, Tnc.,and Lippert
Components/Canada, [hc., payablefo the order of the Lenders pursuant o that/certain Third Amended
andRestated Credit/Agreement((incorporated by referencefo10.2 included infthe Registrant's Form
8-Klfiled May(3,2016).

Fourth/Amended/andRestated Pledgeland Security [Agreement(dated@s(6fApril 27,2016, made By
Drew Industries Incorporated, ILippert[Components, Tnc.@nd certain Subsidiaries thereof, in favor
offTJPMorganChaseBank,N.A.[asCollateral[Agent[{(incorporated [by [teferencefo[Exhibit[10.3
includedihthe Registrant's Horm [8-K [filed May(3,2016).

FourthiAmended and Restated Company Guarantee Agreementidated@s@f/April 27,2016, hade by
Drew Industries Incorporated, Wwith [@nd[in favor(oflJPMorgan[ChaseBank, N.A.[as[Administrative
Agentl(incorporated By feference [to (Exhibit[10.4 includedin the Registrant's[Form 8-K [filed May
3,2016).

Fourth[Amended(andRestated [Subsidiary [Guarantee (A greement(dated(as(0flApril27,2016,rhade
by [dertain subsidiaries0fDrew Industries Incorporated [and ILippert[Components, Tnc., With land[in
favoriof JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. @s[Administrative Agent(incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.5Tlhcludedinthe Registrant's[Form 8-K [filed May3,2016).
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10.308

10.309

10.310

10.311

10.312

10.313

10.314

10.315

10.316

10317+

10.318*

14.1*

14.2*
21*
23%

24
31.1%*

Fourth/Amended/and Restated[Subordination/Agreement(dated@sofApril 27,2016, made By Drew
Industries Incorporated [and [Certain[subsidiaries 0fDrew Industries Incorporated, With [and in favor
oflJPMorgan(ChaseBank, N.A. @sAdministrative[Agent(incorporated by [reference o [Exhibit(10.6
includedinthe Registrant's Form8-K filed May(3,2016).

Fourth[Amended(dnd [Restated INotePurchaseldnd [Private[ShelflAgreementdated (asof[April (27,
2016, by and@mong PGIM, Tnc. land Affiliates, and Lippert[Components, Inc., guaranteed by Drew
IndustriesThcorporated (incorporated By teference fo Exhibit[10.7 includedin fhe Registrant's[Form
8-K [filed May(3,12016).

FormofShelfNote lof Lippert Components, Ihc. pursuant to the Fourth Amendedland Restated Note
Purchasel@andPrivate[ShelflAgreement (incorporated By [reference [fo ([Exhibit[10.8 includedlinthe
Registrant's[Form 8-K filedMay3,2016).

Second/Amendedand [Restated [Parent[Guarantee/Agreement(dated(ds(0f[April127,12016,hade by
Drew IndustriesIncorporated in favor [Gf[PGIM, Inc. and the WNoteholders thereto from [fime o fime
(incorporated by reference o Exhibit(10.9 includedinthe Registrant's Form8-K filed May 3,12016).

Second/Amended andRestated [Subsidiary Guarantee A greement(dated @s0fTApril 27,2016, thade
by [dertain(subsidiaries(otherthan LLippert[Components, (Inc.) [0fDrew [Industries Incorporated, [in
favor[0fTPGIM, Inc.[andthe Woteholders(thereto [from fime[fo [time (incorporated by [teference [to
Exhibit[0.10lncludedlinthe Registrant's[Form(8-K filed May[3,2016).

SecondAmended/andRestated Pledgeland Security Agreementidated @sdf/April 27,2016, made by
Drew Industries Incorporated, LLippert[Components, Inc., ILippert [Components Manufacturing, Inc.
and[thelother[Subsidiary [(Guarantors,in favor(0fJPMorgan[Chase Bank, N.A.,[d@sCollateral[Agent
for(the [benefitloflthe[Noteholders[{incorporated by [teferencefoExhibit[10.11[includedlinlthe
Registrant's[Form8-K [filed May3,2016).

Second Amendedand Restated Subordination Agreement/dated as'of April 27,2016, made by Lippert
Components, [ Inc., Drew[ Industries Incorporated[ and[ tertain[ subsidiaries of Drew [ Industries
Incorporated, [(with[and[in[favor[of[PGIM, [Inc.[and [the (Noteholders[thereto [from fime to fime
(incorporated by reference o Exhibit0.12 ihcluded in the Registrant's Form 8-K filed May 3,2016).

Second[Amended(and Restated [Collateral [AgencyAgreement(dated @s[oflApril 27,2016, by land
amongLLippert[Components, Tnc. and [PGIM, Inc. [andthe Noteholders [thereto from [fime o [fime,
and[JPMorganChase Bank, ™N.A. @s[collateral @gent for the Noteholders (incorporated By reference
to[Exhibit[10.13includedlinthe Registrant's[Form(8-K [filed May(3,2016).

Third[Amended andRestated [Intercreditor[Agreement dated [as[0f[April (27,2016 byland [Among
PGIM, [Inc. and[Affiliates,[ JPMorgan[ Chase[ Bank, N.A.[(as[Administrative[ Agent,[as[ Credit
Agreement Collateral Agentland NotesCollateral Agent) (incorporated by reference o Exhibit(10.14
includedinthe Registrant's Form8-K filed May(3,2016).

DescriptionCofthe[transition, [separation[ and[severance compensationarrangement between

Registrantland David M. Smith[(incorporated by reference [toltem(5.02 included in the Registrant's
Form[8-K filed[September26,2016).

Grantor[Trust[Agreement, [éffectiveJanuary[15,12017, Between [Registrant/and [Wells[Fargo Bank,
National[Association.

CodelofEthicsfor[SeniorFinancial [(Officers.

Guidelines [forBusiness Conduct.

Subsidiariesoflthe Registrant.

ConsentofIndependent Registered [Public[Accounting [Firm.

PowersloflAttorney[(included (On(the(signature [page [0flthis Report).
Certification[of[ChieflExecutive[Dfficer required By Rule13a-14(a).
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31.2* Certification[of[Chief(Financial Dfficerfequired By Rule13a-14(a).

32.1% Certification[0of[Chief(Executive[Officertequired by Rule13a-14(b)d@ndSection13500f[Chapter
63 [0fTitle[M80fthe Wnited [States Code.

32.2% CertificationlofChief[Financial Officerrequired by Rule13a-14(b)@nd Section1350 6 Chapter(63
ofTitle 18 [0fthe [Wnited[States[Code.

101 InteractiveDataFiles.

*Filed hierewith

tDenotes[aldompensation(plan(Grlarrangement

Item 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY.

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Registrant has
duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February(28,2017

LCIOINDUSTRIES

By: /s/Jason D. Lippert
Jason(D. LLippert
ChieflExecutive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and dates indicated.

Eachlpersonwhose signature @ppears below hiereby @uthorizes Jason D. Lippert(and Brian M. Hall, [or dither[0fthem, o
filelone(orhore @amendments [to ‘the Annual Reportion [Form[10-K which[@mendments hay hake[such changes in [such Reportlas
either(oflthem(deems [@ppropriate, [@and(dach such(person liereby [@ppoints Jason . lippert/and Brian M. Hall, [or(¢itherofthem,
aslattorneys-in-fact/to lexecutelin the nameland on behalflofleach suchlperson individually,landinl€achlcapacity stated below, such

amendments to[suchReport.

Date

February 28,2017

February 28,2017

February (28,2017

February(28,2017

February(28,2017

February(28,12017

February(28,2017

February 28,2017

February 28,2017

February(28,2017

February28,2017

Signature

By: s/ Jason D. Lippert
[MT{UasonD. Lippert)

By: /s/ Brian M. Hall
[(BrianM. Hall)

By: /s/ James F. Gero
[(James|H.[Gero)

By: /s/ Leigh J. Abrams
[(Leigh(J.[Abrams)

By: /s/[Frank J. Crespo
[(Frank(J.[Crespo)

By: /s/ Brendan J. Deely
[(Brendan(J.Deely)

By: /s/ Tracy D. Graham
[(TracyD.Graham)

By: /s/ Frederick B. Hegi, Jr.
[MI(Frederick B.[Hegi, Jr.)

By: /s/ John B. Lowe, Jr.
[(JohnB.ILowe,Ir.)

By: /s/ Kieran M. O Sullivan

[(KieranM.(’Sullivan)

By: /s/ David A. Reed
[(David/A.[Reed)
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Title

ChiefExecutiveOfficer(and Director
(principal léxecutive dfficer)

ChiefFinancial Officer]

(principal financial [and [accounting
officer)

Chairman (0flthe Board of[Directors
Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director



Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
LCI Industries:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Nos. 333-91174, 333-141276,
333-152873, 333-161242, 333-181272 and 333-201336) on Form S-8 of LCI Industries of our report dated
February 28, 2017, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of LCI Industries and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2016 and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, which report appears in the December 31,
2016 annual report on Form 10-K of LCI Industries and subsidiaries.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 28, 2017



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 13a-14(a)

UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Jason D. Lippert, Chief Executive Officer, certify that:

1) Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of LCI Industries;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

<)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28,2017
By /s/ Jason D. Lippert

Jason D. Lippert, Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 13a-14(a)

UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Brian M. Hall, Chief Financial Officer, certify that:

1) Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of LCI Industries;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

<)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28,2017
By /s/ Brian M. Hall

Brian M. Hall, Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C.
SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10-K of LCI Industries (the “Company”) for the period ended December 31, 2016,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Jason D. Lippert, Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act 0of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

By /s/Jason D. Lippert
Chief Executive Officer
Principal Executive Officer
February 28, 2017




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C.
SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10-K of LCI Industries (the “Company”) for the period ended December 31, 2016,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Brian M. Hall, Chief Financial Officer
of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act 0of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

By /s/ Brian M. Hall
Chief Financial Officer
Principal Financial Officer
February 28, 2017
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